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MINUTES OF THE
SENATE COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Seventy-sixth Session
February 24, 2011

The Senate Committee on Judiciary was called to order by Chair Valerie Wiener
at 8:04 a.m. on Thursday, February 24, 2011, in Room 2149 of the Legislative
Building, Carson City, Nevada. The meeting was videoconferenced to the
Grant Sawyer State Office Building, Room 4412, 555 East Washington Avenue,
Las Vegas, Nevada. Exhibit A is the Agenda, Exhibit B is the Attendance Roster.
All exhibits are available and on file in the Research Library of the Legisiative
Counsel Bureau. '

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Sepator Valerie Wiener, Chair
Senator Allison Copening, Vice Chair
Senator Shirley A, Breeden

Senator Ruben J. Kihuen

Senator Mike McGinness

Senator Don Gustavson

Senator Michae! Roberson

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Linda J. Eissmann, Policy Analyst
Bradiey A. Wilkinsan, Counsel
Judith Anker-Nissen, Committee Secretary

OTHERS PRESENT:

Randolph Watkins, Executive Director and Vice President, Del Webb Community
Management Company

Michael E. Buckiey

John Leach

Mark Cootlman, Western Risk Insurance

Pamela Scott
Garrett Gordon, Southern Highlands Community Association, Olympia Group

Angela Rock, President, Olympia Management Services
Donald Schaefer, Sun City Aliante
Jonathan Friedrich
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Rana Goodman ‘

Chris  Femari, Concerned Homeowner Association Members -Political
Action Committee

Joseph Eaton, Concerned Homeowner Association Members Political
Action Committee :

Ellen Spiegel, Ex-Assemblywoman

Kay Dwyer

Jan Porter, Sage Creek Homeowners’ Association

Gary Solomon, Professar, College of Scuthern Nevada

Tim Stebhbins

Norman McCullough

Kevin Wallace, Community Association Managers Executive Organization, Inc.

Paul P. Terry, Jr., Community Associations Institute

Bill Urfelman, President and CEO, Nevada Bankers Association

Gail J. Anderson, Administrator, Real Estate Divislon, Department of Business
and Industry '

Rutt Premsrirut, Concerned Homeowner Association Mermbers Political
Action Committee

CHAIR WIENER:
1 will open the hearing on Senate Bill {S.B.) 174.

SENATE BILL 174: Revises provisions relating to common-interest communities.
(BDR 10-105) '

RANDOLPH WATKINS {Executive Director and Vice President, Del Webb Cormnmunity
Management Company}:

| have presented you a handout entitled HOA 1071 (Exhibit C) which explains

how homeowners’ associations (HOAs) originated. | will highlight benefits to

faorming an HOA. Muonicipalities benefit from forming HOAs because they

maintain private roads, common areas, and parks and recreation areas that local

cities and governments do nat maintain.

Another benefit is rules are and should be enforced for all. The HOAs are for
amenities such as pools, tennis courts, recreation centers apd places where
families can have sense of community. They invite clean, efficiently run,
architecturally and aesthetically controlled neighborhoods. Resale value for
homes in an HOA are higher because property is maintained.
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Nevada has 2,956 HOAs, including approximately 477,000 units, and HOA
homeowners equate to 17 percemt or 18 percent of the state’s population. If
there are two people in every home, approximately 50,000 live in HOAs. There
are three types of HOAs: planned unit development, condeminium and hotels,
and stock co-ops.

The responsibilities of living In an HOA are o abide by the governing
documents; pay assessments on time; attend board meetings; and volunteer to
serve as elected board members and committee members.

In order for an HOA to govern itself, it needs governing documents such as

articles of incorporation; covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs); and -

election procedures. Chapter 116 of the Nevada Kevised Staiutes (NRS)

governs HOAs. The CCA&Rs, rules and fegulations, and design guidelines are
tools used by management companies to assist the board of directors.

Professional management companies manage approximately 2,500 of the HOAs
in Nevada. The remaining 400 are self-managed or managed by boards of
directors or licensed community managers.

There are also supporting professionals, ie., lawyers, certifled public
accountants, and landscaping and architectural review companies. It is actually

big business.

In December 2009, a Zogby survey showed 71 percent of the residents in
HOAs were satisfied with thelr associations, 12 percent were dissalisfied and
the remainder had issues which did not fit into those two categories. In
addition, 70 percent are in favor of the rules; 82 percent are positive about the
value received from the community association assessments; B7 percent oppose
additional government regulation; and 37 percent favor mandatory licensing for
community association managers.

ALLISON COPENING {Clark County Senatorial District No. 6):
{ am here today to introduce S.B. 174. | will read from my testimony (Exhibit D).

| have provided a list of the S.B. 174 Working Group members {Exhibit E} and
request it be entered into the record.
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MicHAEL E. BUCKLEY: _
The Common-Interest Ownership Uniform Act was the first consumer protection

law enacted in the State.

| am a member of the State Bar of Nevada, Real Property Law Section. We have
fooked at S.B. 174 in another context because the Uniform Act has been
amended. | am also a member of the Commission for Common-interest
Communities and Condominium Hotels (CICCH). A group of people met before
Session to compile solutions. We had input from different groups and people.
An explanation of the proposed changes, section by section of the bill, is

in (Exhibit F).

Section 1, page 4, of S.B. 174 would allow an appeal to the CICCH from a
ruling of the Real Estate Division (RED). The main issue with HOAs is to have an
easy, inexpensive way to resolve disputes. The CICCH is comprisad of
seven members—three homeowner representatives, an accountant, an attaney,
a developer and a managar. All of the meetings are public, and public comment
is allowed. A homeowner can go to the CICCH with a complaint. There has
been discussion that issues appealed to the CICCH .need to be fine-tuned.
Sections 2 through 7 are procedural issues. The substance s in section 1.

Section 2, page 4, proposes not permitting cumulative voting. Smaller
associations are concerned cumulative voting would permit a small group to
take over an assoclation. Cumulative voting may benefit larger associations; you
need to draw a line rather than eliminate all cumulative voting.

Section 3, page 6, became law in 2009. Nevada Revised Statute 116.310312
addresses the fact homes were abandoned, foreclosed vpon and falling into
disrepair. This section allows the assoclation to maintain an abandoned or
foreclosed property. The costs expended by the association are a superpriority
lien against the property. The Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act was
adopted wherein, if a first mortgage holder forecloses on a common-interest
community (CIC) unit, the association can be paid six months of the dues owed,
which is called superpriority. This was expanded to nine months, except
for condominiums.

On page B, section 3 addresses the removal or abatement of a public nuisance
on the exterior of the unit which “adversely affects the use and enjoyment of
any nearby unit.” -
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On page 8, section 4 changes the mailing of ballots on an election to save the
association money. A CIC can consist of three to thousands of units. This
language clarifies if the people nominated are equal to or not more than the
board spaces which are open, those people are elected. The proposed
amendment in section 3, subsection 5, pamgraph (a) states if this situation
applied, the association couid not have an election. We would change the words
“must not” to “shall not be required to.”

On page 9, section 5, paragraph (b}, the change states that the nominees will
become duly elected members at the next regular board meeting.

On page 11, section 3, subsection 10 is cumulative voting. That may need to -

be clarified by limiting it 1o certain-size associations.

On page 12, section 5 needs to be in conjunction with section 7; although
chapter 116 is uniform law, it has been amended many times. Section 7 states
how to call a special meeting of the homeowners. Section S removes provisions
from section 7 and puts them Into section 5. This gives the owners the ability
to cal for a removal election, not the board or the president. Section 5,
subsection 1, paragraph (a) clarifies the number of votes. In the statute, if an
HOA had 100 members, you only needed a majority of 35 and 1B people could
remove a member of the board. The new language restores the provision that at
least 35 percent of the membership must vote for removal.

On page 14, section 5, subsection 4 is moved to section 18 on the bottom of
page 33 and the top of page 34. Section 6 amends NRS 116.31073. The
concern was from municipalities where if a wall or security wall was boarding a
street and an association, the city was not responsible. The CICCH had
meetings to understand what a security wall is. There can be a wall between &
street and the association, referred to as a perimeter wall; 2 wall between
two hormes: a wall around a common area inside the project; or a wal along the
street inside a project. The person whose property contains the wall assumes
responsibility, unless the government has accepted the responsibility, the wall
has been damaged by a third party or the CC&Rs provide otherwise.
Crark County suggests that where subsection 1 references "governmental entity
has accepted responsibility,” the agreement be in writing (Exhibit G).

On page 16, section 7, subsection 3, paragraph (a) is a change which appears
throughout S.B. 174. The law states an owner should be provided copies of the
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minutes in electronic format at no charge. Some owners want a compact disc
(CD) or a copy of the audiotape of a meeting. The intent was if there is a cost
to the association, there should be a cost to the -owner. But the intent of

electronic format was intended as e-mail and PDF attachments.

On page 17, section 7, subsection 6 is the same change, to clarify e-mall rather
than a CD or other format.

On page 18, section B defines an executive session and also states that an
executive session does not require notification to unit owners.

On page 19, section 4, subsection 5 allows the association to make deliverizs
by e-mail. Paragraph {a) changes electronic format to e-mail, Page 20 is the

same change.

On page 21, section 9 describes what can be discussed in executive session
and subsection 3, paragraph (b) adds the board be permitted to discuss the
professional competence or misconduct of a vendor. The board cannat act on a
failure or change the contract in executive session; that reeds to be discussed
in an open meeting. There is a suggestion to delete the reference to “or physical
or menta!t health” from paragraph (b). Paragraphs {d) and (e} may be repetitive,

On page 23. section 10, subsection 1, paragraph (c) requires the association to
provide crime insurance. Section 11, section 1 requires the association maintain
its funds with an institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation, the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or the Securities -

Investor Protection Corporation,

On page 24, subsection 2 permits associations to have cash on hand.

On page 25, section 12, subsection 3 states assessments have to bear interest.
The change is intended to say they “may” bear - interest, not “have” to
bear interest.

On page 26, section 12, subsection 6 may need to be rewritien. If a person in
the community causes damage to the common elements, the person should be
responsible. This would jnclude not only the unit owner but the unit owner's
tenants or guests. Subparagraph {b) states the person who created the harm is
also respensible for legal fees and costs.
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On page 27, section 13, subsection 1, paragraph [b}, subparagraph (2), the
word “"necessary” is deleted. in subparagraph (3), “special” is replaced with
“reserve.” This clarifies it refers only to those reserves. Some associations refer
to special assessments as an assessment for a violation. An association has the
ability to fund its reserves or rnake an assessment against an owner without

approval from the owner, but only for reserves.

On page 28, section 13, subsection 4, paragraph (a) clarifies the need to send
owners the investment policy as well as the collection policy. Section 14
addresses how an association pays money and requres two signatures, but
there are exceptions. If there is more than $10,000 to be paid to the State, you
have to pay by wire transfer. This would permit the transfer. This also permits
transfers to the United States Government for taxes and payment to

certain vendors.

On page 29, section 14, subsection 3, paragraph {e), subparagraphs (1) through
(3) are requirements designed to safeguard the electronic transfers, Section 15,
subsection 1 defines anything the association charges a lien on the property, if
the first mortgage forecloses, all association’s liens are wiped out except the
superpriority. which protects the assoclation,

On page 30, section 15 would allow the collection costs to be part of the'

superpriority lien. In December 2070, the CICCH approved a proposed
regulation that clarified what are reasonable collaction costs, which is stalled
because of the moratorium on new regulations. The CICCH determined what are
reasonable fees and costs. In the comment to a change in 2008, the Uniform
Law Commissioners stated the 2008 change was approved by the Foreclosure
Prevention and Mortgage Assistance (Fannie Mae) program. | have been told
that adding coltection costs to the superpriority violates Fannie Mae, but when
I looked at the Fannie Mae guidelines, that was not the case. Nevada has the
concept of reasonable collection costs, which is another safeguard,
Subsection 6 clarifies actions “against a unit's owner.”

On page 31, section 15, subsection 1 makes the executive board, a member of
the board or manager liable for retaliatory action against a unit owner. The
intent of subsection 2 was to provide protection -for board members against
threats and retaliation by a unlt’s owners.
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On page 32, section 17 is a technical correction to clarify reserve assessments,
not special assessments,

On page 33, section 18 defines punitive damages.

On page 34, section 18, subsection 4, paragraph (d) should be deleted, as this
would apply to the community manager and that was rot the intent. It is
intended to cover the volunteers who work for the HOA.

On page 35, section 19, subsection 1, paragraph (b}, the reference to bond
is removed.

On page 36, section 20 clarifies provisions regarding regulations on
management contracts,

On page 37, section 20, subsection 1, paragraph (g) requires provisions
for indernnity. Paragraph (k), subparagraph (1) defines it is not the
manager’s funds, but the association’s funds. Subparagraphs (1) through {4)
define insurance. Paragraph () is a technical comrection to delete “include
provisions for dispute resolution.” It also conflicts -with the provisions in
subsection 2, paragraph (a) defining mandatory arbitration.

On page 38, secton 20, subsection 2, paragraph (b) permits management to
obtain contracts to provide indemnification for the manager. The reference to

Title 7 of the NRS is to the corporate statutes, which say indemnification is not-

appropriate where the wrongdoer is negligent. Subsection 6 defines managers
who only have electronic records. When there is a change in manager, the new
manager can obtain and have access to those records without receiving a
password from the previous manager. A

On page 39, section 21 refers to NRS 116A, community managers (ChMs).

On page 40, section 21, subsection 12 clarfles the board invests - funds,
although the CM can do things on behalf of board members who make
those decisions.

On page 47, section 22 amends NRS 76.020 and defines “business.” The
business law tax was enacted to exempt nonprofits under NRS 82, under which
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most associations are incorporated. This would also add NRS B1 because some
associations are incorporated under that chapter.

On page 42, section 23 amends NRS 76.100 to further define business,

JOHN LEACH:
I am in favor-of S.B. 174. | agree with Mr. Watkins, Senator Copening and

Mr. Buckley. The comments Mr. Buckley made regarding Exhibit F breaks down
into two categories, i.e., enhanced due process in section 1 giving the
association owner the opportunity to come before the Commission, and the
sections that provide cost-savings to HOAs and thereby the homeowners.
Clarification in the statutes is also key.

CHAIR WIENER:
Mr, Buckiey, when the Commission met -with the Real Estate Division, were

members going to address the safety issue for the unit owners
and management?

MR. BUCKLEY:
We discussed if a crime is committed, &t need not be added to NRS 116.

But there needs to be protection of retaliation against hoard members.

MARK COOLMAN (Western Risk insurance):
I am in favor of 5.B. 174. Five major insurance markets provide coverage for

HOAs, and all of them provide the endorsemnents free of charge. The way
sections 10 and 20 are rewritten, the cost of insurance would be favorable.
Homeowners’ associations would have the largest amount.of availability, and
the cost would be less than both of them maintaining half the insurance
coverage. First of all, you would disclose who does what, and second, you
would go out to market and obtain the best available price and coverage.

Section 16 defines the need for protection of board members, In the last several
years, | had four claims where a board member or president had cars, houses or
other personal property destroyed, generally after board meetings or
controversial activities within the association.

PAMELA ScOTT: )
Section 15 tatks about superpriority and reasonable collection costs. Banks are

taking from 18 months to 24 months to complete the foreclosure process on
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property, causing the superpriority liens and the need fer collection costs.
Homeowners have stopped paying their assessments prior 1o the bank's
foreclosure action. If the homeowner stops paying the association, the
associatan puts a llen on the property before the bank starts the foreclosure
process. If the bank is not moving forward, it forces the association to move
forward with the lien, which adds another step and fees. The association does
not recejve the funds and are writing off years of common assessment to bad
debt. It is money which condominium and smaller associations need; they do
not have the numbers to spread the debt around, It is important the associations

receive their collection costs.

The key is the regulation, which has not been adopted because of the
moratoriom. Senator Copening bas a bill that spalls out reasonable collection
costs. It is important to include reasonable collection costs for superpriority
for HOAs.

GARRETT GORDON (Southern Highlands Community Association, Olympia Group):
Southern Highlands Community Association is a large association with over
7,000 rooftops, approximately 25,000 residents. Many of these issues are
unique to large associations.

ANGELA Rock (President, Olympia Management Services):

} am the president of Olympia Services, which manages Southern Highlands
Community Association. We have submitted a list of clarifications (Exhibit H) on
sections 1. 2, 4, 14 and 16. We have additional comments and questions on
-section 10 as it relates to insurance. Unique situations apply to smaller
communities compared to large associations. Bath' have important issuss
and neads.

CHAIR WIENER:
Couid you give us an idea of the budget and management challenges you have

with a large association?

Ms. ROCK:
When you have 25,000 homeowners and they disagree, a great number of

groups are invalved. This is a complex financial issue, with large amounts of
money involved, and there needs to be protection, which S.B. 174
accomplishes. Homeowners volunteer their time to run a multimillion dollar
corporation, which | point out in Exhibit H.
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Last week, auditing issues were addressed in smaller associations. Cumulative
voting can be an issue in a smaller association while In a larger community, it
allows smailer subassociations to have a voice. We have some subassaciations
in our community with approximately 30 to 40 homes, compared to other
subassociations that have 720 homes. It is a necessary tool for iarger
communities to allow smaller masses to have a voice, These are some issues
which can be vetted through the process.

DONALD SCHAEFER (Sun City Aliante):
| am a homeowner in Sun City Aliante, an age-qualified community consisting of
2,028 homes. | am here today representing Sun City Aliante exclusively.

Homeowners own the association, which the board manages. Being transparent
with disclosures—where money is invested, how it is invested, how collections
are made and when someone is turmed over to collections—makes board
management clear to the homeowners.

On page 9, section 4, subsection 5, paragraphs (b) and (c) have not been
addressed. In Sun City Summerlin, the process begins with nominations in
January, as its fiscai year runs from July 1 through June 30. The homeowners
have 30 days to nominate someone and the nominee to turn in a resume, etc. In
another 30 days, the ballots are printed and sent to the homeowners. At the
annual meeting in May, a candidate forum and open voting are held. At end of
the board meeting, the winners are arnounced, the meeting is recessed and the
board is reorganized. The board then has a meeting to elect the president,
secretary, et cetera.

If 5.B. 174 passes with no changes, the above section states: “the nominated
candidates shall be deemed to be duly elected to the executive board.” IF this
was the case, at the end of January i there were three people running for
three positions, they would be elected to the board on the second Wednesday
of February. You have shortened the term of the existing board and lengthened
the term of the incoming board. It is not a major issue for those associations
that have a two-year term, but for those associations that have a three-year
term, the board would be in viclation of the three-year maximum limit, That
term wouid be exceeded by two to three months.

The Sun City Summerlin board suggests the language in paragraph (b) be
changed to say elected board members would take their seats at the conclusion
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of the current board term. This is consistent with how State officials are
eiected. They are elected in November and seated in January.

JONATHAN FRIEDRICH:
1 will read from my testimony (Exhibit [).

When you buy a home in an HOA, you sign a contract. When the State changes
the terms or supersedes the contract, there is no approval by one party—the
homeowner. It is a cantract.,

Mr. Watkins stated 71 percent of the homeowners are satisfied; what about the
other 29 percent? Based upon Mr. Watkins’ numbers, he stated 950,000 people
live in HOAs. If you multiply that times the 29 percent who are not happy, that
makes 275,000 people in this State who are not happy with their HOA.

Mr. Buckley referenced the item on electronic format. | received a complaint
from a homeowner whose CM wanted $25 for a CD. We need regulations.

On page 4, section 1, subsections 1 through 7 can be used as a tool by the
HOA attorneys to charge high attorney fees, which the association will pay.
Then, the association attempts to recoup those fees using NRS 116.3115,
subsection &, which forces the homeowner to pay the attorney fees. It can also
be used by the homeowner who wants to appeal a RED decision to the CICCH.
Either way, the Commission will become inundated with appeals. if these
appeals are considered civil actions, NRS 116.31088 requires notice to all
homeowners. This will prove costly to everybody.

The new law extends the removal of board members to 120 days, Four months.
If you have bad board members, you want them off the board as soon

as possible.

I am in favor of criminal insurance, but the HOA should pick up the cost, That is
a cost of doing business by the CM,

RANA GOODMAN:

| have previously submitted my comments . (Exhibit J); | will not read them.
However, | have additional comments regarding Mr. Watkins' statements about
HOAs and how they are established. He is describing a utopia. When most of us
buy a home in an HOA community, we buy it with the same idea; we want to
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live in a nice community. In that respect, | agree with him. The problem is the
people who govern the HOA. You are at the mercy of your board of directors. If
you have a resigent-friendly board, you have what you want. The problem is
many HOAs are run by bully boards; it is a fact of life, and the complaints
prove that.

in Southern Highlands Community Association and Sun City Anthem, there are
7,144 homes with 11,000-plus residents who are retired with no chiidren. The
biggest majority of those residents suffer from a bad case of apathy. They do
not care—they want to play golf, live a fabulous retired life, and more power to
them. i would argue that 71 percent are happy; a big portion are not happy, not
with the association. The look of the association is beautiful, but the residents
are not happy with those who govern the HOA.

I ask you to choose how you coin your words in S5.B. 174. For example, on
page 18, section B, subsection 2, paragraph (b}, you use the tem, "if the
association offers.” Ikt is too soft; | would suggest it be changed to “the board
shall offer.” When you say, "if the association offers to send notice by
electronic mail” and you have a bad board, it can say, no, we are not going to
do that. There is nothing a resident can do because the law gives the board -

an out.

On page 21, section 9, subsection 3, in paragraph (b), you use the ‘term
“misconduct.” How do you define misconduct? Several years ago, a resident in
my community physically assauvited someone by knocking that person down;
that is misconduct. There are other cases where someone asks for documents
and the board did not want to give them. Because the attorney deemed it
misconduct, he fined the person, used the paragraph which deals with
community expenses and charged the homeowner $8,000 in Jegal fees, That
word needs to be changed and further defined; it is too loose. Misconduct is
when my child mouths off to me. What we need from you, our Legislators, is a
way the homeowners can hold their boards accountable. [t is not the HOA per
se, it is people governing the HOA. Cur first line of governance is our board, but
our line of reason is you. If we have ambiguous terms in the law, where do

we go?

I residents are retaliated against by the board, they go to the Office of the
Ombudsman for Owners in Common-interest Communities and Condominium
Hotels and wait for at least three months. Then they take it to RED, and it goes
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into mandatory arbitration. If this law passes as is, a resident is deemed to
retaliate against board members by having an argument with them or whatever
the board deems is retaliation against them. The board can do anything it
wants. | quote my board president in testimony last week to you: "This board
can do whatever we want.”

CHRIS FERRARI ({Concerned Homeowner Asscciation Members Political
Action Committee}:

Concermed Homeowner Association Members Political Action Committes
{CHAMP) is a broad-based coalition of homeowners, consumer credit
counselors, labor union members, minority chambers of commerce, Natiomal
Assoclation for the Advancement.of Colored People, legal aid organizations, real
estate agents, builders and numerous others. For ciarification, we are not
anti-HOA. Our primary concern is to. ensure when fees are assessed based on
nonpayment of assessments, the money goes-to fix the communities and keep
them maintained for their residents.

I am not in opposition to S.B. 174 but have concerns in opposition to
sections 12 and 15. Based on Mr. Buckley’s comments in section 12,
subsection 6 alleviates our concerns in section 12, so | will focus on section 15.

After a home is foreclosed upon, the Fannie Mae program wili pay up to

six months of back due HOA assessments for common expenses. That amount

may include collection fees, but no more than that. This is a discrepancy that

we have with the comments made by Mr. Buckley and is evidenced on page 1

of our handout {Exhibit K), in the bottom two right-hand boxes. We have also -
had conversations with Fannie Mae and Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corpaoration's (Freddie Mac) counse! to confirm this.

The HOAs have the ability to foreciose for past due assessments through
Nevada's nonjudicial foreclosure process. Prior to foreclosure, an HOA resident
who missed payments is turned over to an HOA's collection or management
company in less than two months. This is referred to as “imaginary fees.” We
all know someone who has been impacted by these eQregious fees,

Page 2 of Exhibit K shows a sample payoff demand from an HOA collector, who
supports 5.B. 174, for services purportedly rendered to collect past due
assessments. While it contains many of the imaginary fees—it is not unique——it
is the norm. In this particular example, page 3 shows the two past due
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assessments are each in the amount of $39.12 for a Yotal amount owed of
$78.24. How much would the demand letter be based upon? $3,322.24. To be
fair, in this example we will deduct the demand and transfer fees from the total,
as these are relevant charges. The new total is just under $3,000. The past due
amount is $78, and we are talking about almost $3,000; that is the core of our
argument. That means 2.7 percent of the money demanded will find its way to
the HOA, and 97.3 percent will go to the coltector. Who is winning In this
situation? The money is not going back to the HOA to fix the issues.

Page 4 of Exhibit K shows a demand issued via e-mail at 9:08 a.m. for paymert
by 1 p.m. that same day. | doubt whether any one of us who received such a
demand this moming would be able to pay it by 1 p.m. Because the four-hour
demand was not met, the fee went up $2,000, a $2,000 fee increase in
four hours. The rnoney is not going back to the HOA to fix the problem.

In Exhibit K, page 10, in contrast—Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac's nonjudicial
foreclosure pays $600 for the sasme process and completes the foreclosure,
uniike the previous examples.

One of the members of Senator Copening’s Working Group testified in previous
Legislative Sessions that from the thousands of files opened by an HOA
collection company, only two homes were foreclosed upon. This seems fairly
consistent in the process, but the question is: why are those notices sent?

In closing, 5.B. 174, sections 12 and 15 make it harder for families in Nevada
to buy or sell a home and easier for their HOA collection companies to do

business as usual.

SENATOR BREEDEN:
Mr. Friedrich, you mentioned homeowners contact you. Are ybu an advocate,

but not with an organization?

MR. FR!EDRECH:

Through personal disputes with my HOA and having been run through the mill,
} have become an advocate for unhappy homeowners. | will be glad to share my
binder with anyone who would like to see it. These are complaints e-mailed to
me by unhappy homeowners that range from, "l have a jungle gym in my
backyard, and they want me to take it down” to “the color of my driveway
paint does not match the exact shade | submitted.” There is no organization,
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Just 8 group of peaople trying to fight for homeowners’ rights and level the
playing fieid.

SENATOR GUSTAVSON:
Mr. Ferrari, on the exorbitant fees people are being charged; it Fannie Mae or

Freddie Mac will not pay these fees, who will?

MR. FERRARI:

That is a great question, one of which all of you are concerned. What typically
happens is a superpriority lien, which 15 in section 15, incorporating more fees
under superpriority. As many real estate agents or others can tell you, that lien
is stuck on the house regardiess of who owns it. When the next buyers
purchase the home, they will not find out how much the fees are until the end
of the process through a demand letier to the collection agency. We found in
numerous examples, including the consumer credit counselors, when people buy
homes, their federal loans are approved, but they cannot finance the lien
amount. That is stopping real estate transactions throughout the State, making
it a larger issue. Until we rid the excess inventory in the market, people cannot
start building again and those homes wiil not transact.

SENATOR BREEDEN:
If this is a bank-owned home, why are buyers not responsible for paying

those fees?

MR. FERRARI:
| will defer that question-to Mr. Buckiey, a real estate agent or attorney from

CHAMP to answer the question.

SENATOR COPENING:

There is a collections bill which will mirror the CICCH’s regulations not on hoid.

We wanted to codify it inlo law to ensure these egregious fees to a homeowner

do not happen again. The fees would be capped at under 52,000 and only -
one letter will be sent. There would be limits on how much could be charged to -
write a letter, maybe $50 for the time it took to generate it. ) ' ‘

Someone has to pay those collection costs when there is a foreclosure. Right
now, in my bitl and in the coflections bill, superpriority will be given to coliection
costs because it is a cost of the association. In many cases, HOAs have paid
those costs when contracted with a collections agency. In scme situations, they
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paid every month, and two years down the road, the home forecloses. There
may be the maximum $2,000 collection Fee. If the assessments were $100 for
nine months, the association receives $300 and could also be owed those fees.
It is my understanding CHAMP believes those costs should pass on to all
homeowners of the association. In that case, one person’s bad debt, or several
in an association, would be passed on to all homeowners. If it is not passed on
and the bank owns the unit, it would pay--or the investors would pay. Investors
could recoup when they flip the home, or the debt would be paid by the new

homeowner. [F we remove superpricrity, who should pay those collection costs? -

MR. FERRAR]:

This is an issue impacting folks; it is a unique issue because we agree with the
cap. We will work with you and try to pass a bill we believe is reasonable and
benefits all parties. When working with folks, i.e., legal aid centers all the way
to bankers, there is a middle ground. It is not in the best interests of HQA
residents to pay excbitant fees without getting additional money, We ook
forward to working with you on the collections bill.

JoserH  EATON  {Concerred Homeowner Association Members  Political

Action Committee);
Superpriority fees are not paid by the purchaser who acqguires the property fram

the bank if the bank is the successful bidder at a nonjudicial foreclosure sale. -

Those fees are paid by investors. Given the amendments proposed, those fees
would be included in superpriority. The payment would be shifted from the
community members to the general public as a whole. That is who will pick up
those costs in the context of a foreclosure. Those fees have to be paid by the
bank when the bank takes title to the property——or an investor when the
investor takes title. This is not a case where a delinquent homeowner steps up
and pays the fees. This is not a guestion. of shifting the cost to somsone who
should have borne the cost. It is whether the people who could exercise
restraint over the collectors and who enter jnto those contracts are going to be
forced to bear the costs. When they do not, the costs shift to the public as a
whole. Members of the community are in a much better position to exercise

restraint over the collectors they retain.

SENATOR COPENING:
Collection costs are a part of the superpriority; you want that removed., We

know it is happening because when investors or homeowners buy homes, they

US BANKO0487



Case 2 13-wv-ulDL7-GVMN-Cyer 1 UL

Senate Committee on Judiciary
February 24, 2011
Page 18

are responsible for the superpriority. Those collection costs are paid to the
collection companies. :

MR. EATON:
There is litigation pending. This is not a settled question at this point.

SENATOR KIHUEN:
Mr. Friedrich, how long did it take you to accumulate the complaints in your

binder? Are these from this January or the past few years?

MR. FRIEDRICH: .

These have been forwarded to me by different people in less than a year. | will

get the hinder to each of you. It is broken down into three sections: the

arbitration trap mandated under NRS 38 and 116, fines levied by associations

against homeowners, and collection fees. In one case, a 78-year-old lady almost

lost her home on two issues: Over $6,000 in fines for dead grass on ber front
fawn and delinquent association fees where she thought she was curent and

was not. | attribute this to her age and not being on top of the situation.

ELLEN SPIEGEL (Ex-Assemblywomany):
I will read from my written testimony (Exhibit L).

KAY DWYER:
{ armm a homeowner, resident and former board member of a large CIC. | am in

support of S,B. 174,

There are many Issues in sections of this bill, but | will limit my comments to
section 18, subsection 3. This section addresses the issue of harassment and
interference with the performance of duties of board members, managers and
staff. You have received testimony where multiple complaints, B0 to 8O, were
filed in a large associatlon at a cost of more than $3B,000 to the association,
None of these complaints resulted in fines or serious charges of wrongdoing.
Mast of the complaints resulted in either no action or were deemed
unwarranted. Some complaints are still apen and unresolved. These multiple and
numerous complaints were filed by the same peopie over and over again. These
complaints were made by fewer than a dozen people out of a population of
14,000 in a community of over 7,000 homes. There are probably 13,900 -
people who are happy with their association. Board members, managers, staff
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and professional asseciates have been targeted by this very smiail, vocal group.
This is not a unique situation as the recent negative publicity has shown.

Please support S.B. 174 and retain the authority of boards, managers and staff
to perform their duties without harassment. This association is responsible for
administering the business of the corporation, representing thousands of
residents, and is accountable for millions of doliars in budget decisions, reserve
issues, and maintenance and upkeep of many millions of resident dollars in
assets. The association is responsible for over 250,000 square feet of
recreational faciiities that accommodate the lifestyle of the 14,000 residents.
The HOA and other responsible, diligent volunteers, board members, managers
and staff must be allowed to conduct the business of their communities. There
are remedies in place for those associations and managers who violate their

positions and duties.

JAN PORTER (Sage Creek Homeowners’ Association):

| support S.B. 174. | am a homeowner and member of the board of the
230 homes in Sage Creek Homeowners' Association. | served as the
homeowner representative on the Commission for Common-Interest
Communitizs and Condominium Hotels. | serve as general manager for Peccole
Ranch Association.

Our small association met last night and discussed a number of the different
jtems in this bill, \We need to ask how many of these complaints have gone
before the CICCH. How many complaints has the Office of the Ombudsman
received? What kind of validity do the complaints have, and have they followed
the process? One of the most important things is education. Education helps the
homeowners as well as the board members serve their communities better.

GARY SOLOMON (Professor, College of Southern Nevada): -
I am a psychology professor at the College of Southern Nevada, arn tenured, an

expert witness, a published author and psychotherapist.

My concern is that HOAs are doing dsmage to their residents, a syndrome
which | have identified as HOA Syndrome, scmewhat similar to post-traumatic )
stress disorder. People living in HOAs are experiencing a wide range of -’
psychiatric conditions. There are people who are becoming ill; people who are
dying. 1 personaily, at my own expense, placed a billboard on Boulder Highway
warning people not to move into HOAs. It is so far out of hand that an HOA is
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now mimicking a concentration camp, an actual neighborhood ghetto. People on
the HOA boards have taken the roles as Capos, defined as individuals who hurt
other individuals at no charge.

The master community is an absolute abomination. To refer to one as a
“master” is an archak term which was used against women and blacks. Now
we are using it against homeowners.

At the top of the food chain come the colieclion companies. | refer to them
collectively as a cartel. The HOA boards, the management companies and the
collection companies operate as cartel consoriums. Unlike drug cartels, the

" HOAs supply nothing, no drugs, nothing, except harm and pain. As a health
care professional, | am now putting the entire State on notice, you need to stop
this now, Not only should this bill not be passed for health reasons, but what
has been passed needs to be undone,

I have put individual board members and management companies on notice.
| will continue to do 5o at my own expense untit this stops. If we do not stop
this now, you are going to see people killed and houses burned down because
the owners feel powerless over their own situations.

TIM STEBBINS;
.1 will read from my written testimony (Exhibit M).

i urge the wording in section 8, subsection 5 be changed so it is not mandatory
that the only way one can receive information about agendas, etc., is by e-mail.
It should be optional. Maybe in another generation everybody will be up to
speed on computers, but we are not there yet.

| support the comments made by Ms. Goodman earlier.

NoRrRMAN MCCULLOUGH:
I agree with Mr. Stebbins' testimony. There are parts of S.B. 174 | am far, but

there are parts ! dislike, and dislike is a kind word. You need a third option such
as, “disagree with parts.” | have submitted a three-page statement with

four exhibits (Exhibit N).

I will read from my wiitten testimory (Exhibit 0).
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KEVIN WALLACE {Community Association Managers Executive Organization, Inc.):
| represent the Community Association Managers Executive Officers (CAMEO],
which collectively manages 250,000 doors in'the State. ] was also the president
of RMI Management and received hundreds of e-mails regarding the issues we
are talking about today; most of them are in favor of S.B. 174. CAMED

supports this bill with the changes noted by the sponsors,

We want to clarify a few issues. Section 15 is a policy issue. There will be
collection costs accrued to collect a homeowner's debt, but the Issue is who
should pay the costs. Is it going to be the homeowner who pays the costs, or
under CHAMP’s suggestion, the guilty party or delinquent party? We support
the bill regarding collections and reasonable fees.

We are a Fannie Mae representative in this State. Fannie Mae and banks pay
liens. Fannie Mae has offered to pay more than iegally required. The agency's
concerns are that assodations in this State are financially strapped. If the
troubled associations need help, it has offered to lend a hand.

PauL P. TERRY, JR. {Community Associations Institute):

I am a member of the board of the Community Associations Institute {CAl) and
2 member of the CAl Legislative Action Committee. In the interest of full
disclosure, | am also a practicing attorney in the HOA area and my law firm,

Angius & Terry, operates a licensed collection agency.

| am here on behalf of CAl, which is in full support of S.B. 174. Unlike the bills
in past years based largely on anecdotal information, this is the first bill-where
all stakeholders have been brought together in a thoughtful and collaborative
approach. We understand there needs to be language change, but overall, the
bill is the way the legisiative process shouid work.

BiLL UFFELMAN (President and CEO, Nevada Bankers Association):

The Association supports 5.B. 174. The concerns we have are sections 12 and
18, the coliection cost issues. There is a companion bill coming forward, and
the more closely we can link the bills together, the better. Perhaps we need Lo
ensure the collections bill reflects the discussions we had over the interim.
Everything is tied together, S0 everyone knows the rules, the rights of the HOAs
and the obligations of the purchaser at foreclosure sajes. Be it known, | am also
the neighborhood representative for Chardonnay Hills in Summerlin.
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SENATOR MCGINNESS:
Are these collection fees unique 10 Nevada, or are they across the
United States?

MR. UFFELMAN:
Collection fees are comman. I was president of my HOA when | lived in Virginia.

We had a little ...

SENATOR MCGINNESS:
I am referring to the collection fees in the case of the unpaid assessments for
$349,12 for two months, but the total came to $3,000.

MR. UFFELMAN:
| cannot speak to the amounts, but the concept, yes.

MR. TERRY:

| operate a collection agency in both Nevacda and California. The amounts are
consistent betwesen the two states. The issue is not the amount of coilection
costs because whatever the costs are, they are fixed. They are fixed regardless
of whether the assessment owed is $10 or $1,000, The steps you go through
to comply with the statutory process are always the same.

SENATOR MCGINNESS:
There was an exhibit presented today where the notice was sent out at 9 a.m.

to be paid by 1 p.m.

MR. TERRY: .

That situation is not common. Circumstances arise where homeowners ignore
the collection process until the foreclosure sale s scheduled to take place. They
call our office at 9 a.m. and say we do not want the foreclosure sale to ‘go
forward. We may send them a communication which says you have a very short
period of time to produce the money. It is not because they received the notice
for the first time at 9 a.m. before the foreclosure sale; itis because they ignored
the entire collection process until 9 a.m. before the foreclosure sale,

CHAIR WIENER:
We have a stand-aione bill on collections where we go into more depth on

this issue.
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SENATOR MCGINNESS!
{ hope we do not lose this because it is in a separate bill. .

CHAIR WIENER:
We will make sure everything is covered. That is why we are waiting on this bill

until the end.

SENATOR MCGINNESS:

| hope we do not leave it to “aasonable” because it does not seem

"reasonable” is getting it accomplished.

GAL J. ANDERSON (Administrator, Real Estate Division, Department of Business
and Industry):

| will address section 1, where it states "any person who is aggrieved,” then it

lists a number of items, i.e., letter of instructon, advisory opinion, declaralory
order or any other written decision which the person has received. The Real
Estate Division issues many written docurnents, closing letters, responses to
constituents and attorneys, and delinquency notices regarding delinquent
registrations. If this section means to propose any written document issued by
the Division under this program is subject to appeal by a recipient or possibly
someone affected by It, it is going to create an arduous process for anything to
be done and finalized. That letter could be presented as an appeal to the
Commission, and then it comes to what?

Under the law, an investigative file is confidential. This poses some legal and
procedural issues to be considered for a closing of an unsubstantiated case of
complaint for nonjurisdiction. A complainant receives a closing letter on a
complaint filed and investigated by the Division and then presents this closing
letter in appeal to the Commission. The party who comes befwe the
Commission says, here is my letter and | am aggrieved by it, but there is not
much the Division can do. We have conducted an investigation under
NRS 2338, which is notification of an opening letter, an opportunity to respond,
and a request to provide us with an answer that might take care of the issue.
The contents of that investigation are confidentiai. Outside the process of
NRS 2338, | do not see how the Division could defend an appeal made to the

Commission on the basis of our investigation.

Under NRS 233B, a notice of complaint and hearing has to be offered. The
production of documents used in the State’s prosecution and presentation of
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evidence to support an alleged violation of law are all part of that process.
| strongly oppose this procedure being offered to a licensee under the
jurisdiction of RED. This provision is in NRS 116, not NRS 116A.

It is a conflict for the Commission o act as an investigative body and a judiciat
body on the same matter. 1 do not see how it would work in an appeal process.

Since a complaint and notice of hearing is a document issued by RED and the
Office of the Attorney General, does the formal notice become an appealable
written document someone could bring to the Commission and say, | do not like
this notice of hearing and | would Tike to tell you why?

One suggestion is to address the needs for mediation or resolution and issues to
be considered. If there are questions of substantive law a party wants
considered by the Commission before a complaint has been filed, it would be
argued before the Commission for determination of facts specific to an
association’s issues. Those are many of the complaints filed. Homeowvners say
this is going on and we do not think it is right, or they are doing it this way
—they being the board.

The Division, and therefore the Commission, does not have jurisdiction over
governing document disputes. I look forward to working on section 16, but
| have jurisdictional concerns.

RUTT PremsRRUT (Concerned Homeowner Association Members Political
Action Committee): )

| am a director of CHAMPS. | weuld like to answer Senator Copening’s question

of who is paying the majarity of these liens. it is the U.S. taxpayers. You may

see Bank of America on the title, but the bank is the servicer. The bills are being

paid by Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae and the U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Development (HUD). | have liens provided by Freddie Mac’s in-house

counsel of $3,000 (Exhibit P), $4,000 (Exhibit Q) and $7,000 (Exhibit R}.

In section 15, amending the superpriority lien is nothing but a scheme (o raid
the U.S. Treasury. This is a 20-year-old statute being amended that takes
advantage of the foreclosure situation. This amendment distorts the original
intent of six or nine months. When you add collection fees on top, it becomes
$5,000 or $10,000, which is five to ten years of assessments. If you are a
lender, l.e., Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, and you want to continue lending in
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Nevada, you have to mitigate these risks, which means pass the costs off to

the consumer. That means higher down payments, higher mortgage insurance
premiums and higher interest rates.

i would like to ask the Senators, homeowners and HOA boards—when- the
inspector Generais of HUD, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac come to recover their
millions of dollars in damages, similar to what Bank of America is doing now in
federal court, who is going to be liable and holding the bag? { have confirmed
this legal position with Regina Shaw, in-house counsel to Freddie Mac;
Lisa O'Denald, Associate General Counsel of Fannie Mae; and Donna Ely, legal
in-house counsel to the Federal Housing Finance Agency.

Clark County Republic Services, Clark County Water Reclamation District and
special improvement districts all have superprionity fiens. You do not see any of
these entities hiring a third-party collector charging $3,000, $4,000 or $5,000
in collection fees, often four to ten times the original principal of the debt to
collect their back due assessments. This amendment’s intent is to unjustly
enrich a small handful of collectors.

MR. EATON:

{ will clarify what happens in the context of a nonjudicial foreciosure. Previous
cemments indicated that through this process, the superpriority lien is putting
the burden of these delinquent assessments on the homeowners who failed to
pay those assessments. That is not the case. When we speak about the
superpriority statute, the portion at issue Is what happens after there is a
foreclosure under a first deed of trust. Under those circumstances, a delinquent
" homeowner does not show up and offer to pay the past due assessment and
thus avoid the bank; U.S. taxpayers or an investor does not have to pay
those expenses.

When the bank owns the property and has to.clear those liens, it passes along
those costs. We, the taxpayers, have to bail the banks out and pick up those
costs. It is not the people in the community who did not pay those costs, it is
the taxpayers who do not live in the community and who have no ability to
exercise any oversight other than through their elected representatives such as
yourselves, The collectors have contracts with associations to provide these
services. When the members of the association can rest assured the taxpayers
are going to pick up those burdens and the association will not have to bear
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them, the board members have little incentive to exercise oversight over
the collectors.

The vast majority of lien amounts | have seen as an Investor are due to
collection costs. A small amount of those monies the collectors seek are passed
on to the association to help them out. Those manies line their own pockets.

A prior comment was made regarding the collection process that takes place on
behalf of the HOA. One comment is because the banks are taking so long to

foreciose, the HOAs have to go forward with their foreclosure process. In fact, -

they do not go forward with the process; they threaten to go forward but do
not. complete the process, There is a good reason why. If the HOAs were to go
forward with that process, they would own the property. When they own the
property, they would not have the lien against it and their lien would be tost. If
their lien is lost, they are subject to the bank’s foreclosure and they are not
going to get paid at all. Lacking a present inteation to go forward violates
federal law—the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, which is intended to protect
consumers and shield them from threats, To say these people are going to get
their legal fees and collection costs and be inciuded in the superprlority is to
stretch this to include impropes costs the collectors seek to impose for their
own benefit, not that of the community. This is an ill-advised policy.

With respect to common assessments, we are not confused to the extent the
common assessments are composed of expenditures by the association. Our
objection is the inclusion of collection fees and costs within common
assessments that can be imposed exclusively against a particular unit and made
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to survive the nonjudicial foreclosure under a bank.

CHAIR WIENER:
The meeting is adjourned at 10:54 a.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Judith Anker-Nissen,
Committee Secretary

AFPROVED BY:

Senator Valerie Wiener, Chair

DATE:
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EXHIBITS

Bill | Exhibit | Witness / Agency Description

A Agenda

B Attendance Roster
SB, |C Randolph Watkins Welcome to HOA 101
174
SB. |D Senator Allison Copening Written Testimony
174
SB. |E Senator Allison Copening S.B. 174 Working Group
174
S8 |F Michael E. Buckley SB 174 -Explanation
174 /Section Summary
SB. |G Senator Allison Copening Clark County Proposed
174 Amendment
SB. {H Angela Rock Written Testimony

1174

S8 {1 Jonathan Friedrich Written Testimony
174 '
58 |J Rana Goodman Written Testimony
174 :
SB. | K Chris Ferrari Priority of Common
174 | Expense Assessiments
SB. L Ellen Spiegel Written Testimony
174
SB.|M Tim Stebbins Written Testimony
174
SB [N Norman McCullough Written Testimony
174
SB. |O Norman McCutlough Statement regarding
174 S.B. 174
SB. P Rutt Premsrirut Lien by Freddie Mac
174 $3,140
SB.{Q Rutt Premsriruk Lien by Freddie Mac
174 $3.862
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SB.|R Rutt Premsrirut Lien by Freddie Mac
174 ' $6,788
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY
SUBCOMMITTEE

Seventy-Sixth Session )
May 17. 2011 :

The Committee on Judiciary Subcommittee was called to order by Chairman
James Ohrenschali at 4:58 p-m. on Tuesday, May 17, 2011, in Room 3138 of
the Legislative Building, 407 South Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada. The
meeting was videoconferenced to Room 4406 of the' Grant Sawyer State
Office Building, 555 East Washington Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada. Copies of
the minutes, including the Agenda (Exhibi A}, the Attendance Roster
(Exhibit B), and other substantive exhibits, are available and on file in the
Research Library of the Legisiative Counsel Bureau and on the Nevada
Legistature's website at www leg.state.nv.us/76th201 t/committees/, In.
addition, copies of the audio record may be purchased through the Legisiative
Counsel Bureau's Publications Office (email: publications@lcb.state_nv.us:
telephone: 775-684-6835). |

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Assemblyman James Ohrenschall, Chairman
Assemblyman Richard Carrillo
Assemblyman Richard McArthur

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT:

None

GUEST LEGISLATORS PRESENT:

Assemblyman Tick Segerblom, Clark County District No. 9
Senator Allison Copening, Clark County Senatorial District No. 6

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Dave Ziegler, Committee Policy Analyst
Nick Anthony, Committee Counsel
Nancy Davis, Committee Secretary
Michael Smith, Committee Assistant

Minutes 10 1248

OMAs*
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OTHERS PRESENT:

Gary Lein, representing the Commission for Common-Interest
Communities and Condominium Hotels

Garrett  Gordon, representing Southemn Highlands Homeowners
Association

Jonathan Friedrich, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada

Michael Buckley, Chair, Commission for Common-Interest .Commurities
and Condominium Hotels

Michael Randolph, representing Homeowner Association Services Inc.,
Las Vegas, Nevada '

Alisa Nave, representing the Nevada Justice Association

Eleissa Lavelle, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada

Gaill Anderson, Administrator, Real .Estate Division, Department
of Business and industry

Michael Joe, representing Legai Aid Center of Southern Nevada

Chairman Ohrenschall:
[Roll taken.] Tonight we will attempt to finish our work session on the two

remaining bills. When we adjourmed our last meeting, we were working on
Senate Bill 204 (1st Reprint). We will begin where we left off.

Senate Bill 204 {1st Reprint}: Enacts certain amendments to the Uniform
Common-Interest Ownership Act. (BDR 10-298)

Dave Ziegler, Committee Policy Angiyst:

When we adjourned our last work session, we were on S.B. 204 {R1),
section 45. Perhaps we shouid forge through to the end and then, if necessary,

review a few sections that were discussed earlier.

Section 45 requires a homeowners' association (HOA) to maintain property,
liabllity, and crirne insurance subject. to reasonable deductibles.

[Continued to read from work session document (Exhibit C).)

Chairman Ohreﬁschall:
Were there any other amendments?

Dave Ziegler:
No.
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Chairman Ohrenschalf:
I believe the Committee members received an email from Senator Copening

about the crime insurance issue.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| received a copy also.

Senator Alfison Copening, Clark County Senatorial District No. 6:

| did not post the email to Nevada Electronic Legisiative Information Systemn
(NELIS). It was information that backs up the nead for HOAs to carry crime
insurance as It is the association's money that needs to be protected. | do not

think it stops an independent community association manager {CAM) from

carrying whatever insurance he or she would like to carry, but because it is the
responsibility of the association te protect its funds, it is a recormmendation in
the Unifarm Common-Interest Ownership Act that crime insurance be carried.
I believe there was a supplemental email from Mark Coolman to discuss the
fees, which are considered to be very nominal for the type of coverage,

Chairman Ohrenschall: \ _
Do you have any comments on the amendment proposed by Mr. Friedrich?

Senator Copening:
I would need to defer to Michael Buckley on that. | do not have the amendment

here. | think it stated the manager should carry the insurance and_not the
association.

Gary Lein, representing the Commission for Common-Interest Communities and

Condominium Hotels:
I feel that insurance is a coverage that should remain at the association level. It

Is those funds that need to be protected and we need to make sure the

insurance is there. We alsp need to ensure the crime insurance has the
appropriate endorsements extending to the employees of the association, its
agents, directors, volunteers, and community manager. -For coverage up to
$5 million of crime insurance with the appropriate endorsements, the cost
would be approximately.$3,200 per year for an association. That is $6.40 per
$10,000. For a very small association with $250,000 of protection, the annual
cost would be $5B2 per year, or $23.28 per $10,000. We fee! that is a
reasonable price to pay to know that the funds of the assoclation are protected.
As it relates to the cap, we had proposed this language so that it would be in
Sequence with the mortgage guidelines from Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, in
that there is currently no cap in those Federal mortgage quidelines.

I
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As a Commission, we had heard a case in Las Vegas this year where a hoard
member got onto the association's executive board and within a few months
Started embezzling. In that particular case, that person embezzled about
$64,000 over several months. This association is out those funds and had no
coverage. Had the association had this coverage in place, it would have
received that money back from the insurance company.

Another provision in this section is dealing with a no conviction requirement.
We know that the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department is stretched in

resources and in some cases the district attomey's office is as well, so it is -

important not to have a conviction requirement on the crime policy. | would
Support no cap, or at minimurm a cap at $5 million,

Chairman Ohrenschall:

Mr. Ziegier, the cap Mr. Friedrich proposed was how much?

Dave Ziegler:
$500,000,

Chairman Obrenschall:
Mr. Lein, you would propose a cap no lower than $5 miilion, correct?

Gary Lein:

That Is correct. You must realize there are some associations that have reserve
funds up to $70 million. ! do not believe $500,000 is adequate. The cost of
$3,200 for $5 million in coverage, when you are dealing with an association
with $5 million to $10 miflion in reserves, is a minimal fee. They have a
multimillion dollar budget and to protect those funds, | believe, is absolutely

worthwhile.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Any questions?

Assemblyman McArthur:
Is this where we decided to go with the $500,000 or the three months? There

are some very smali HOAs, if.we kept it at $500,000 or three months' revenue,
whichever Is less, which would cover the larger HOAs that have a large amount
of money coming in and the smaller HOAs would only have to go to $500,000,

Chsirman Ohrenschall:
The text of the original bill states, "Such insurance may not contain a conviction

requiremnent, and the minimum amount of the policy must be not fess .than an
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amount equal to 3 months of aggregate assessments on all units plus reserve
funds.” There is no mention of $5 miliion.

Assemblyman McArthur:
I am not sure what three months of aggregate assessments is for some of -the

farger HOAs, but | believe it is a pretty substantial amount.

Garrett Gordon, representing Scuthern Highlands Hemeowners Association:

in the case of Southern Hightands, there is $4 million to $5 million i reserves.
Per month assessments for three months is another $2 million to $3 million.
That Is why our concern is when you start adding up reserve funds and three
months of aggregated assessments, the premiums on those amounts would be
quite substantial. If it got too high, we would have to increase the assessments
of the homeowners. On behalf of Southern Highlands, we would ask that a
reasonable amount would be three months of assessments or $500,000,
whichever is less. There would be a cap of $500,000 and three months
assessments for smaijler associations.

‘ Chairman Ohrenschall:
Would that be less than the $5 million that Mr., Lein proposed?

Garrett Gordon: . ..
Yes, It is significantly less. - | think Mr. Lein is proposing $5 million;
Southern Highlands is proposing $500,000 or three months of assessments,

whichever is less.

Assemblyman McArthur:
Approximately what are these three months worth?

Garrett Gordon:
Around $2 million worth of assessments for three months,

Assemblyman McArthur:
So that is still under the $5 miliion mark?

Garrett Gerdon: .
Correct. Howaver, with the language | am recommending, "whichever is

tower," then it would go to the $500,000 cap.

Assemblyman McArthur:
I am talking about the larger HOAs,
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
Would you be comfortable with the three months aggregate assessments or

£500,000?

Gary Lein: :
I think that is too little for the jarger HOAs. 1 think for an association that has
$10 million in reserves and monthly expenses of approximately $700,000 per
month, overall, $5 million at a cost of $3,200 per year, with all the proper
endorsements is a very small price to pay to have that type of insurance and
that type of protection. | think $500,000 for larger HOAs is just too small,
especially with the incremental value to obtain the greater coverage. | show
that for a policy for $1 mitiion, the annual premium would be $1,160,

Assemblyman McArthur;
Basically we are talking about roughly $1,100 per $1 million?

Gary Lein:

Yes, at $25,000 worth of coverage, the annual premium would be $145. For
$250,000 worth of coverage, the cost would be $582; $71 million costs
. $1,160; and the price for $5 million is $3,200. Again, | think the important
thing is to be in line with the guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

Assemblyman McArthur:
You said for $5 million the annual premium is $3, 200‘?

Gary Lein: -
Correct. : .

Assembiyman McArthur:
Initially [ think you said it was around $1,100 for $1 million. So the premium P

drops as the coverage goes up? )

Gary Lein:

Comrect. The price per $10,000 of coverage on a $1 miilion policy is $11.60.
The price per $10,000 of coverage on a $5 million policy is $6.40. So, for the
smaller HOA that is trying to cover $250,000, it is $23.28 per $10,000.

Chairman Dhrenschall:
Do we want to decide on this section now, or wait until vwe go through the rest .

of the sections?
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Jonathan Frledrich, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada: )

The way the law is written, this is a two-step process. | have never ohjectéd to
the three months of the aggregate assessment. | have been told that
Sun City Summerlin, which has 7,781 homes, receives monthly dues of
approximately $30,000. My concern was that all the reserves be covered under
the crime insurance policy. | believe Sun City Surnmerlin has about $13 miilion

in its reserve fund. Before someone could embezzie that huge amount of -

money, |would think that flares would be going up, but they could take
$10,000 to $50,000. That is why | came up with the $500,000. Most of the
HOAs in the state are small and have nowhere near what Sun City Summerlin or
Sun City Anthem have. Also, why should the HOA be forced to pay for the
crime insurance that the CAM should pay? It is a cost of doing business an
behalf of the CAM, just as they pay their own workers' compensation, rent, and
office supplies. The HOA should not have to pay for a business expense.

Gary lein:

! do not want to rebut Mr. Friedrich, but the problem is that not all HOAs are
professionally managed. There are a number of self-managed HOAs. The CAM
would have to have coverage, but that coverage is not going to cover the
executive board, the volunteers, or the directors. The CAM cannot have an
endorsement to cover the executive board for fraud or embezzlement. We feel
that the coverage has 1o be at the level of the HOA protecting and insuring the
executive board, the employees, the directors, the agents, the management

cormpany, and the CAM,

Assemblyman McArthur:

I might offer a compromise here. If we keep the wording as it currently is, three
months of aggregate assessments plus reserve funds up to a2 maximum of
$5 million. That way all the smaller HOAs can use the three months aggregate
assessments and the larger HOAs will not have to go higher than $5 million.

Gary Lein:
| would not have an objection to that compromise.

Assemblyman McArthur: ) .
As far as covering everyone else, | think most of these policies actually cover

everyone including the managers. | do not think that is a problem.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
[ have gotten a nod from both Mr., Gordon and Mr. Friedrich on this

compromise.
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Dave Ziegler:
Section 48 amends provisions relatlng to common expenses benefitting fewer

than all of the units or caused by a unit owner, a tenant, or an invitee.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
There is an exception for when somezone has a delivery; if the delivery driver

hits a common area, the person receiving the delivery is not liable,

Assemblyman McArthur:
| have no problem with section 48.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| am good with this one also.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| did not know what the intent of this was. But, it is a benefit, so | agree with

it.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
] believe the intent was to exempt the unit owner from liability For wiliful
misconduct or gross negligence of the invitee, the driver.

Dave Zieglar: ,
Section 49 provides that reasonable attomey's fees and costs and sums due to -

an HOA under the declaration, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 116, or

as a result of an administrative, arbitration, mediation, or judicial decision are
enforceable in the same manner as unpald assessments.

[Continued to read from work session document {Exhibit C).]

Chairman Ohrenschall: ‘ o
Ms. Schuman's amendment seems reasonable to me. -

Jonathan Friedrich:
| have a copy of the amendment, it is five pages long. :

Chairman Ohrenschall: ;
Thank you. We have it up here. . P

Dave Ziegler:
This amendment is in your packet.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:

Page 4, line 20 of the amendment states: "Following the trustee's sale or
foreclosure sale of a security interest described in paragraph (b} of subsection 2
of NRS 116.3116, upon payment to the association of the amounts described in
subsection 3, any unpaid amounts of the lien accruing before such sale remain
the personal obligation of the owner of the unit as of the time the amount
became due, but no longer constitute a lien upan the unit.” That is quite a
change from current law,

Michael Buckley, Chasir, Commission for Common-interest Communities and

Condominium Hotels:
| was involved in writing that amendment, The idea we were addressing Is at

the bottom of page 3. We think this would have a positive effect, and that Is™

the way the law is currently written. The HOA's super priority lien dates fram
when the HOA starts the foreciosure., There is a statutory reason for an HOA to
start the foreclosure. This amendment will measure the super priority lien, not
just from the HOA starting the foreclosure, but also from the first mortgagee's

Foreclosure sale. In that respect there is not an incentive for the HOA to start

the foreclosure if it knows it will get Its super priority lien when the first lender
forecloses. We took that language from the Coforado Uniform Common Interest
Ownership Act. The language that you read on page 4 of the amendment was
intended to address the idea that when there is a foreclosure sale and the super
priority lien is paid off; there is no mare lien. |t remains of record because liens

remain of record, but the HOA no longer has a Hen for any unpaid amounts.

Once the foreclosure of the first mortgage has cccurred, someone cannot try to
enforce the HOA lien for the old owner, who is gone. The amount.that a
homeowner owes when he buys a unit is not only a lien, it is. a personal
obligation, so the fact that there has been a foreclosure does not wipe out the”
fact that the money is owed. We have never heard of an HOA suing anyone,
but it is like a utility bill; there may be a lien, but there is also a personal
obligation. The intent of the law is if there is a foreclosure of the first
mortgage, the HOA receives a super priority payment. Once that super priority
payment is made, the lien is gone, and the unit is free from any len from the
prior owner.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Currently, are HOAs going after the prior owners?

Michael Buckley:
We have heard of instances where an HOA fles a tien For $5,000 and the’'super

priority lien Is $1,000. When the foreclosure of the first mortgage occurs,
$1,000 is all that gets paid. There is a $5,000 lien of record. We have heard
of situations where a collection agency or an HOA might try and assert a lien
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against the new owner for $4,000. This amendment is to ensure that the lien is
removed from the property. A lien by definition is an interest against property.

Chairman Ohrenschatl:
Do you think this will make HOAs more or less whole in terms of their ability to

recover these amounts owed to them?

Michael Buckiey: .
When a mortgage is foreclosed, it wipes out all junior liens. That is the law. If
you are in the title industry, you know that when you foreclose a senior lien it
wipes out all the junior liens. Since it does not say that in NRS Chapter 116,
you do have a lien of record that says the HOA is owed money, but once the
foreclosure occurs, the lien is gone once the super priority lien has been paid.
This amendment is not intended to change the law. !t is intended to ensure that
it is clear that once the super priority fien is paid, the lien the HOA has for the
past due assessments against the unit is gone.

Chajrman Ohrenschall:
Any guestions? {There were none.]

Michael Rendolph, representing Homeowner Association Services Inc..
Las Vegas, Nevada:

Mr. Buckley was referring to the recording of the priority of liens which is over

in NRS Chapter 107. Since NRS 116.311 orginally came from

NRS Chapter 107, that is where it is. The idea behind removing the leftover

amounts due from the property is to give clear title to the succeeding purchaser,

whether it be an investor at the auction or a bank who resells it. | have heard

of events where the super priority lien portion and collection fees were paid, yet -

the person attempting to collect was still attempting to collect amounts far
greater than leftover amounts due from the prier homgowner, which were not in

the super priority lien. They were trying to collect It from the new homeowner, , -
which is a total aberration. When the lien is stripped off the property once the ’

super priority lien portion has been paid, it protects the future homeowners,

Chairman Ohrenschall: . .
The part of the amendment on page 4, lines 18 through 25, is that in another

Senate biil also?

Michael Buckley:

Yes, that is the language that we put in Senate Bill 174. Just to clarify, this is
a State Bar Real Property section bill and the language in section 2 of the
proposed amendment on page 3 is about Fannie Mae regulations, | would
mention that cumently the Fannie Mae regulations are referred to for the length
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of the super priority ien. When Nevada went from six to nine months, that
language was put in bécause in condominiums, Fannie Mae regulations are
limited to six months, This proposal would add not only the time portion of the
super priority lien, but the amounts of fees and collection costs would be limited
by Fannie Mae guidelines. The other thing | would like to point out is that
| have had this debate about what exactly Fannie Mae says about these fees.
Some would argue that Fannie Mae prohibits the payment of coliection costs
and only permits the payment of assessments. | have found language that

states that the coliection costs can be paid in addition to the assessments. -

| think that if we adopt this language which now refers back to Fannie Mae
requlations for collection costs, we will be injecting much more uncertainty into
what must be paid at foreclosure, which | do not think is a good idea. It seems
that the idea of a law is to make things more certain than less certain. That is
why it was limited in the past to just the time and not the costs.

Chairman Ohrenschall: .
So you are seeing that there would be a conflict between the six months that

Fannie Mae allows for condominiums and the nine-month super priority lien?

Michael Bucldey:
No. The way the law is currently written, there is mno conflict because

Fannie Mae limits condominiums to six months and our statute says nine
-months unless Fannie Mae says six months. [ think the proposed amendment
language would make things uncertain because I am not convinced that
Fannie Mae regulations address this. For example, when Fannie Mae appraves a
project, there are regulations that address whether the project is approved for
Fannie Mae financing. The other part of the process that Fannie Mae deals with
is when there has actually been a loan that was sold to Fannie Mae because it
was an approved praject, and now Fannie Mae holds the mortgage. There is a
different set of regulations that deal with what Fannie Mae will pay if it is
foreclosing. There is also the lender who made the loan and sold the [oan to
Fannie Mae. There are different regulations that apply there aiso. [ think this
language, which would refer to Fannie Mae guidelines on how much collection

costs you pay, is creating uncertainty.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
So you have concems with the first part of the amendment, but you are all right

with the section that comes from 5.B. 1747

Michael Buckley:
That is correct.
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Assemblyman Carrillo: .
Assessments are the HOA's lifeblood. If we pass this bill and eliminate all the
assessments from the previous owner, are we removing the lifeblood of an
HOA? How will this affect the HOAs? If the HOA is dependent an the
assessments, it will have to make up the difference by increasing the
assessments for the rest of the homeowners.

Michae! Buckley:

We are not changing the super priority lien, It will be six to nine months, which
is what the law states now. Once an HOA gets paid the super priority lien, it
no longer has a lien against the unit. That is existing law. When an investor
buys a unit and resells it, it is great for the association who gets new owners
because they start paying the dues on the unit that was foreclosed. If thereis a
problem with title, If the new owner has some guestion about having to pay the
old owner's assessments, that affects the ability of those units to sell.” We are
not changing the law or the super priority lien. What we are trying to do is to

clear up the title once the association has been paid its super priority lien. The .

association can only get the super priority lien if there Is a foreclosure by the
first mortgage. If there is no foreclosure by the first mortgage, the HOA could
foreclose. Super priority len deals only with the foreclosure by the first
mortgage. When that has been paid, the old lien is gone, and the unit can go
on the marketplace with a clean slate.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
You also stated that this will protect investors. Obvjously, homeowners are

now purchasing homes at the same prices that were paid 15 years ago, the
whole purpase of this bill is to protect investors, then this is missing the point.

Michael Buckiay:

[ think you make a very good point. Currently homes are very affordable.
People can now afford to buy a home, and may want to buy a foreclosed unit
from the bank. The association or an unscrupulous collection company could
say, "There is a $4,000 lien on your property.” The first-time homebuyer does
not know whether he has to pay that or not. This is not a guestion of
protecting the investor; it is a question of protecting the new owner.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Any other questions? [There were none.]

Garrett Gordon:

I would echo Mr. Buckiey's testimony. We have no objection to the language
from S.B. 174. We do strongly object to the amendment on page 1. This deals
with collection costs. There has been a huge debate over the last couple
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months about timing of collections, costs of collections, and as this body
knows, we have been in discussions about coming up with a reasonable
compromise. This language was introduced by the investors in order to make
this a collection bill.- | would object to putting this language into a State Bar
Real Property Section bill.” We are trying to go through the uniform changes and
not make this a controversial collection bill. Secondly, -Senatar Copening
handed out an amendment to this section which adds three words,
"Chapter 116 regulations” (Exhibit D). 1 just wanted to ensure that is on the

record.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Senator Copening's amendment has been posted on NELIS.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| guess there is a difference between the statutes and regulations in

NRS Chapter 116.

Chalrman Ohrenschall: )
This amendment states, ". . . any other sums due to the assoclation under the

declaration, this chapter, Chapter 116 regulations, or as a result of ‘an
administrative, arbitration, mediation or judicial decision are enforceable in the
same manner as unpaid assessments . . . ." Are we broadening the scope of
fines that could be due?

Garrett Gordon: .
| believe the intent was not to broaden the scope, but as we all know, NRS is

the umbrella. Underneath it are regulations approved by the Commission on

Common-interest Communities and Condominjum Hotels (CICCH). -The
Commission has delegated authority o cap, limit, and create costs and fines,
1 believe this would tighten this section up for the purpose of regulations that

the NRS delegates to the Commission,
Chalrman Ohrenschall: .
So you do see any breadening of things that people may be liable for in terms of

fines?

Garrett Gordon:

This is from Senator Copening, and | do not know whether it broadens it or not..
There are regulations that deal with fines, costs, and charges. | think .
Senator Copening's intent was to encourage those regulations to be called out -~

here in this Chapter and with the declaration., One could interpret this as
broadening and cne could interpret this as narrowing. .
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Chairman Ohrenschall;
Any ather questions? [There were none.} Mr. Friedrich, would you like to

address that amendment?

Janathan Friedrich: .
Only 15 percent of the homes that are sold in foreclosure are sold to investars.
Those investors are risking their capital. They are paying cash. They are
making the associations viable in that they are restoring the homes, paying the
fees to the association, paying taxes, and giving employment to the contractors
who are restoring these homes. They are allowing brokers to make a
commission on the resale of the property. I see it as a win-win situation.

Regarding the amendment, | was concerned with the wording on section 49,
page 47, lines 27 to 33. It would hold a unit owner respansible for all the
attomey's fees and costs. "Other fees and charges” Is'very vague. It puts a
unit owner at a disadvantage by making him susceptible to huge attormney fees.
You gentlemen have seen some of the documentation that | supplied earlier
where the attorpey's fees and costs are hurled at homeowners.,  If you are
chasing after the homeowner for anything beyond the nine-month super priarity
lien, the homeowner would be forced to tile bankruptey.  In that case the
assoclation gets nothing; the attorney would be the winner. The other issue is
on page 49, lines 19 to 28, which talks about a receiver, | have heard some
horror staries abour how much receivers charge for their services. | wauld
suggest some soft of a percentage of the costs that are involved for the
receivers. In essence, there should be a cap on the fees for the receivers’

services.

Chairman Ohrenschall: ) .
Your comment about the bankruptcy and the association nat getting anything,

can you go over that again?

Janathan Friedrich:

It is section 48, page 47, lines 27 to 33. If someaone is walking away from his
property and is being foreclosed on, ! read this that the individual would then be
subject to all of the additional costs. Line 33 states . . . in the same manner
as unpaid assessments . . . ." Mr. Buckley advised me that the amendment by
Ms. Schulman would remove that burden on a foreclosed homeowner.

Aichael Buckley:
Just to remind you where this all started, which was a Uniform Act proposal.

The comment from the Uniform law Commission on subsection 1° states:
"Subsection 1 is amended to add the cost of the association’s reascnable
attorney's fees and cowrt costs to the total valué of the association's existing

.
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super lien, The increased amount of the association's lien has been approved
by Fannie Mae and local Jlenders and has become a significant tool in the
successful collection efforts enjoyed by associations in that state.” That was
referring to Connecticut. | think it goes back to Mr. Carrillo’s point that
associations need the ability to recover the costs incurred to collect unpaid
assessments. If the association cannot recover these costs from the defaulting
owner, it will be forced to pass those expenses on to the paying owners. To
put it Into perspective, our proposal was just to add the language which was
adopted by the Uniform Law Commission.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
\We definitely have some concerns with this section and the amendments. We

will come back to them later. Mr. Ziegler, can we backtrack to Mr. Segerblam’s
amendment?

Assemblyman Tick Segerblom, CGlark County Assembly District No. 9:

When | was here last week, | was seeking to remove a phrase that said "except
for . . .." Mr. Anthony convinced me that { did not need to remove it. In
retrospect, 1 think it would be wise if we could remove that phrase.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
I think we have a mock-up of your proposed amendment.

Dave Ziegler:

That is correct. There is a mock-up prepared by the Legal Division, datgd:'

Maey 9, 2011. Itis part of your packet. Section 34 shows what Mr. Segerblom
is referring to on lines 32 and 33. What Mr. Segerblom is proposing is also the
same that others are proposing. This is one case where ail thase who seek an
amendment in this section are saying the same thing.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Segerblom's proposal amends sections 21, 30, and 34 of the bill.

Assemblyman Segerblom:
The Committee agreed to support sections 271 and 30 amendments. Section 34

-

i5 the only one left.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
Any feelings from the Committee?

Assemblyman Segerblom: .
My amendment to section 34 deals with not allowing the board to amend the

declaration, and that it must be done at the vote of the members,
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Michael Buckley:
| would just like to note for the record that we have no objection to this

amendment.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| am okay with this amendment.

Assemblyman Cariillo:
| am okay with the amendment as written.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
S0 as a recommendation for the full Committee, we are all in agreement with

the proposed amendment by Mr. Segerblom.

Dave Ziegler:
It is my understanding that you will take section 43 under advisement and move

on to section 507

Chalrman Ohrenschaell: .
Correct. 1 think we need a little more titme to reach a comfort level,

Dave Ziegler:

Section 50 provides that a judgment for money against an HOA is a lien on real
property of the association. To expand further, this is a lien on property of the
association, in addition to the common elements. The idea is that the HOA may
have real property that is not part of the common elements.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
As I recall this could be a lien on real property not within the association. Mr.
Buckley, is this language from the Uniform Law Commissioners? :

Michael Buckley: :
Yes, that language is from the Uniform Act. Earlier in the bill there is language

that makes it clear that an assoclation could own other real property, such as a
parking lot or a golf course. Qbviously if the association owes money, the lien

is on that property as well,

Chairman Chrenschall: .
So this exempts all common elements within the association, but other real

property both within the state or outside the state could be subject to that
Jjudgment lien.
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Michael Bucklay:
That is correct,

Chalrman Ohrenschall:

I am all right with this section. | do not recall any testimony against this,
Currently, without this change, the judgment lienholder may still be able to go
against real property if it is outside the association, correct?

Michael Buckley:
| think that is correct, and this is more of a clarification.

Chairman Chrenschall: -
I agree this is more of a clarification. If someone has a judgment against you,

he or she could put-a lien on your real property, regardless of where it is,

Assemblyman McArthur:
| do not know whether this is just clarification, but | can go with it and move

‘on.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
| assume this is language from the Uniform Act to just clarify things.
Mr. Carsiflo are you okay with this? Let the record show that Mr. Carrillo

nodded his head that he is okay with section 50.

Dave Ziegler:

Sections 57 and B0 contain provisions that are virtbally identical to sections 2
and 3 of Senate Bill 30 (1st Reprint), which this subcommittee approved at the
last work session and which the full Assembly Committee on Judiciary approved
in the work session yesterday. That point may be moot. We could either
amend this out of the bill, or lfeave it in and ensure it conforms ~with
S.B. 30 (R1). | would make the same comment on the proposed armendment
from Yvonne Schuman because ! think we covered that in the amendment for L
S.B. 30 _(R1). The only thing that would remain on the table is a proposed -

amendment from Mr. Friedrich to add a $25 per day penalty if the HOA does

not produce books and records within 14 days.

Chairman Chrenschall: .
So we could delete sections 51 and 60 or keep them in because they are

identical to sections 2 and 3 of 5.B. 30 {R1). The amendment that
Yvonne Schuman has proposed seems identical to something we proposed

earlier.

Dave Ziegler: .
It is identical to the action we took on S.B. 30 (R1).
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Chalrman Ohrenschali:
Mr. Friediich’'s amendment is new, having a penalty to the HOA for not

producing books and records after 14 days.

Jonathan Friedrich:
There have been many Instances where boards and their management

companies refused to tumn over the books and records even though it is already
in statute. The statute calls for 14 days. This gives that part of the statute
some teeth to ensure these books and records, when requested, are turned over

to the individual.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
i would like to remind Mr. Friedrich and Mr. Buckiey that we are in a work

session, and while we appreciate everyone's knowledge and input, please Ieaue .

it to Us to call on you when we need information.

We have other provisions like this cumently, correct? If an HOA is not
complying, there are different kinds of fines or penaltfes that can be imposed.
Thisis not something out of the ordinary for the amendment to go Forward.

Michael Buckley:
I do not believe there is a specific penalty. | think the process is that if the

request is not honored, the requester wouid go to the Ombudsman who would
then request the information. If the HOA failed to comply, the Commission has
the authority to impose a penalty or a fine on an HOA, or anyone who violates
NRS Chapter 116. It is in the process, but there is no dollar amount. - it would

have to go through the Real Estate Division in the Department -bf -

Business and Industry.

Chairman Ohrenschall: )
So, an aggrieved homeowner who did not receive the records that he requested

could go through the process with the Ombudsman and potentially get a fine
against the HOA right now.

Michael Buckley:
I think that is corect. The Commission focuses more on gettlng the documents

rather than on fining, since if there is a fine, all the owners have to pay.

Jonathan Friedrich:
The process that Mr. Buckley just mentloned can take upwards of one Lo two

years. In the meantime, the homeowner has been deprived of those records. [t

is a very costly process for the Office of the Ombudsman ‘for Owners in .

r

W

"
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Common-Interest Communities and Condominium Hotels and for the
Commission.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
So you envision this amendment to be swiftly enforced?

Jonathan Friedrich:
That is correct. This gives the existing statute some teeth that are currently

missing. .

Chairman Ohrenschall:

| see the intent, but | am thinking it may not actually work, The fines may not
be imposed for some time, and a determination may need to be made whether
there is some type of willful desire to withhold those records.

Garrett Gordon:
I concur with your comments, Mr. Chatrman. {t would be very difficult to

enforce. As Mr. Buckley indicated, if you start assessing arbitrary fines, who

pays that? All the other homeowners would have tc pay that cost. | wo'uld_

submit to you that there Is already a process, as indicated, for a remedy for an
agagrieved homeowner,

Chegirman Ohrenschall:
Any questions regarding the proposed amendment?

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| am okay with the amendment.

Chalrman Ohrenschail:
Mr. McArthur?

Assemblyman McArthur:
| have the same concern; once you start charging these fees, the other

homeowners are paying for it.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Perhaps there is 2 way to draft this so it can be at the. discretion . . .

Assemblyman McArthur:
‘} think $25 per day is a little steep, also.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Perhaps it can be at the discretion of the Ombudsman?
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Assemblyman McArthur:
} think we already have that process. We need to either put teeth in it with

some money or leave it like it is without the amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Carrillo, are you okay with-the $25 per day for not releasing the documents
in 14 days? [s this a prablem you see often that HOAs are not releasing the

requested documents?

Asssmblyman Carriljo:
Personally, in the dealings | have had with HOAs, they seem to be pretty

compliant. | am not saying other experiences are not valid, but it may be on a

case-by-case basis. Anytime you hit someone in the pocketbook, regardless .

whether it s an HOA or anyone else, they will respond to it.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| think $25 is a big hit.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

Although the HOA would have had 14 days to comply, but then if it went
another 10 days, that would be $250. For a small association, that is a big hit. .-
I recall in another bill we gave homeowners three weeks to remedy a situatior. .* -

Assemblyman McArthur:
Would this penalty be enough to sting an association? As a compromise, we
could keep the penalty at $25 per day, but give the HOA four weeks {0 produce

the records.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
I am okay with the three weeks.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

That would be consistent with our other bill wherée we gave the homeowner R

three weeks to comply.

Chairman Chrenschall:

| would propase for us to report to the full Committee that we will accept .

Sections 51 and 60. They are duplicative of sections 2 and 3 of S.B. 30 (R1).
We will accept Yvonne Schuman’s amendment and we will accept
Mr. Friedrich’'s amendment. However, we will amend it to 21 days instead of

14 days.
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Dave Ziegler:

Section 62 exempts the disposition of a unit restricted to nonresidential
purposes from the requirement to provide a public offering statement or
certificate of resale. It also deletes a provision applicable to small HOAs that is

covered in NRS 116.1203.

{Chairman Ohrenschall feft the room. Assemblyman Carrillo assumed the Chair.]

Acting Chairman Carillo:
Mr. McArthur, do you have any concerns with section 527

Dave Ziegler: )
I think that there can be nonresidential common-interest communities and

nonresidential components within residential common-interest communities.

Acting Chairman Carrilio:
This appears to be adding to the disposition of a unit restricted to nonresrdentlal

purpases; it struck out p[anned communities.

Assemblyman McArthur;
I am okay with this section,

Acting Chairman Carrillo;
Mr. Ziegler, we are ckay with section 52,

Dave Ziegler:

Section 53 amends the information required to be included in the public offering
statement provided to an initiai purchaser of a wnit, including any restraints or
alienation on the common-interest community (CIC) and tha ‘HOA's budget

information.

Assemblyman McArthur:
Does this exempt the nonresidential use? [ am okay with this section,

Acting Chairman Carriflo:’
Okay. Mr. Ziegler,

Dave Ziegler:

Section 55 requires an HOA to charge a unit owner not more than 10 cents per
page after the first 10 pages for the cost of copying documents furnished in a
resale package. It also provides that the purchaser, rather than the seller, is not
liable for a delinquent assessment if the HOA fails to furnish documents required
in a resale package within the 10 days allowed by this section. . There is a

-
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proposed amendment from Yvonne Schuman to provide that if the documents
exist in electronic fermat, they must be provided, upon request, by email and at
no charge.

Acting Chairman Carrillo: ) :
Mr. McArthur? .

. Assembiyman McArthur:
I may have missed something. Were there three points to this section?

Dave Ziegler: )
There is the cost per page, the substitution of purchaser for seller, and a

proposed amendment from Yvonne Schuman regarding if the documents exist in
an electronic format, they must be provided by email upon request at no charge.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| armn okay with this.

Acting Chaitrman Canrilla:
I am okay with the proposed amendment. At that point the homeowner can

provide an email address and it can be sent free,

Assemblyman MecArthur: ) :
t agree. :

[Chairman Ohrenschall reassumed the Chair.]

Assemblyman Carrilio:
We are discussing the proposed amendment from Yvonne Schuman on

section 55. o .

Chairman Ohrenschall:
| am okay with that also.

Dave Ziegler:
Section 56 addresses warranties made to a purchaser of a unit and provides

that such warranties are made by a declarant, rather than any seller. There is a
proposed amendment from the Nevada Justice Association to retain the

language of the existing statute.
Assemblyman McArthur:

Does that mean we are putting seller back in instead of taking it out, and we
have to do that by amendment? .
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Chairman Ohrenschali;
| believe so. | believe Ms. Dennison had no problem with that.

Dave Ziegler:
| do not recall. The proposal from the Nevada Justice Association is to retain

the existing statute.
1

Alisa Nave, representing the Mevada Justice Assoclation: '
Regarding section 56, we are asking for a return to the original language, - :
replacing "declarant” with “seller.” The declarant is a master plan developer,
and typically is responsible for the  larger development of the parks, roads,
amenities, a country club, and those things that go with a larger community.
The builders will then build out the individual units, and sell them to the buyer.
The warranties with regard to the specific unit should be placed on the seller
and not the declarant. We think that makes more sense within the context of

this section.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Is my recollection correct that Ms. Dennison had no problem with this?

Alisa Mave:
That is correct.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
This is something | am supportive of. Mr. McArthur?

Assembliyman McArthur:
Yes, | am okay with it.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
! think we can proceed.

Dave Ziegler: )
Section 58 authorizes an HOA board to create an independent committee of the -

board to evaluate, enforce, and compromise warranty claims, and provides rules
for such a committee. There is a proposed amendment by Mr, Friedrich to
delete the word "compromise” &t page 60, line 21.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Carrillo, while you stepped out of the room, we reviewed section 56 and

the proposed amendment. Are you okay with that?
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Assemblyman Carrillo;
| am okay with section 58.

Chalrman Ohrenschail:
We are now reviewing section 58 and the proposed amendment,

Assemblyman McArthur:
Perhaps as a compromise, we could use the word "address” in place of

"compromise.”

Chairman Ohrenschali:
I think you and Nick Anthony are legal geniuses. | am surprised that was not

caught earlier. | support that. Mr, Carillo?

Assemnblyman Carrillo;
| am fine with that.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Friedrich, are you okay with changing "compromise” to “address"?

Jonathan Friedrich:
| am ecstatic.

Chairman DOhrenschall:
We are all in agreement and propose to accept the amendment, but instead of

deleting "compromise,” we will replace it with the word "address.”
g P p

Dave Ziegler:

I would like to point out that what | am about to say is cusrent law. Section 59
provides that members of an HOA board are not personally liable to victims of
crimes occurring on the property, and provides that punitive damages may not
be awarded against an HOA or its board or officers under certain circurmnstances,
Those two things are in cumrent law. The new provision is that the CICCH is
not prohibited from taking disciplinary action against a member of an
HOA board.

Assemblymean McArthur:
I am okay with this section.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
This section is duplicative of everything except for subsection 8 on page 67.
Subsection B states, "The provisions of this section do not prohibit the
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Commission from taking any disciplinary action against a member of an
executive board pursuant to NRS 116.745 to 116.795, inclusive.”

Assemblyman McArthur:
| do not have a problem with that.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| am fine with subsection B of section 59.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
All three of us are fine with subsection 8 of section 59, and the rest of it is

duplicative. "

Dave Zisgler: -
Section 59.5 deletes the requirement that a community manager must post a

bond.

Chairman Ohrenschall: )
| am trying to remember what the testimony was in support of removing the

reguirement for a manager posting a bond.

Michae! Buckley:
This is the flip side of requiring the HOA to have crime insurance, This was

passed in 2008 with the thought that this was the best way to protect the
HOA. When the Commission held hearings on this issue, the Commission heard
testimony from the insurance experts that crime insurance was the best way to
provide security. It alsc found that to require a manager—and a manager is the
individual, not the company—to post the bond would be mostly cost prohibitive
to that individual. An example was given of a8 young person starting out who
did not have a super credit rating. The cost for the bond would be very
expensive, The bond would also be very low and would not protect the HOA.
The Commission feels that the best way to protect the HOA is through crime
insurance, not the bonds for the managers.

Chairman Ohrenschell;
Currently, do the managers have to be bonded?

Michael Buckley: .
The statute required the Commission to come up with regutations on what these

bonds would look Jike. Frankly, we were unable to find anyone who could tell
us what these bonds were. They are required to have a bond, but there is really
no such thing that is avzilable.
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Assemblyman McArthur:
Basically | think we are covered by the other part of this bill with the crime

insurance.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
F am fine with this.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
We are all in agreement with deleting the requirement of bonding the managers.

Dave Ziegler:

That concludes the printed portion of the bill. There are a few thmgs still on the
table. There are three amendments that have been proposed that would be
added to-the bill. We alsc have said at the outset that we need to go back and
review a couple of sections. The first additional amendment was proposed by
Jonathan Friedrich. It would add a new section. It is copied in the work
session document, It begins with, "The fee for a mediater or arbitrator selected
or appointed pursuant to this section must not exceed $1,000, unless a greater
fee is authorized for good cause shown."”

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Is this new language being proposed? This is dupl[catwe language that was also

in Assembly Bill 448.

Assemblyman McArthur:
It appears as though this would put a cap of $1,000 and each party will spht

the fees.

Chairmen Ohrenschall;
As | recall, this was 1o be in iine with the Nevada Supreme Court Rule 24

which caps arbitrator fees at $1,000 with exceptions for good cause.

Jonathan Friedrich:

The reason for this amendment is that even though A.B. 448 passed through

the Assembly 42 to 0, someone added a fiscal note to the bill. It has been sent

to die over in the Senate Committee on Finance. |f that happens, then this a

provision, which was approved in A.B. 448, would not be included.

Chairman Ohraenschall;

We are all hopeful that your prognosis is premature; while the patient is on life )

support, it will pull through and walk out of that hospital, and receive a clean bill
of health. | have a "probably okay” from Mr. McArthur. Mr. Carrilio?
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Michael Bucklay:
For clarification, this is a bill dealing with the Uniform Commoan- !nterest

Ownership Act. The next bill on your agenda deals with arbitration-and
altemative dispute resolution, and that is probably the best place for -this
amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
{ think that is" a valid point and perhaps we should consider addlng this to

Senate Bill 254 (1st Reprint).

Dave Ziegler: - .
The next proposed additional amendment was from Trudy Lytie. [t would

amend NRS 116.12065, which is entitled, "Notice of changes to governing
documents,” to make it applicable to small planned communities also.

Chairman Ohrenscheli: -
l believe this was covered by Mr. Segerblom's amendment. We have already

approved this. It is in Mr. Segerblom's mock-up.

Dave Ziegler: ‘
The next proposed new amendment was submitted by Garrett Gordon It would

amend NRS 116.310305, relating to construction penalties. A copy of this
amendment is in your packet. .

Garrett Gordon: ' :
This amendment is to clarifiy NRS 116.310305, which gwe.s the power to the

executive board to impose penalties for failure of a unit's owner to adhere to
certain schedules relating to design, construction, occupancy, or use of an
improvement. The intent behind this section was to mitigate inconvenience to
other unit owners, for instance, noise, dust, and construction traffic, giving the
board the ability to impose penalties. This amendment will clarify the .2003
legislation regarding where the maximum amount of the penalty should be set

forth. In brief, the new language is, "The right to assess -and collect a -

construction penalty is set forth in: (1) The declaration; (2) another
document . ...” Again, where "the maximum allowable penalty” set forth
should be made available in a notice and "as part of the resale package that is
required under NRS 116.4109 (a)." In summary, this amendment clarifies

exactly where the maximum amount of the penalty needs to be, given the

declarations that existed prior to 2003. We are adding a provision that this
notice of a schedule and notice of what construction penaities may be imposed
are, in fact, part of the resale package so all buyers, which includes custom and

speculationt home builders, are aware of what remedy is available to the HDA,™
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Again, the intent of this section is to mitigate inconvenience to neighbors .

regarding noise, dust, construction traffic, et cetera,

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Are there any questions?

Assemblyman McArthur: .
For clarification, when you talk zbout construction penaity, | think about some

sort of building, but what we really are talking about is the schedufing. s this
wording clear enough?

Garrett Gordon: .
Yes, this does deal with the schedule. Y9u wil see the amendment discusses

completion and commencement to mitigate any impact on the neighbors. The
term construction penalty is used In this section, so | think it is clear that it does

deal with a schedule.

Assemblyman McArthur:
In that case, | am fine with this amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Gordon can you elaborate on what the confusion was after the passage of

the statute in 2003? Has there been litigation with these penalties?

Garrett Gordon:

In 2003, this legislative body added this language regarding that the maximum
amount of the penalty must be set forth in the declaration, in a recorded
document, or in a contract between the unit owner and the HOA. There has
been confusion and questions in the industry regarding declarations existing
prior to 2003. it is clear that in order to collect and assess a construction
penalty, it must be set forth in the declaration. Regarding the maximum amount
of the penalty, from my understanding, in many HOAs, this information is I the

rules and regulations, or another document approved by tie board, which can -

be amended very easily by the board. This amendment would say the right to
assess and collect a construction penalty must be codified in the declaration.
To ensure all buyers are on notice of what this penalty could be, it must be.in

the resale package.

Chairman Ohrenschall: _
So the confusion is within the industry. Has there been litigation?
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Garrett Gordon:

To my knowledge there has been no litigation. This has been dealt with through
arbitration or mediation. | have heard there is some question regarding
declarations prior to 2003. My understanding is the intent was not to affect
those declarations, but make this provision prospective In 2003. | hope this
clarifies that the declaration must give the right to assess a construction
penalty, but that the maximum allowed penalty could be set forth in another

document approved by the board,

Chairman Chrenschall:
Any questions or concems? [There were none.] | do not remember any

testimony in opposition, Was there any, Mr. Ziegler?

Dave Ziegler:
This is a new amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Right.

Garratt Gordon: )
I have spoken with Ms. Dennison and Senator Copening. Neither of them were

opposed to this amendment.

Jonathan Friedrich:

In A.B. 448 there was an exclusion for delays and penalties beyond the contrnl
of the owner. For example, if bank financing had fallen through’ and was
rétracted, or if the contractor went broke, that would be beyond the controf of

the owner. .

Chairman Ohrenschall:
1 do recall that. This is not contrary to A.B. 448, if it passes.

Jonathan Friedrich:
If A.B, 448 does not pass, then | would like to see the language from A. B 448

mcluc!ed in this amendment.

Chalrman Ohrenschalk: :
Mr. Friedsich, there does not seemn to be much appetite for that, but thank you

for your comments. We will accept this amendment.

Dave Ziegler: .
These are a couple of things that we agreed we would revisit. One has.to do

with section 7. At the last work session, | read from my abstract that the
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definitions in NRS Chapter 116 do not apply to the bylaws and declarations of
HOAs. After the work session, Ms. Dennison and | discussed that, It was her
concemn that the intent was exactly the opposite; that the wish was that the
definitions in NRS Chapter 116 actually do control. If there are contrary
definitions in bylaws and declarations, the definition in NRS Chapter 116 would
be the dominant definition. There is a conceptual amendment to satisfy those
concemns. Section 7 would be amended to read, "As used in this chapter and in
the declarations and hylaws of an association, the words and_terrnis defined in
NRS 116.005 to 116.095, inclusive, have the meanings ascribed to them in

those sections.”

Assemblyman McArthur:
Jt appears that we are taking one part out and putting another part back in, is

that correct?

Dave Ziegler:
One way to describe this is that it takes section 7 and flips it. The way that

section 7 is now, it says that NRS Chapter 116 does not control the bytaws and
declaratlons The intent was that it would control.

Michael Buckley:
The intent of the bill was just as Mr. Ziegler states. The statutory definitions

would always trump what the parties pravided in the documents.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

I am inclined to support this amendment. It provides uniformity throughout the
state. One way to get that uniformity is if the definitions in NRS Chapter 116
are the definitions, and we will not bave different definitions with different

HOAs.

Assemblyman Cerrillo:
This appears to be putting it back to what it was intended to be. | am okay

with it.

Chairman Ohrenschail:
We are all in agreement to support this amendment,

Dave Ziegler: :
Section 33 has to do with the idea that an HOA board has discretion whether to

take enforcement action for a violation of the bylaws, declarations, or rutes and -~

provides that a board does not have a duty to take enforcement action in certain

circumstances. Yvonne Schuman had suggested an amendment that persons in .
similar situations must be treated similarly. In other words, there should be a
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fairness doctrine attached to this. [ do not think we reached closure on that

during the last work sessian.

Michsel Buckley:

Far clarification, NRS 116.31036, section 3, already requires that the

association uniformly enforce the rufes and regulations.,

Assemblyman McArthur:

Did Mr. Friedrich have an amendment in there? | recall he wanted everything to

be fair.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Mpr. Friedrich, did you have an amendment to this section?

Jonathan Friedrich:
I do not see anything.

Michae! Buckley:

My previous reference should be NRS 116.31065, subsection 5, which states:
the rules ". . . must be uniformly enforced under the same or similar
Circumstances against all units’ owners. Any rule that is not so uniformly

enforced may not be enforced against any unit's owner.”

Assembiyman McArthur:
There are a couple of other places in statute that address this also.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Are you all right with this, Mr. Carrillo? All right, we can proceed,

Dave Ziegler:
! do not have anything else on 5.8. 204 (R1).

Chairman Ohrenschell:
Is there anyone else who would like to express themselves on this bill?

Janathan Frledrich:

| believe there are still a couple of sections that have not been resolved.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Do you know what sections those are?

Jonathan Friedrich:
Section 49. | believe section 45 has been done.
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Dave Ziegler:
We have that in our notes. It is the same wording as in the bill, up to a

maximum of $5 million.

Garrett Gordon:

i appreciate the compromise, and we are fine with this section. | got a
clarification in my amendment regarding the construction penalties. For the
record, when | added the language regarding the maximum allowable penalty
and schedule as pant of the resale package, it should also include the language
“or part of the public offering statement.” Obwousiy, we want full notice and
disclosure to new buyers and to subsequent buyers. This would provide

another layer of transparency.

Chairman Ohrenschall;

So your proposal is to change your amendment to read, The association has
made available a notice of the maximum allowable penalty and schedule as part
of the resale package or part of the public offering statement.” Is that correct?

Garrett Gordon'

| would suggest that sentence read, "The association has made avallable a
notice of the maximum allowable penalty and schedule as part of the public
offering statement or resale package that Is required under NRS 716.4109 (a)."
I think that Is broader and provides more notice to prospective buyers.

Dave Ziegler:
To recap section 49, it provides reasonable attorney’s fees and costs and sums
due to an HOA under the declaration, or as a‘result of an administrative,
arbitration, mediation, or judicial decision, are enforceable in the same manner
as unpaid assessments. This section also authorizes a court to appoint a
receiver to coilect all rents or other income from a unit owner in an action to
collect assessments or foreclose a lien. There are two -amendments proposed.
One is by Yvonne Schuman, which is attached to the work session document
(Exhibit C). Another is proposed by Jonathan Friedrich to delete the language
regarding items that are enforceable in the same manner as unpaid
assessments. He also suggests that all fees should be capped and that a cap
shouid be placed on the amount a receiver may charge for his or her services. -

Chairman Ohrenschall:

There was an amendment having to do with the fines adopted by,

NRS Chapter 116. That was to which section?

Garnrett Gordon:
it was section 49.
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Chairman Dhrenschall;

Section 49, subsection 1, on page 47 of the bill, is this duplicative language

from another bill?

Michael Buckley:
Yes, [ believe it is in 5.B. 174, dealing with collections. It came on a parallel

track because this is the uniform language.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

One concern | have with that section is that we are working on several of these
collection issues, and attempting to come to an agreement prior to the end of
session, using one or perhaps both of those bills as a vehicle. [ believe the
proper venue for this is through those negotiations and attempts to
compromise. | do not belteve we should process section 49, subsection . . .

Michael Buckley:

Just to peint out, | think that you are right. This is all about collections and
liens. If you are going to deal with that elsewhere, we do not have any
ohjection to putting that in another bill. We would hope that the language on
receivers, which came from the Uniform Act, would go in there as well.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
| agree, | think section 49, subsection 11, should stay in there. There was an

example of the Paradise Spa in Las Vegas, comrect?

Michael Buckley:
That is correct.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. Friedrich proposed an amendment regarding charges by receivers. | was

thinking perhaps we could pass subsection 11, but rmandate that the CICCH~

promulgate regulations establishing a cap for receivers and what they may
charge.

Miehael Buckley: .
For clarification, the bill proposes to allow receivers to be appointed by the
court. | do not think that the CICCH could tell a judge what the receiver would
be paid. There may be some confusion about this kind of receiver. The

example of Paradise Spa Is that there were tenants who were paying their rent

to the unit owner. The unit owner was not paying his dues and the-association
was owed money. There was income to pay the receiver's fee, which is mare
like a property manager, and would be according to market rates. That needs to
be distinguished from appointing a receiver for an association that is being
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poorly run, which would be very expensive. | think the Commission does have
some authority there because the Real Estate Division is the “person” who
would seek the recelver, rather than here where it is the association that is
trying to collect and get some money to pay the assessments that the owner is
not paying. | do not think the Commission could tell a court what do to.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
So the examples that Mr. Friedrich pointed out about recelvers charging

egregious fees, you do not think that would happen because the _]udges would
try to ensure the fees are reasonahle,

Michael Buckley:
A receiver is an officer of the court. The receiver has to report back to the

Jjudge. The judge has to approve the recejver's fees and his accounting. It does

not have anything to do with common-interest communities per se. This is just
allowing the assaociation to have a remedy that most mortgage lenders have. -

Chairman Ohrenschall:
| would propose on section 49 that we do not accept any of me amendments

and that we do not process section 49, subsections 1 through 10, and process
subsection 11.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
I’am not sure | feel comfortable with deleting all of those subsections. Eardier,

we were looking at a simple amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
! see your point. However, as Mr. Buckley testified, this section is aisp in

5.B. 374, | do not think it would. be wise to have this move forward here,
when the issue is part of an overall attempt at a compromise.

Assemblyman McArthur:
We are taking out a lot of language if we delete all of those subsections,

correct?

Chairman Ohrenschall:

No. | am not proposing we delete any current Janguage in the NRS. |am just
proposing that section 49 would now anly have subsection 11. The rest of it
would just go away. We would not be deleting any existing language from the
NRS, but we would be adding subsection 11. .
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Assemblyman Carrillo:
IF you are going on the assurnption that another bill will pass or not, or that both

will pass or not, | think we should keep this bili whole.

Chalriman Ohrenschall:

Remember the amendment Mr. Friedrich proposed dealing with the construction
penalties, and he was concerned that even though it was duplicative of
A.B. 448, he wanted it in here because he was afraid A.B, 448 would not get
out of the Senate Finance Committee. He wanted a second bite at the apple by
having it in this bill. We tumed that down for substantially the same reason
that 1 do not think this should be approved. This is not only two bites at the
same apple, but more imporiantly, this is part of the negotiations on the
callections issue between bath houses,

Assamblyman Carrillo:
This is a bill in itself. This is not taking a second bite at the apple because it is
already In the bill. For clarification, how Is your example the sarne as having

twao bills with the same language? How are we looking at amending it when it

is already there? We are not talking about putting section 42 in this bill,
because we are not adding ta it, that is part of the bill as it is proposed.

Michae! Buckley:
| am aware that when S.B. 174 was drafted, we did give them the uniform

language. | believe the language in 5.B. 174 incorporates the changes that we
madz. | am not sure about the receiver section, but | know that the language
on the attorney's fees and the technical changes are the same as in $5.B. 174.

Assemblyman McArthur:
is there room for compromise in this?

Chairman Ohrenschall:

! think there is room for compramise, and that compromise is going to come out
of the negotiations between both houses on S.B. 174 and A.B. 448. Hopefully,
we can come out with something that will protect homeowners and protect the
HOAs. | do not believe this is a proper place for this issue.

Assemblyman McArthur;

I am not concerned with a compromise having to do with a couple of completely
different bills. | am not sure that is helping us with this bill. 1 am wondering
whether maybe we should do what we want to do here and not warry so much
about what is being done with two other bills, My question was, can we
compromise on this bill? | think we are in agreement on subsection 11,

Lo
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
We are going to take a brief recess.

[The Committee recessed at B p.m. and reconvened at 8:43 p.m.]

Before the break, we were discussing S.B. 204 {R1). We are going to delay any
further action on this bill until we reconvene. We will now begin the review of

Senate Biil 254 (1st Reprint).

Senate Bil! 254 {1st Reprint}: Revises provisions refating 1o common-interest
communities. {BDR 10-264)

Dave Ziegler, Committee Policy Analyst:

Senate Bl 254 (R1) is sponsored by Senator Copening and was heard in’ this . ST
Subcomrmittee on May 6, 2011, it revises the procedures for altemative dispute . :
resolution of civil actions concerning governing documents or the covenants,

conditions, or restrictions (CCRs) applicable to residential property. It also

revises administrative proceedings concerning a violation of existing faw

governing common-interest communities and condominium hotels. . .

[Read from work session document (Exhibit E).]

I would Jike to point ocut that Senator Copening’'s amendment dated ‘
May 13, 2011, does include the suggestions of Mr. Stebbins.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Is the amendment proposed by Mr. Friedrich the arbitration cap that was

proposed for Senate Bill 204 (R1)?

Dave Ziegler:
No, the proposed amendment by Mr. Friedrich would replace the bill with new

provisions, which are attached to the work session document.
{Read ameridment.]

Chairman Ohrenschall: -
Regarding the prior amendment that Mr. Friedrich had proposed for. B -
5.8. 204 (R1), we will consider that in this bill with the cap on arbitration fees,

Are there any concerns with adapting the cap on arbitrator's fees?

Eleissa Lavelle, Private Citizen, Las Vepgas, Nevada:
| have been involved as an arbitrator and as an advocate on behalf of "both —
associations and individuals. The concern s to ensure that the arbitratars oo
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hearing these cases are as qualified as possible. We have seen the complexity
of Mevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 116 and the way these ruies
operate. In order for this process to work, you must ensure that you have
gualified people who are hearing these matters. While | agree there should be
some limitation on these costs, because | do agree with many of the people
who have spoken, that there are in many cases an excessive amount of bifls
that are being promulgated by these arbitrators. | think the method to handle
this is partly by what has been proposed by Senator Copening's conceptual
amendment. | am also aware that Gail Anderson Is in the process of addressing
these issues. In addition to limiting the doilar amount, perhaps incorporating
something along the lines of budgets and establishing the kinds of things that
arbitrators do would [imit the total cost of these arbitrations., . .

Chairman Ohranschall:
Why would the $1,000 cap work under the Supreme Court rule but nat work

here?

Eleissa Lavelle: .
The $1,000 cap has been implemented in the mandatory arbitration process in

the district court. Those kinds of cases under NRS Chapter 38 are very limited

in their scope. They deal with matters where under $50,000 is at stake. But P
the statutes exclude a number of kinds of disputes, notably, matters relating to .
title to real estate, matters dealing with equitable claims, matters dealing with .
appeals from courts of limited jurisdiction, and actions for declaratory relief. . .
Basically those types of cases limit the scope and complexity of what arbitrators - :
are hearing. That is not the case with these kinds of arbitrations. Here you :
have very complex issues, and in many cases, arbitrators are given packets of .

documents of all the board minutes, all the correspondence, perhaps plans and T

specifications, and architectural guidalines, It takes a great amount of time for

arbitratars 10 do a decent job of understanding the issues and giving adequate . |
opportunity for these people to be heard. At $1,000, you are going to be
requiring people to volunteer their time, and | do not know whether you will find
quality arbitrators to do this for $1,000, .

Chalrman Ohrenschall:

When you talked about the district court cases under arbitration being limited to
less than $50,000, does that mean you anticipate that most of these disputes
would be more than that? :

Eleissa Lavelle: .
In many cases with homeowners' associations (HOAs), the dollar amount is rot

significant with respect to each individual case. More particularly, this'is an
enforcement issue. It could have a dollar figure, but more often it may deal
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with Interpretations of declarations or interpretations of other governing

documents, where a dollar amount really is not the significant part of it. There

may be ‘fines imposed, but the most significant part is not only how that’
declaration or other governing document Is enforced with respect to a single

homeowner, but the impact it may have on an entire community. Consistency

of enforcement is really what is critical with all of these. We want to ensure

that these enforcements are being fairly and evenly applied. Whereas, one

person may not consider a fine to be a huge amount of money, the impact

across the board to the way that community operates and the value of the

homes-that this enforcement proceeding might have can be very significant,

Chalrman Ohrenschail:
Any questiohs? [There were none.]

Assemblyman McArthur: i .
Are we going to review the bill, starting with page 17 . ) . . :

Cheirman Ohrenschall: )
Regarding the arbitrator’s fees, if you do not think the $1,000 cap would work,
do you think some other cap would work, and is that something that should be

put in statute?

Eleissa Lavelle:

There are provisions in the bill that would provide a fast-track type of arbitration
where the Real Estate Division Administrator in the Department of Business
and Industry would develop regulations that would limit the scope of what these
arbitrations would require, |t is provided that is what the Administrator woutd
be doing. i think that it may hest be handled by the Administrator with clear
direction within the statute. That is the goal. The reason for that is if this
statute is to last for as long as we all would like it to last, we want it to be
responsive to changing events in the community and changing needs and LT
requirements of the people that are utilizing the statute. The Administrator may -
be in a better position to find out what is going on and develop in a very quick
rmnanner the kinds of regulations that would implement a limitation on these fees,"

Chairman Ohrenschall: L -
What is the reason the bill only provides for capping the fast-track arbitration

fees as oppased to all arbitration fees?

Eleissa Lavelle:
| believe the proposal is that all fees would be reviewed and limited. The

fast-track is a special form of arbitration that could be utilized where the issues S
are not complex and would require very limited or no discovery and very short -
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arbitrations. Some of these arbitrations can go days at a time. Others, where
the issues are fairly limited, can be limited by regulation to one or two hours.
That alone will limit the cost for everybody. All of those are included within the

concept this bill encompasses.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Where within the bill are the arbitrator fees?

Eleissa Lavelle:

They are on page 21, line 19, which deals with rules for speedy arbitration.
| may also have been.thinking of the proposal that Senator Copening has made
to attempt to lift all fees across the board. Not just for fast-track, but for other

types of arbitration.

Cheairman Ohrenschalil:
That is inn her amendment, correct?

Eleissa Lavelle:
Correct.

Chairmen Ohrenschali:
If Senator Copening’s amendment is appraved, how long would it take to adopt

those reguiations?

Gail Anderson, Administrotor, Real Estate Division, Department of Business
and Industry:

I actually have a regulation file started, | had a workshop proposing a number

of things conceming the arbitrators and mediatars under NRS Chapter 38,

which is under the Real Estate Division Administrator's jurisdiction. This is very

doable. | have spoken with Senator Copening regarding this. | will have to

request that | be allowed to proceed with the regulation, but this is an important : .
public policy that | am fairly certain we can get approval for. There would be

some changes; | had some good input from the workshop. | do need to review

and incorporate the referenced speedy arbitration fast-track process.,

Chairman Ohrenschall: .
Your caps would apply to all arbitrators under Senator Copening’s amendment,

comrect?

Gail Anderson:
That is correct. My proposed regulation is concerning all arbitrations.

US BANKO0538



Case 2:13-cv-01517-GMN-CWH  Uotutiicin o o .

Assembly Committee on Judiciary
May 17, 2011
Page 40

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.] Ms. Lavelle, would you mind walking us

through this bili?

Eleissa Lavelle:

Section 1 deals with the mediation portion of this bill and provides that no later
than five days after receipt of the written response—the compilaint process is
initiated through the Division; when a written response is prepared and received,
within 5§ days after that—the Division is required to provide a copy of the
response to the claimant so that everyone knows what the'claims are, what the
defenses are, and to provide a list of the mediators that is maintained by the
Division. The mediators are to be selected, approved, and trained by the
Administrator so that it is clear that they have adequate training in mediation
process and an adeguate understanding of NRS Chapter 116 and general
HOA law. That is the purpose of having the panel of mediators maintained by
the Administrator. : )

The mediator is required to provide an informational statement as set forth in
subsection 3, within a very short time period. The mediation is supposed to
take place within 60 days after the selection and appointment of the mediator.
The purpose is to assure that this process does not unduly delay ultimate
decision making if the case cannot be settled.

Subsection 5 states that if the parties reach an agreement, that agreement is to
be reduced to wvriting. This is absolutely standard mediation practice and is
something that Mr. Friedrich had proposed as well. The idea is that once the
parties have agreed to a settlement, it becomes a binding contract between the
parties. It will not be sent out to everyone; the agreement is going to be
confidential, and it will not be published unless it will be enforced in some way.

There is a provision for the payment of fees of mediation. The plan is that there I
would be funds available to some extent through the account referenced in ’
subsection 6. The Account for Common-Interest Communities and
Condominium Hotels {CICCH) created in NRS 116.630 had funds set aside for

the medistion process. The idea was that this money would be available for
payment of these mediators. It is true that the statute does not state that it will

be free mediation. [t is calculated that given the anticipated number of
mediations, if the cost per hour was limited, there would be adequate funds .
from which these mediators would be paid, not requiring any additional funding '
by the individuals.
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Michael Buckley, Chair, Commission for Common-Interest Communities and
Condominium Hotels:

We did have, at the Commission, $150,000 for several years that was available

Lo subsidize arbitration that was never used, Finally the amount was taken out

of the budget. The fund for CICCH has a surplus in the budget that is not being

used. There are funds available through that which could be ailocated to

provide for the free mediation.

Eleissa Lavella: .
The bill provides that the Commission wil have the ability to regulate the fees .

and charges that would be assessed in section 1, subsection 5. [t states, "The

Commission shail adopt regulations governing the maximum amount that may

be charged for fees and costs of mediation and the manner in which such fees ]
and costs of mediation are paid." We are cognizant of the fact that this should

not be 3 more expensive process, but in fact a tool to perhaps {imit the ultimate

costs that are going to be incurred in resolving these disputes. :

Section 1, subsection 7, provides that if either party fails to participate in the
mediation, or If the parties are unable, with the assistance of the mediator, to
resolve the issues, then the mediator would, within five days, certify to the
Ombudsman that the mediation was unsuccessful and recommend that the.
claim be referred either to arbitration pursuant to NRS 38.330. if the claim
relates to any governing documents, or to the Rivision for proceedings pursuant
to NRS 116.745 through 116.795 if the claim relates to an alleged violation of
a provision of NRS Chapter 116. . :

In order for the mediations to be successful, the communications that take place
are required to be confidential. The nexl provision of that section says the
mediator may not provide any other information relating to the mediation to the
Division. The Division, the Commission, and a hearing panel may not request
from the mediator any other information refating to the mediation. This is a very
important part of this statute because it ensures that the people will be able to
freely and frankly discuss their positions without fear of having their words
come back to them if the case does not settle. That is also included within
subsection B, essentially the same language. :

Subsection 9 is a definitional subsection, dealing with where the mediators are
going to be taken frorn and where the mediations will be conducted.

Assemblyman McArthor:
You mentioned a time limit of five days after receipt, is that enough time?
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Eleissa Lavelle:

That is a very legitimate concern. We certainly do not want to create any
problems in getting this information out. The intent was to ensure the process
moved along quickly. | would defer to Gall Anderson as to whether or not that
is a sufficient response time.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| am not trying to fix it or change it; | am just wondering whether it is doable.

Gail Anderson: -
The five days is the time the Division has once we have received the written
. response. That is certainly doable; it would be helpful to make it five business

days.

Assemblyman McArthur:

- The bill states that the Ombudsman must be available within the geographic
area. Is that possible in some of the rural areas? We might want to change
that to "should be available™ instead of "must be available.”

Eleissa Lavelle:

That is a very legitimate concern and | think any modification that would make
that easier to accommodate is fine. | think within the large metropolitan areas it
should be very simple to find someone within the geographica! area.

Assemblyman MeArthur: .

Also, it states in section 1, subsection 2, "Upon appointing a mediator, the
Ombudsman shall pravide the name of the mediator to the parties.” There is
not a time frame for that. Do we need one?

Eleissa Lavelle:
| think the time frame for providing the mediators is within five days of the date

of the response, We can take a look at that.

Assemhblyman McArthur:
| think we need to tighten up who pays and how much they pay. lt does not

state what funds will be used.

Chairman Ohrenschail:
Any other questions? [There were none.}

Eleissa Lavelle:
Section 4, page 5, is the confidentiality provisions that have already been
addressed. Section 5, subsection 5, deals with bad fajth filings and states, "If
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the Commission finds that an appeal from a final order of a hearing panel is filed
in bad faith or without reasonable cause for the purpose of delay or harassment,
the Commission may impose any of the sanctions set forth . . . ."

Michael Bucklay: -
This is a Commission process rather than an arbitration process. This is where
there is a hearing panel, which is a subset of the Commissioners that would
hear a complaint that the Real Estate Division brought against someone.: It is s

not the typical homeowner dispute. . . ..

Chairman Ohrenschall: .
Would this be after the mediation has run its course, or independent of any

mediation?

Michael Buckley: - .

This is completely independent. This is after mediation, after it has been
directed to the Division, after the Division has filed 3 complaint, after a hearing
panel has held a hearing, then someone can file an appeal to the Commission.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Is there a sense that many appeals are filed in bad faith, or for the purpose of

delay?

Michae!l Buckley:
Currently we do not have hearing panels. This section will add a little mare

weight to what the hearing panel can do.

Chairman Ghrenschall:
Any questions on section 57 [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle: . .

| will skip over some of the sections; they are essentially cleanup sections and
language modifications. Section ‘9, subsection 2, allows for the Division to
disclose a claim and response filed with the Division and other documents to the
mediator and to the arbitrator. This is a procedural process so that the parties
will have an idea of what the claims are about and what the defenses are as
they are preparing to either conduct a mediation or an arbitration.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

These are claims filed with the Division prior to the mediation process going
forward, correct?
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Eleissa Lavelle:
Correct.

Assemblyman McArthur: .
It states the Division “may"” disclose. Is there a reason for "may"? : ) ;
¥

Michael Buckley:
The reason this is necessary is because all the records of the Division, at the

initiat start of the claim, are confidential. [t was not intended to say they should
not disclose. They do need to disclose to the parties what the problem is; so
there may need to be some language clarification, -

Eleissa Lavelle: .
The intent of section 10 is to consolidate all of the claims that a party has to

the extent that they are aware of them within one proceeding. " When any given
claim is made, everything that the individual or HOA knows about that claim
needs to be included so that we are not hitting homeowners with muitiple
claims on multiple occasions and the homeowners do not have to continue to
defend themselves claim after claim. Similarly, if a homeowner has a claim
against the association, those are consolidated to the best of their knowledge;
50 the association is not defending claim after claim. This effort is an attempt
to limit the cost that homeowners and associations are paying to go through the
arbitration process. It does provide that if these claims are not addressed, if
known, that they may be limited and there may not be any ability to proceed
with the claims. This is very similar to a statute of limitation that you will find
in normal adjudicative law in a district court.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:
Section 10, subsection 3, provides and details what needs to be included wvithin

the claims. This is essentially a due process provision. Due process requires
that the person be told what the claim is about and have an adequate
opportunity to be heard. This provision sets forth what will be required in the
claim: a statement of whether all administrative procedures have been satisfied
and a statement of the nature of the claim and the facts supporting it.
Section 10, subsection 3, paragraph (e}, states that all claims of which the.
claimant is aware or reasonably should be aware, including any claims that
relate to a violation of the governing documents, need to be included within the

complaint that is being filed.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none,)

Eleissa Laveile:
Section 10, subsection 4, says, "Upon the filing of a claim that satisfies the

requirements of this section, the Division shall serve a copy of the claim on the
respondent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to his or her last known
address.” Again, this is a due process provision, so that the respondent knows
exactly what the claim is and has all of the Information available to him w be

ahle to adequately respond.

Subsection 5 requires that a written response be made.by the respondent and
sets forth the content of what that response is going to be.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questfons? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle: . .
Section 10, subsection 6, provides that the claims may be consolidated.

Subsection 7 states that by filing a claim or response, the claim or response is
not being filed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause
vnnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of proceedings and that the
claims have evidentiary support. The purpase of this is so that people are not
filing false or fraudulent claims. There is a substantial amount of support for
this in other provisions of the law. Rule 11, under the Nevada ‘Rules of
Civil Procedure, requires that if an attomey files a claim on behalf of a party, or
if a party signs a pleading, the attomey has to do so with knowledge that there
is evidentiary support and that the claim is not filed for improper purposes.
There are sanctions applicable if that rule is violated, There are similar
provisions within mechanics' lien law and general litigation. ‘

Chairman Ohrenschali:

So will most of the homeowners who are filing these claims be doing it on their

own without representation?

Eleissa Lavelle:

An attorney is not required to {ile these claims. Sometimes attorneys are there,
and sometimes they are not. The homeowners who are [iling individual claims
would be reminded that they must file these claims with a [egitimate and good

faith purpose for doing so.

Chairman Ohrenschal:
Is there a penaity if they are found not to have met that standard?
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Eleissa Lavelle:

There is. In section 18, subsection 9, it says that if a person files a frivolous
claim with the Division pursuant to this section or NRS 38,320, the Commission
may issue an order directing the person who filed the frivolous claim to pay the
costs incurred by the Division as a result of that filing. This cost may be
assessed not only against homeowners but also against HOAs. [t has equal
applicability. Nobody is entitled to file a false, fraudulent, or frivalous claim.
There is a penalty involved, but it is a discretionary provision.

Chairman Dhrenschall:
If someone is found to have filed a false or fraudulent claim, can he or she

appeal to a court if he or she feels the Commission is wrong? |

Eleissa Lavelle:

Under normal administrative law, if a party is aggrieved by an administrative
proceeding, there are limited rights of review by a district court. Those rights of
review are based on whether the Commission has acted in an arbitrary or

capricious manner.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
That provision, allowing an appeal to a district court and ultimately the Supreme

Court, comes through the State Administrative Procedures Act as applicable to
the Nevada Real Estate Division? -

Eleissa Lavelle:
That is camrect.

The balance of section 11 deals with false and fraudulent claims and the
manner in which these are going to be handled. Subsection 1, page 12,
commencing at line 2, states:

"If, after invesﬁgating the alleged violation, the Division determines
that the allegations in the claim are not frivolous, False, or
fraudulent and that good cause exists to proceed with a hearing on
the alleged violation, the Administrator shall:

{a) File a formal complaint with the Commission, with the Division
as complainant, and schedule a hearing . . . ."

| believe this is essentially the intervention process that currently exists. We.
have the analysis period to determine whether or not it is a false or frandulent

filing.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:
Section 11, subsection 4, states, "No admission, representation or statement

made in the course of the Ombudsman’s efforts to assist the parties . . . is
admissible as evidence . . . ." There are provisions in NRS Chapter 116 that
give the Ombudsman an additional attempt to resolve these'disputes. This
simply clarifies the confidentiality of those conversations.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Does this protection currently exist when someone speaks * with the

Ombudsman, or is this reclarifying?

Eleissa Lavelle:
I have never heard of a situation where an - Ombudsman has ever revealed

anything inappropriately. 1 am aware that there is some feeling among people
who participate in this process that they want to have this very clear so that
when they speak to the Ombudsman, because he is part of the process, that
whatever is said is confidential. It is really a clarification.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:

The balance of page 13 is clarification. Section 15 basically mirrors earfier parts
of this bill. This section provides that not later than five days after receipt of
the response, the claimant gets a copy and the parties get a list of the
mediators, The changes we have discussed in terms of business days for the
five-day time frame would be appropriate here as well.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:
Continuing on, page 15 is also a mirror image of what we have discussed with

respect to the method by which mediators and arbitrators are selected.

Assemblyman McArthur:
Also, section 15, subsection 6, paragraphs {a) and (b), discuss the payment of
fees, This area also needs to be tightened up.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
What ine is that on?

Assemblyman McArthur:

Page 15, fine 18; "The Division may provide for the payment of the fees . ..."
Chairman Ohrenschall: .

I thought the "may"” had to do with the fact that there was enough funding right
now and no one will be charged for awhile.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| do not think so; a little tower it says "The Commission approves the payment;
and . ..," so there are a lot of questions about who pays and for how long:

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Maybe we can ask Legal to look at that tomorow. Do you think there is some

confiict in the language?

Assemblyman McArthur: i :
No, | just think It needs to be tightened up regarding whether or not the Division
is going to pay, whether there are funds availabie, or will we need to get funds
somewhere else if those funds get used up?

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Ms. Lavelle, do you think there is a problem in that language?

Eleissa Lavelle:

It Is the same issue that was raised earlier; the question is, how do you limit the
costs of these arbitrations? How do you set fees? Perhaps put parameters
around the kinds of things that arbirators might be doing that exceed the
reasonable costs. | agree there are issues with respect to how much arbitrators
are charging and what these costs should be. 1 think the very same issues and
concerns that were expressed in the earlier part of this bill apply equally here.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. Please proceed.

Fleissa Lavelle:

Regarding section 16, line 21, the term "assessment” had been included within
NRS 38.300 regarding the types of things that need to be defined. Instead of
the word “assessment,” the word "charges” is used. Essentially, this provides
a definitional section for use in the statute. |t does not impose any additional
charges or fees; it is purely definitional.
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Chafrman Chrenschall:
I know that Mr. Friedrich had some concerns with that definition. | have talked
it over with our tegal counsel, and we do not feel that his concerns are correct.

| am okay with this section now.

Eleissa Lavelle:

Subsection 3 is also part of the definitional section. [t simply adds and clarifies
what kinds of things are going to be included and excluded within the arbitration
provisions, and also defines more carefully what "irreparable harm" means.
These are more clarifications rather than changing anything substantive.

Subsection 4 defines "Commission” so that we know what we are talking abput
in the course of this statute,

Subsection 6 is a clarification that links the definition of "governing documents™ .

to the meaning that is already defined in the statute.

Chairman Chrenschall:
On page 16, lines 3B through 41, is the definition of "irreparable harm." s that
from somewhere else In the revised statutes, or did it come from the

Uniform Law Commissioners?

Elelssa Lavelle: o _
Under normal injunctive relief within the NRS and the Rules of Civil Procedure,

whenever you have a potential for an immediate risk of irreparable harm, you
have a right for injunctive relief. In drafting this statute, the intent was to
preserve that right so that if someone has an immediate issue or concem that
there is a huge risk, that has to be addressed immediately, and that if you do
not go through the arbitration process or the mediation process, you can go
straight to court and get a judge to issue an injunction. The question is what

does "ireparable harm” mean? This provision is an atternpt to define that more-

carefully by meaning a harm or injury for which the remedy of damages or
monetary compensation is inadequate and does not exist solely because a claim
involves real estate. It is really a clarification of this. Under normal real estate
law, or injunctive relief law, a change te the way. in which real estate is held is
normally sufficient grounds for getting into cowrt. This is dlarification that
| believe comports with other provisions of Nevada law.,

Chairman Ohrenschall:
If this passes, will it be harder for someone to get injunctive relief for something

involving real estate?
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Eleissa Lavelle:

| think this will give the court some guidance as to what kinds of cases they can
hear and should be hearing for injunctive relief as opposed to what kinds of
cases go through the arbitration pracess. The idea is not to limit either an HOA
or a horneowner's right to get Immediate access to injunctive relief. It is simply
to define that right as carefully as possible. ~

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any guestions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:

Section 17 is cleanup language. Section 18, page 17, provides that a claim
ray not be filed If a claimant has previously filed a claim with the Division and
at the time the claimant filed the previous claim the claimant was aware or
reasonably should have been aware of the facts and circumstances underlying
the current claim. This is similar to the earlier provisions that } discussed that
talk about a requirement that a claimant cannot keep filing the same claim over

and over again, or if he or she has facts that he or she knows justify bringing a

claim at a certain point in time, he or she has to consolidate those claims at the
same time. This creates a more streamlined and less costly approach to dispute

resolution.

Assemblyman McArthur:
For clarification, on page 17, line 36, it says "The claimant previously filed a
claim . .. ." Should there be something about the same claim again?

Eleissa Lavella:
If a claimant files a claim, and at the time he filed the claim, he knew of facts

that gave rise to a second claim, that second claim will be barred.

Assemblyman MeArthur:
| understand that. | am just not sure about the wording. | do not believe the

intent is clear.

Eleissa Lavelle:

Both portions of that statute have to be satisfied. So paragraph (a) and
paragraph (b} are both necessary. it is both that the claimant filed previously,
and at the time the claimant filed, the claimant was aware of should have been
aware of facts and circumstances underlying the current claim.

Chairman Chrenschall
So there is no requirement that this latter claim arose out of the same nucleus.

It could be something unrelated; there just has to be knowledge of it?
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Eleissa Lavelle: .
That is the way it is currently drafted. It couid be the HOA or the claimant.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
It is not like the civil procedure rule, requiring the same transaction or
occurrence. In this situation, knowledge would be enough to bar a second

claim?

Eleissa Lavelle:

Actually, there is a provision within the doctrine of res juclicata that if you file a
complaint against someone, and at the time you file that complaint you had
actuat knowledge of other claims that could be filed, even vunrelated, you may

be barred.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.}] Thank you, please proceed.

Eleissa Lavelle: : .
Section 18, subsection 2, paragraph (a) is a due process provision, which says
that the claimant must provide the respondent by certified maii, with written
notice of the claim which specifies in reascnable detail the nature of the claim.
These are provisions that ensure that everybody against whom a claim has been
filed has fuli understanding of what the claim is about. Paragraph (b) provides
that "If the claim concerns real estate within a common-interest community
subject to the provisions of Chapter 116 of NRS . . . ali administrative
procedures specified in the governing documents . . ." must be exhausted. It
requires that each of these parties, before filing a claim, has exhausted
whatever hearing processes exist, and they have to certify that has occurred
beforé they can file a claim with the Division. The rest of this section is
procedural. It talks about what the claim forms will include and again, a
reascnable detail of the violations. The rest of the section deals with the
requirements to be Included in the claim so that when these claims come before
the Division, it will be clear that the parties have thought through all of their
- claims and supporting information and the fact that they have tried to resolve
this through their administrative processes. [f they do not do this, there is no
penaity, but it is a requirement in the way the forms are set up.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.] Please proceed.

Eleissa Lavelle:
Page 15 deals with the consolidation of claims and the way the answers are
prepared. Section 1B; subsection 8, certifies that the claim is being filed with a
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reasonable belief formed after reasonable inquiry that the claim is adequately
supported and is not being filed for improper purposes. Subsection 9 provides
that if a person files a claim which he or she knows to be false or fraudulent,

the Commission ar a hearing panel may impose penalties.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Normally, if someone were to appeal from a hearing panel, he or she goes to the

Commission?

Michae! Buckley: )
That is correct. From a hearing panel you would appeal to the Commission.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Here either one would have the power to impose a penalty. [f it is the

Commission that imposes the penalty, the only avenue of appeal would be to-

district court through the State Administrative Procedure Act?

Michael Buckley:
This is referring to a claim and the fact that if a claim filed with the Real Estate

Division turns out to be false or fraudulent, then the Commission and hearing
panel can impose a penalty. | believe this is existing law.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Is that something that has never happened in terms of the Commission or
hearing panel imposing a penalty for a false or fraudulent claim in bad faith or

without reasonable cause?

Gail Anderson:

There is a provision in law although it is not this exact language, where if the
Division believes there is evidence to substantiate a knowing, willful filing of
false and fraudulent claims that the state would bring a complaint to the
Commission against the person who filed it. The Commission has the ability to
impose a penalty. The Division has not done that as yet. We continue to try to
work this program on getting things resolved, but we have the ability to do that
and we may be doing that, Part of the clarifications in the proposed legislation
will help define more clearly what things are appropriate and inappropriate that
we could bring forth. We have not brought a claim against someone who has
filed something at this point to the Commission. We have closed claims as
unsubstantiated, but have not brought forth the case as being willful and

fravdulent.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Any questions? [There were naone.]
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Eleissa Lavelle: )

Section 19 sets forth the procedure with clarification based on what has

happened with the mediation. If the mediation is .unsuccessful, the mediator '
refers the matter to arbitration. This provides that the Division will maintain a ) . i
list of qualified arbitrators, and that not later than ten days from the receipt of” :
the refemral to arbitration, an arbitrator wili be identified. The parties will he

notified who the arbitrator will be. This is a slight clarification of statute that

already exists in order to accommodate the mediation process,

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle: ]
Section 19, subsection 3, provides that arbitrations conducted are nonbinding . i
unless the parties agree in writing to’ binding arbitration. This is so that if the :
arbitrator gets it wrong, the parties have a right to go to court and see whether
they can get it right. We do not want this to be binding arbitration unless the

parties want it that way.

Subsection-5 states unless alf the parties to the arbitration otherwise agree, the”
arbitration will be conducted in accordance with rules of the
American Arbitration Association or other comparable rules for speedy
arbitration approved by the Commission or the Division. The intent is that
speedy, fast-track arbitration rules will be established for cases. The default will
be a speedy arbitration unless the parties want to take it out of the speedy
arbitration if the issues are more complex.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
So if the issues are more complex, that will take it out of the speedy arbitration?

Eleissa Lavelle:
Cormect, the parties can agree to that.

Chairman Ohranschail:
Any questions? [There were none.] Please proceed.

Eleissa Lavelle:
Section 19, subsection 8, states that once the arbitration decision award has

been issued, the Division receives a copy of that award. It will also provide that
the arbitration awards will be indexed and maintained by the Division. The
intent is that there needs to be some consistency in these rulings. One way of
doing that is for these arbitration decisions to be maintained by the Division.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
This does not specify how long they will be maintained.

Eleissa Lavelle:
That would be determined by reguiation.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:

| jumped ahead to that because the Division is going to be getting copies of

these arbitration decisions and it will maintain them. The arbitrator provides a

copy of the arbitration award. Except as otherwise provided and subject to X
regulations adopted by the Commissior, the parties are responsible for payment

of ali fees and costs of arbitration in the manner provided by the arbitrator. This

is the way the statute was originally drafted. | understand that we are in the

process, through the earlier testimony and proposed amendment - by

Senator Copening, of tightening this up so that you have clear and more concise

and limited fees for these arbitrations.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle;

Section 20, subsection 2, provides that upon request of a party to a mediation
or arbitration, the Division will provide a statement to the party indicating "the
amount of the fees the selected mediator or arbitrator would charge. This will
be revised through efther amendment or regulation as discussed earlier,

Chairman Ohrenschall: . .
Thank you very much for taking the time to watk us through this bill and answer

our questions,

Assembiyman McArthur: i . ’ -
If someone has a complaint, does it automatically go to mediation? :

Eleissa Lavelle: . :

The point is to get people talking to each other guickly. ~As the statutes
currently exist, they either go immediately to arbitration or to the Division for
investigation or hearing. There are dispute resolution processes that are
adversarial. This statute proposes that before any of those disputes gé to an . =
adversarial proceeding, the partes are required to sit down and attempt to
mediate and resclve the dispute.
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Michael Buckley:

Also, the mediation and arbitration ties in to making a formal complaint. If you :
call the Ombudsman and ask for some help, he does not have to refer.you to . s
arbitration. He can give you help without going through the process of i

mediation. .

Assemblyman- McArihur:
If you do file, it s required to go to mediation first.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
We wili now recess and reconvene tomorrow upon adjoumment of the ,

Assembly Committee of the Judicliary hearing, at approximatety 10 a.m,

[Meeting recessed at 10:08 p.m. on May 17, 2011, and reconvened at
10:30 a.m. on May 18, 2011.]

Chairman Ohrenschall:
We had a late night last night, but | think we made a lot of progress on these ‘ :

bills. We will come back to Senate Bill 204 (1st Reprint). '

Senate Bill 204 (ist Reprint}: Enacts certain amendments to the Uniform
Common-Interest Ownership Act. {(BDR 10-298)

We were held up on section 49. We agreed we did not want to consider any of
the amendments that were proposed. We agreed that we supported subsection:
11. The impasse was on subsections 1 through 10, that | believe are part of
the overall negotiations on the collection and super priority lien issue. We have
Senator Copening here to discuss section 49.

Senator Allison Copening, Glark County Senatorial District No. 6:

Regarding section 49, the Chair and | are in discussions about how to
strengthen the regulations that are cumently in place for collection costs. We
are going to remove the new language in section 48, lines 22 through 33,
leaving existing language that is currently in law and continue to work on the
collection proposal.

Chairman Ohrenschali:

Thank you very much. | would like to ciarify with Legal, if we were to not
amend that part of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS} 116.3115, we also would
not have the subsequent small amendments to subsection 2 through "10.
Basically that would leave us with suhsection 11, correct?
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Nick Anthony, Committee Counsel:
Yes, that is correct.

Assemblyman McArthur:
For clarification, lines 22 through 33, and the new language in subsections

1 through 10, comect?

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Correct, we will not change the existing statute at ail. We will keep

subsection 11 which deals with receivers.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| agree with the way section 49 is.

Chairman Ohrenschall: .
So we will recommend to the Assembly Committee on the Judiciary that section
49, subsection 11, be kept. All the recommendations we made last night will

be included. Mr. Ziegler, 1s there any point in recapping this bill? ; )

Dave Ziegler:
| think you rehashed It to death last night.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Then | would be willing to hear a motion that we recommend to the full

Committee 5.8, 204 (R1) with all the amendments we liked and without all the
amendments that we did not like, with section 49, subsection 171, surviving, but

subsections 1 through 10 not being recommended.

ASSEMBLYMAN MCARTHUR RECOMMENDED AMEND AND DO -
PASS SENATE BILL 204 (1st REPRINT}.

ASSEMBLYMAN CARRILLO SECONDED THE RECOMMENDATION.
THE RECOMMENDATION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. -

Chairman Ohrenschali:
We will now review Senate Bill 254 {1st Reprint}.

Senate Bill 254 {1st Reprint): Revises. provisions relating to common-interest
cormumunities, (BDR 10-264)

| have a few questions on this bill. Last night we discussed Supreéme bourt Rule
24 that established a $1,000 cap for arbitrators. | believe Ms,:Lavelle answered
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that these arbitrations are much more complicated and are often at a value
higher than the $50,000 set in the Supreme Court Rule. Even with the
proposed cap, how high do you think arbitrator’s fees might go, assuming that
is promulgated through regulation. My fear is that arbitrator’s fees might be too
high. .

Eleissa Lavelle, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada:

The issue has to do with the complexity of some of these issues. [ understand
that there is a lot of frustration. There is frustration on everybody’s part, those
of us who have these cases before arbitrators and some of us that are
arbitrating, and | understand your concern. The difference has to do with what
these cases are about. While sometimes the cases can be very simple, they
deal with whether there has been a violation, either it happens or it does not
happen, or either it is established or it is not established. Those are easy, and
I agree that those fees should be minimat. | absolutely share the concern with
this. Every case that comes before a court or an arbitrator does not necessarily
have a dollar amount that Is the most significant part of it. Sometimes the most
significant part may be dealing with an interpretation of one of the governing
documents, or how the documents work together, As an example, | had a
matter as an arbitrator recently where the community documents were very
complicated. They set up various neighborhoods and there vvere some gaps in
those documents with respect to the way certain communities were going to be
separately assessed, or certain Individuals were going to be separately
assessed. In order to reach a decision on that case, it was necessary to take
testimony from a number of people and to do a very detailed interrelationship
between the declaration and statutory intendons. That being said, the dollar
amount is not significant, but the ramifications were huge. |t was not
necessary to do a site visit, and it was not necessary to take days and days of
testimony.

The way that you might consider limiting these is not only a cap on the dollar
amount of hourly fees that are charged, but some parameters arotnd the kinds
of activities that arbitraters should engage in. That way you can control what
might be considered padding of bills, or inappropriate, unnecessary work that is
sometimes done. | am not saying that arbitrators are doing that, but sometimes
I think there might he s feeling that they are,

Another way would be to have an oversight mechanism, by reguiation, so that

the Comimission for Common-Interest Communities and Condominium Hotels,-

the Rea! Estate Division of the Department of Business and Industry, or the
Real Estate Administrator would have the abllity to review an arbitrator's bill if
someone thought it was too high and determine whether it exceeded what were
reasonable parameters, There are models for this within the state bar. There is
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a fee dispute committee. If an aggrieved client feels an attorney's fees are too

high, he or she can go before the committee and clairn the fees are

inappropriate. There are different ways of controlling these costs. An absolute
cap is not going to solve the problem. | know some of these arbitrators charge
as little as $115 per hour, but their fees are enormous because of what they are

doing.

Chairman Ohrenschall: .

So with the Supreme Court Rule, which has a cap of $1,000, is there a loophole
where the court may award additional damages, or is it the fact that these
disputes are under $50,000? | am still having trouble with the fact that under
Supreme Court Rule 24, the $1,000 cap works for ali of thase arbitrations, yet
you feel it is not adequate here, .

Eleissa Lavelle: :
When you are dealing with the arbitration provisions that are conducted through
the court systems, a big component of these issues has to do with discovery
and perhaps pretrial motions.~ There is a court-appointed discovery
commissioner where parties can go to have those issues briefed and heard.
Those are outside the $1,000 cap. They are heard by someone else and the
costs incurred by that are not included within the arbitration. The issues are
there, the problems are dealt with, but they are not dealt with within the scope
of the arbitration. Those costs can be huge. If you look at what those
Supreme Court rules and the mandatory arbitration provisions dea! with, they
limit the scope of what is considered within those cases. [t is not just a dollar
amount of a claim that is limited; it is also the character and nature of the
disputes that are heard. Complicated disputes dealing with title to real property,
declaratory relief actions, et cetera, are excluded from those mandatory
arbitrations. The reason for that is it is understood that those matters may be
more complicated and cannot be simply divided up based upon a dollar amount.
Because there js more involved, you cannot stick them with a $1,000 cap.

Chairman Ohrenschall: : .-
Thank you. Do you feel comfortable that if this passes with Senator Copening's
amendment, that these caps that wiil be in regulation will be adequate to ensure
that there are not any outrageous or egregious arbitrator fees?

Elpissa Lavelie: :
| think there needs to be a combination of things. | think that the iimitation in
Senator Copening's amendment is a significant part of this. In addition to that,
the testimony that you heard last night from Gail Anderson and the regulations
that she would propose for adoption are ancther significant part. You cannot
deal with this issue with one bullet. There needs to be a number of different
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approaches taken. Together, a limitation on the dollar amount of fees and other
types of structures that are imposed, and other oversights that are imposed, are
going to be the control. One other idea, the market, to some extent, controls
who gels selected. [f somecne is outrageous in the fees and is constantly
overbilling, and there is a pool of good arbitrators, that arbitrator is not going to
be doing much work. That is something that is within the structural control of

the Administrator.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Thank you. Any guestions?

Assemblyman McArthur;
! just want Yo clarify that we are looking at the amendment where there is a

maximum of $225 per hour, and not the $1,000 hard cap?

Chairman Ohrenschall:
If we process conceptual amendment one by Senator Copening, there would be

a conflict with what we passed in Assembly Bill 448, which was a $1,000 cap .

on arbitration fees.

Jonathan Friedrich, Private Citizen, Las Vegas, Nevada:

Regarding the $225 per hour, is this per side, which would then be $4507
I have seen a lot of arbitrators® resumes and they normally put between
$7100 and $200 per hour, which is for each side. It is very unclear whether this
$225 Is in total or split each side? As far as oversight is concerned; 1 am
looking at Mevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 38.360, which says "The Division
shall administer the provisions of NRS 38.300 to 28.360 . " There is no
administration. | have written documentation from Mr. Gordon Milden who says
that the Real Estate Division only facilitates the process. So as far as oversight
is concemed, currently the Division is supposed to be administering this

program and it is not. Regarding the statement that if one arbitrator is charging

much more than another, how would a homeowner who has never gone
through this process know that? There are stifl a lot of holes in this bill. | am
concerned where it says that the Division "may” pay "if" there are funds
available and "if" the Commission approves it. If not, then the homeowner is
stuck with these outrageous fees.

Chairman Dhrenschall:
What section are you referring to? | found it, section 15, subsection B, lines

18 through 23, states:
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The Division may provide for the payment of the fees for a
mediator selected or appointed pursuant to this section from the
Account for Common-Interest Communities and Condominium
Hotels created by NRS 116.630, to the extent that:

(a) The Commission approves the payment; and )
(b) There is money available in the Account for this purpose

Jonathan Friedrich:
It is also mentioned earlier in the bill.

Chalrman Qhrenschall:

Your question about whether both sides would have to pay, is a question | had '

not thought of.

Assemblyman McArthur:
I think the intent'was $225 per hour total.

Eleissa Lavelle:

That is correct. The hourly rate is the maximum rate, normally to be split
between the parties. There have been instances where an arbitrator will award
fees to one side or anather, but the $225 is the total hourly rate that the

arbitrator would charge.

Chairman QOhrenschatli:

Is that approximately the fair rate that arbitrators are being paid now? o

Eleissa Lavelle:

| think the hourly rates range between $150 to $400 per hour. It depends on’

what the arbitrator is doing. The parties are entitled to not select an arbitrator if

they choose to. The rates have been published, and within the resumes that are
submitted to the parties, the hourly rates of the arbitrators are prowded 50 they
know ahead of time.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
If this bill passes, would both sides have to agree on the medlator, ar would the

Division pick the mediator.

Eleissa Lavelle:

i would like to make a distinction between medtators and arbitrators with
respect to both of these professionals. The parties would be provided a list
from which they could jointly select a mediator or an arbitrator. That list is

-

maintained by the Division, If they could not reach a decision, then the Division-*

US BANKO559



Assembly Committee an Judiciary
May 17, 2011
Page 61

would make the appointment. That is consistent with the way that the district
courts handle and administer the arbitration program and it is also consistent
with the way other organizations, such as the American Arbitration Association,
conduct their selection process.

Chairman Qhrenschali:
Thank you. In locking at the conceptual amendment presented by

Senator Copening, it says to mandate the Administrator of the Nevada Division
of Real Estate to adopt regulations by August 1, 2011, capping the fees that
may be charged for arbitration under NRS 38.300 through 38.380, and put in
statute that these charges may not exceed $225 per hour. Was this meant to
be a cap on mediator’s fees or solely to cap arbitrator's fees?

Eleissa Lavells:
| cannot speak for Senator Copening, but [ believe the idea is that there would

be a cap on both arbitrator's fees and mediator’s fees.

Chalrman Obrenschall:
Senator Copening, can you address that?.

Senator Copening:
Only because | do not know the difference between mediation and arbitration,

| had a recommendation and | think that one of the amendments that came
through from one of the testifiers mentioned just arbitration, and that is why
| had proposed that. | certainly would not object to having both in there.
Generally, if a mediator charges less than an arbitrator, then perhaps we should
make the cap for the mediator less than the cap for the arbitrator.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
So you would be amenable if we were to also propose a reasonable cap on

mediator’s fees?

Senator Copening: )
| certainly would. | would want the people who work in that industry to speak

to what the appropriate cap would be. .

Michael Buckley, Chair, Commission for Cemmon-interest Communities and

Condominium Hotels:
| think the idea would be that the Real Estate Division would contract with
mediators for a fiat fee of $500 per mediation. Certainly the idea of a cap cn
mediation is the intent, and we would not object to putting a cap on it, The

Real Estate Division would get resumes and put mediators under contract, and )

they would agree to mediate these particutar problems for a set fee, It would
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be much less, and not necessarily on an hourly fee, but it would be a cap per
mediation.

Eleissa Lavelle:

| agree with that. [ think that is certainly something that can be accomplished
for a flat fee. Normally, these mediations are going to go, perhaps, a half a day
or a day at the very most, There could be some reasonabie way of
accommodating a fAat number, so that everyone knows what he or she is

getting into.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Would you be averse to our amending Senator Copening's conceptual
amendment number ope to mandate that the Administrator at the Nevada

Division of Real Estate estahlish a flat fee cap for every mediation?

Eieissa Lavelle:
| do not think that is unreasonabie,

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Gail Anderson, would you be okay with that? She Is noddmg her head yes.

Ms. Lavelle, do you do think it would be appropriate to place the cap in statute
the way we might with the $225 cap proposed for arbitrators? .

Eleissa Lavefle:

[ think it is appropriate to do $225 cap for an hourly rate for arbitrators, along
with additional regulations governing the structure and the way -these
arbitrations are going to be conducted, and an oversight by the Division as to
fees. You cannot really limit the total number for the arbitration fees because
each arbitration is going to be different. The costs will be different based upon
the complexity of the issue. With respect to mediations, | believe that a flat fee

cap is entirely appropriate.

Assemblyman MecArthur:
Are we going to come up with 2 number for the flat mediation fee?

Chairman Ohrenschall:
That would be up to this subcommittee.

Assembiyman McArthur:
If we set a cap for arbitration, we should set it for mediation also.
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
Setting a cap that may not exceed $500 for mediation. Does that seem

reasonable?

Eleissa Lavelle: ]
I think that is a fair number. | also think that is consistent with what the

Supreme Courl has authorized for its mediation program; so | think there is
precedent for that. ! also believe that if you do cap it at $500, you will be more
likely to be able to accommodate the money that has been set aside for this
purpose so that it will not have to come,out of the parties” pockets.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

As | read through the bill, there are different provisions for someone who does
not show up and participate having to pay all the fees, If both sides participate;
then do both sides divide the fee for the mediation, after the available funds
have been exhausted? -

Eleissa Lavelle:
That is the way it is normally handled untess through the mediation -settiement,

occasionally, as a way of settling the case, one side will offer to pay the other
side’s fees. That can be flexible, but under normat situations, the costs would

be split.

Chalrman Ohrenschalk
That is in conceptual amendment number three to change section 1,

subsection 5, of the bill to state that the parties shall evenly split the costs of
mediation should there be a charge. That seems ilke a good clarificalion to me.

Assemblyman McArthur:
it looks like we covered number three, so | would be in favor of conceptual

amendments one, twao, and three.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

You are in favor of conceptual amendments one, two, and three proposed by
Senator Copening, including in conceptual amendment one, a direction to the
Administrator to promulgate regulations establishing a flat fee for mediation at

no more than $500 total? Mr. Carrillo, are you all right with the addltlonal cap_

on mediation fees?

Assemblyman Carrilla:
Yes, | am good with that,
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Chairman Ohrenschali:

| stil have sorne reservations about the $2725 versus the $1,000 to cap.
although it seems that Ms. Lavelle has expressed the need for this. There was
an issue brought up zbout class action suits ard not requiring them to go to
mediation. How would this bill affect a potential class action?

Eleissa Lavelle:

Typically, these cases are not heard as a class action, but they can affect a
group of people. You may have factions in an association. That is certainly
something that happens and is the thorniest of problems to deal with. They are
not typically characterized as class. actions, and are not certified. | do not see
any reason why those types of disputes would not go to mediation. In fact, it
seems that those types of disputes are exactly why mediation should be

effectuated.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
If they were not happy with the mediation, they couid then file a class action, or

would they have to go to arbitration under this bili?

Eleissa Lavelle: .
If the mediation did not settle, and if they could not reach an accord and resolve
their disputes, the mediator would make the recommendation that the case goes
to the Division for investigation and go before the Commission. For example,
ore group of homeowners believes that the board has acted inappropriately and
has violated NRS Chapter 118, There may be 50 people in 3 community who
are aggrieved about this. If they cannot reach an agreement, it may go to the
Division for investigation and go through that process. That is already In place.
If it needs to go to arbitration, the mediator would send it to arhitration instead.
The mediator would have the understanding of what the dispute is and be able
to direct it in one direction or the other. -

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Under S.B. 254 (R1), the mediator determnines whether it should go to
arbitration or to the Division. There is no opt out for either party, correct?

Eleissa Lavelie:

The mediator makes the recommendation to go either one way or the other.
Ultimately, if the parties still do not get satisfaction, if the arbitrator gets it
wrong, oF they feel the Commission’s decision is inappropriate, they can then
go to coust as an ultimate way of getting another bite at the apple. Presumably,
iF the mediator sent something to arbitration and the arbitrator felt that it should
not be with him, he Is not prevented from kicking it back, Similarly, if the
Division gets the case, it can also refer it Lo arbitration.

"
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Chairman Ohrenschall: _
If one of the parties in mediation did not want to go to arbitration, would there

be anything else he or she could do?

Eleissa Lavelle:

The medistor would recommend where the dispute would be heard because the
mediator would have a greater insight as to what these disputes are. Typically,
the way the statute exists now, the party files a complaint and the Division
makes the decision as to whether it will go to arbitration or to the intervention
process. It is somewhat the same. The party can file, but if the Division does
not believe it is being cohducted where the party wants It to be conducted, the

Division can move it to the other process.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:

So one of the parties would not have to go the arbitration route if he or she had
misgivings about arbitration. We have heard Mr. Friedrich talk about the
experiences he has had where the fees are very exorbitant. For clarification,
under S.B. 254 {R1), if one of the parties had a fear of arbitration, he or she
could choose ta ga an alternative route. s that correct? to

Eleissa Lavelle:

No, that is not quite accurate. The ultimate ohjective is to have the dispute
decided. The question is who is going to decide it? What this statute does is
establish jurisdiction over the dispute, much in the same way as the Nevada
statutes establish jurisdiction of justice COUrts, district courts, and the
Supreme Court. This statute establishes jurlsdiction between the arbitration
process and the intervention process based upon the nature of the dispute. It
has to do with how the case is going to be decided, based upon what is being
requested to be decided. It is almost a jurisdictional type of allocation.

Gail Anderson, Administrator, Real Estate Division, Department of Business
and Industry: )
| would like to clarify the jurisdiction. The Real Estate Division Investigative
compliance arm only has jurisdiction, and the Commissicn over violations of the
law. |f someone's dispute does not concern a violation of the law, it is not an
option. The Real Estate Division compliance section can look at it and make
sure, but if it is a governing documents dispute, the Real Estate Division and the
Commission will not be able to deal with it, as there is no jurisdiction there.
The only option then is arbitration, if a ruling is required. The other dimension
here is if someone wants to sue civilly, he or she has to go through arbitration
or mediation under NRS Chapter 38. If the ultimate goal is some kind of civil
litigation, he or she will have to go to arbitration or mediation. While there is
some discretion, it really is a jurisdictionai question of who can deal with what
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the substance of the problem is. Sometimes there is a combination with some
potential vioiations of the law that the Real Estate Division can deal with, but
cannot touch the governing document side of it. Jurisdiction is the bottom line
and the Division would be Involved in determining and closing a case,

Chairman Dhrenschall:
Currently, no one is forced into arbitration; it is a choice, correct?

Gail Andarson:

That is correct; no one is forced into it, but the party is told that if there is not a
violation of law, the Real Estate Division does not have jurisdiction. The other
option is to go through arbitration or mediation.

Chairman Ohrenschall: .

Eventually, even after arbitration, someone could get to court if he or she
wanted to, but he or she would first have to go through the Division, then
mediation and arbitration, or am | misunderstanding. .

Gail Anderson:

If someone’s vltimate goal is to go to court, he or she will do the Aiing of
affidavit, go through mediation, and if not resolve in medtation, then must file
for arbitration, administered by the Real Estate Division to get to court.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. Any questions? [There were none.]

Eleissa Lavelle:

! was reminded of another issue regarding setting the cap on mediation fees.
While a $500 cap is appropriate in most cases, | want to ensure that parties
could opt out of the cap if for some reason the matter were more complex and
required more time. For example, if there is a complex mediation, the parties
may choose to go forward and continue to mediate beyond what is normally

expected,

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
Would you want that same opt out opportunity on the arbltratlon cap?

Eleissa Lavelle:

| think if the parties wanted to select an arbitrator that charged at a higher rate,
and that arbitrator was acceptable to the Division, if both parties agree to the
rate, they should be allowed to select that arbitrator. | would suggest the
parties be given the right to make their own decision if it is a greater amount,’

US BANKO565



Assembly Committee on Judiciary
May 17, 2011
Page 67

Chairman Ohrenschall:
This would be at their own expense, if they chose to waive the cap, correct?

Elelssa Lavelle:
Correct.  Either both parties agree, or if one party agrees to pick up the
difference, that party should be given the opportunity to do so.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. Any questions?

Assemblyman McArthur:
Do we really need to add that into statute? They can do that on their own and

pay it out of their own pocket.

Chalimean Ohrenschall: .
| think we might if we are directing the Administrator of the Real Estate Division

to establish a cap for mediators and arbitrators.

Assemblyman McArthur:
That is 8 cap that is put on the mediators and arbitrators. After that, it is the

decision of the parties.

Chairman Ohrenschali:

We may need to check with Legal about that. One concern that was expressed
to me last night in an email was that if someone gets behind in paying these
mediation or arbitration fees, it could end up as a lien on his property that could
be foreclosed upon. |s that a valid concern?

Eleissa Lavelle:

Normally, the declarations will include a provision for an award of attorney's
fees to-the prevailing party. Attorney's fees and court COSLS can be awarded by
the arbitrator against one side in an arbitration. That becomes part of the
arbitration award. It is not a fine; it is a separate issue and | do not know that
there is anything in this statute that makes those attorney's fees lienable,
except to the extent that there Is a judgment ultimately entered on that award.
So attorney’s fees and arbitrator's fees alone are not a lienable assessment for

which 2 nonjudicial foreclosure can take place. The point of the arbitration

awards is that, for example, someone has not landscaped his or her property.
The arbitrator may say the association has the right, if not fixed within 30 days,
to make repairs to the landscaping at $1,000. That is reduced to a judgment
through the district court or the justice court depending on jurisdiction. Now
there is a judgment against the individuat that is recorded against the property.
If the person does not pay the money and any attormey's fees and costs, yes,
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through the normal judgment process, he or she could ultimately execute for
that. That is no different than any other judgment in courL. This arbitration
process does not change that. If the parties went directly to court to-get that
enforced, the right would be the same.

Michael Buckley:
I agree with Ms. Lavelle. Whether or not the association could foreclose for

these fees goes to the section we were discussing before, - which is’

NRS 116.3116. That states that the association can have a lien for fines,
construction penalties, and assessments. | think that this is not a fine, it is not
a construction penalty, and it is not an annual assessment. | suspect that you
could make an argument that the association might be able to make a special
assessment against someone based on the language in the covenants,
conditions, and restrictions (CCRs), but | do not think it is clear one way or the
other. This bill does not address that. It goes back to the collection issue in
NRS 116.3116. My own preference is that the way these should be enforced
would be through the normal judgment process unless, for example, the
arbitration award determines that what the person did violated the CCRs, and
therefore fits under the normal basis to make a special assessment. There is a
provision that says that if an owner ran into the guard gate, it must be fixed.
The owner says | did not do it. If you caused the damage to the association,
you should be liable as a spectal assessment. There Is a fine fine, but this hill
does not address that issue.

Chalrman Ohrenschall: o
Would either of you be averse to some language in the bill that would clarify
that arbitrator's fees and mediator's fees could never be considered

assessments for foreclosure purposes?

Elelssa Lavelle:

| do not have a problem with saying they are not lienable in the sense that they
would be subject to a nonjudicial foreclosure. To the extent that they would be
included in’ a judgment issued by a court, they would be subject to a judicial
foreclosure, which carries with it a right of redemption. "The assessments in

NRS Chapter 116 are nonjudicial. They. happen without any right of

redemption. | think there needs to be a mechanism for the association to collect
these fees. This is money that everybody in the community will have to pay
because one person has done something that has been found to be

inapproprate.

Chalrman Dhrenschall:
So we need some clarifying language saying that the arbitrator's fees and
mediator's fees are rot lienable to the extent that it Is a nonjudicial foreclosure.
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| agree, they should be collectable; | just do not want them to be considered
part of the arrears for fareclosure. ’ :

Eleissa Lavelle:
| agree with that.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| am not comfortable with that. Jt is muddying the waters and | am not sure it
belongs in this particular bill. We have problems whether it is judicial or

nonjudicial.

Chairman Chrenschall:

! think we are trying to clarify this, not muddy the waters. We are trying to.say
that these fees for mediators and arbitrators would never be one of those
categories under NRS Chapter 118 where the HOA is allowed to pursue
foreclosure, which are arrears assessments, and the two exceptions for fines or
penalties having to do with construction penalties, and with the health hazard
penalty. This would clarify that these fees are definitely not something for
which an HOA can foreclose on your home.

Assemblyman McArthur;
Are you saying that the addition of these fees may put them in foreclosure

because they cannot pay for them?

Chairman Chrenschall:

| want to clarify that the addition of these fees would not be part of that

nonjudicial foreclosure provided for under NRS Chapter 116. The mediator and
. arbitrator could still go to court and get a judgment, and potentially put a lien on

the property.

Eleissa Lavelle:
Anytime you have a judgment against an individual, regardless of whether it is a

breach of contsact, hit someone in the face, or whatever, if you get a judgment.

in court, you can record that judgment and it becomes a lien on atl properties.
That is standard Nevada law and it has to do with every single kind of judgment
you can get. This would fall into that category. If an association or a
homeowner were to get a judgment against the adverse party and record it, it
becomes a lien against that party's property. Because it is a lien, that judgment
can be executed on. There are homestead exemptions that apply to this kind of
judgment. So the likelihood of foreclosing & judgment lien based upon a
violation of someone’s CCRs diminishes because it Is a judgment lien. Thisis a
significant protection to homeowners but may still provide a way for an
association to be paid. For example, if the home sells, it will be paid through
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escrow. It is a middle ground and is a way of providing a mechanism by which
the prevailing party can get paid upon the sale of a property, but it does not
allow for an immediate nonjudicial foreclosure.

Michael Buckley:

] think these are not really clear issues, and as Ms. Lavelle has pointed out, this
is very complex. For example, NRS 116.310312, which deals with an
abandoned or vacated unit and the association has the ability to clean up a unit,
there could be charges. 1 do not know whether that wou!ld be subject te an
arbitration if someone objected, but there was an express finding of that by the
Legislature last session that these costs should be enforceable as a lien. In fact,
it is given a super priority lien. [ think we need to be very careful in how to
frame the language. We forget sometimes how complex NRS Chapter 116 is,
and if you tweak something one place, it may end up making something else
not work.

Assemblyman MeArthur:
That is my concern. | am not sure this is necessary because we could cause

other problems.

Chairman Chrenschall: .
Mr. Buckley, do you think that adding the language we discussed earlier would
cause problems elsewhere in NRS Chapter 1167 ‘

Michael Buckley:

| think it can be done if it is carefully worded. The basic idea that you are
suggesting is that the attorney's fees and costs, and the arbitrator's fees and
costs would not be part of the lien under NRS 11 6.3116 as long as it was clear
that it was unless expressly provided for elsewhere. Also, Iet us go into this
again, because the arbitration deals with the amount of the assessment. If
someone is not paying his or her assessment, 1 do not know whether the
association would arbitrate an assessment but certainly if the arbitration
invoives the collection of an assessment, the association is entitled to collect its
fees. As mentioned, the assessments are the lifeblood of the association, and it
is clear that the association has the right to collect. There is really no defense
to not paying your assessments. [f the association incurs costs in collecting
assessments, they should be included. in concept, it is the subject matter of
the arbitration that makes it complicated. IF the subject matter deals with
something that gives the assaciation the ability to lien, then it may not work.

Assemblyman McArthur: .
My main concern is that it would have to be drafted very carefully. If you are
comfortable that this ean be drafted, | do not have a real problem.
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Chalirman Ohrenschzll: -

! am all right with it. Mr. Carrillo, are you okay with the clarification thai fees -

from mediation and arbitration could never be part of a nonjudicial foreclosure
provided for in NRS Chapter 1167 ’

Assemblyman Carrillo;
Yes, | am good with that.

Cheirman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. Next we will review Senator Copening’s amendment number four,
which is to include in section 5 the reguirement that penalties be imposed for

the responder of the ciaim filing in bad faith, false, fraudulent, or frivolous

response ta a ciaim. | believe that is from Mr. Stebhins’ amendment. He was
concerned that section 5 of the bill would not work both ways.

Michael Bucklay:

On page 11, line 9, you see that the ariginal intent was that if you file a claim
of a response, a person is certifying that to the best of the person's knowledge,
information and belief, formed after an inguiry reasonable *under the
circumstances, and it applies to not just the person who files the claim, but the
respondent also. . ’

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. Any questions? [There were none.]

Michael Buckley:
On page 19 is the same issue. Line 2B refers to a claim or response; on line 40
it just refers to the claim. It should also refer to the ciaim or response,

Assemblyman McArthor:
So for amendment number four we will be adding the word "respondent” or

"response.”

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Yes, this is just a cleanup. Mr. Carrillo, are you okay with conceptual

amendment number four?

Assemblymen Camillo:
Yes, | am good with that.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Conceptual amendment number five was proposed by Mr. Segerblom, which we

processed yesterday, as a mock-up.
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Dave Ziegler: -
| checked that moeck-up against this bill, and | did not see any overlap between

that mock-up and this bill.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
So this is a new amendment?

Dave Ziegler: oo
No. Amendment number five in Senator Copening's document that states she

is in favor of the friendly amendment, number 6818, that applies to

Senate Bill 204 (R1). | checked it and | do not see how it overlaps with this bill.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Okay, and we already accepted that amendment, 50 we do not need it here.

Conceptual amendment number 6 presented by Senator Copening states, "Add
language in Sec. 1 that states that If a party fails to participate in the mediation,
that party shall be responsible for any and all costs of that mediation.” | believe
this will hold parties accountable for resolving their differences.

Nichazl Bucklay:
| would propose that | think this is a good amendment and we need to

incorporate the idea of good faith. I think that is in the foreclosure statutes.
You would not want someong going through the motions; they need to
participate in good faith. .

Chairman Ohrenschall: .
So we will change that to read "fails to participate in good faith in the
mediation . . . .” That is quite a departure from what Mr. Stebbins had

proposed.

Michael Buckley: . .
| do not think so. When people say "participate,” we think they will participate
in the process, and as lawyers we think how will this work in practice. The
practice might be that you could read that literally by saying | will go, but | am
not going to get involved. | think the idea of participate, good faith is inherent

" with what Mr, Stebbins suggested.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
Mr. McArthur and Mr, Carrillo, are you both okay with this amendment,

including the addition of the words "good fFaith” as proposéd by Mr. Buckley?
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Assermnblyman McArthur:
Yes.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| am good.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

Conceptual amendment number seven reads, "Add language in Sec. 10 that if
the person whom a copy of the claim was served refuses or fails to file a
written response with the division not tater than 30 days after the date of
service, the allegations of the claim are deemed substantiated.” My only
concern is what if there is a bona fide reason that the person could not
participate? Should we put in an exception? | would hate for all the allegations
to be considered true against him or her if there was a bana fide excuse.

Assemblyman Carrillo:

| think you need to ensure that things are In" order if you are going to be away
for a period of time. Putting your head in the sand does not resolve anything.
If you are going to be away, you need to make sure your business is taken.care
of before you leave. Obviously, we cannot know whether we will be in the
hospital for six months, but a power of attorney would assist getting around
this issue. In fact, if you are in the service, you have to give a power of
attomney; so that cannot be used as an excuse. You need to ensure your house

is in order.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
in an ideal universe that is how it would be. But there could be unforeseen

problems.

Assemblyman NcArthur:
1 agree with Mr. Carrillo. Unless there is a medical emergency that extended the
time pericd, | think in most of the other cases you shoutd be able to take care of

your own situation.

Michael Buckley:

| think this could be solved with the word "may” be deemed substantiated. We
see this in the Commission, in a complaint where someone did not respond, and
you see it in the judicial system. You do take the default, but it is not’'an
autornatic that you win. The person would need to prove that the respondent
was actually served, | think you would leave that up to the arbitrator. | think

that is a customary legal process.
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Eleissa Lavelle:

{ think something perhaps as a hybrid so that there may be some requirement
that the case be proved perhaps by affidavil so there does not have to be a
full-blown hearing if the party does not show up, but it could be an abbreviated

hearing to keep the costs low.

Chairman Chrenschall:
That would be in addition to this amendment?

Eleissa Lavelle:

Actually 1 think the word "may" does it, but | think you may want to say that it
is not an absolute that the party still needs to establish by affidavit or some
abbreviated mechanism that the arbitrator designates to establish the service
has been proper and that the claim is appropriate.

Chairman Chrenschall:
That gives me a lot more comfort. Mr. McArthur and Mr. Carrillo, would you be

all right with amendment number seven if we changed it from "the allegations
of the claim are deemed substantiated” to "the allegations of the claim may be
deemed substantiated” and include proof of service and perhaps affidavits that

prove the alleg ations?

Assemblyman McArthur:
1 would be okay if we can come up with a good conceptual amendment along

those lines.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
{ am okay.

Chairman Ohrenschali:
Thank you.

Michael Joe, representing Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada:

| want to comment about what the foreclosure mediation program is doing in
terms of people who have 8 reason for not attending a mediation. The
Supreme Court explained to me that they have ruled a lot about the phrase
"good cause." Under the mediation program they allow a homeowner or a
lender to say they cannot attend for good cause. This has to ke a request in
writing. The foreclosure mediation program has it addressed specifically by rule.
We do see it come up quite often. :
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Chairman Ohrenschall:
Do you know what the foreclosure mediation program charges to conduct a

mediation?

Michael Joe:

They charge a flat fee of $400. In terms of what that worlks out to per hour, it
varies. The program allows for four hours. Some mediations take less and
some will go longer. For the 5400, the mediator guarantees four hours of
mediation plus the mediator does the scheduling work and documentation work
up-front. The mediator easily puts in the four hours of work. They have 215
mediators and most of them are happy to do this work. | am okay with a cap
on fees, as well,

Chalirman Ohrenschali:

Thank you. Regarding the proposed clarifying language that we want to add to
ensure that mediator's fees do not become something foreclosable under
NRS Ghapter 116, do you have an opinion on that?

Michael Joe:

I specialize in doing foreclosures and | deal with people with homeowners®
associations (HOAs). We believe that the foreclosure under that statute should
only be limited to those situations where it is a violation of paying the
association dues and assessments. We do believe that an association plans its
budget on those and therefore should be able to collect on it. The most serious
remedy we give them of foreclosure should be limited to that and should not be
applied to other things. If there is a foreclosure for some other reason, that is
okay. It cold be a judicial forectosure, which | have never seen. You cannot
foreclose nonjudicially in Nevada; you have to foreclose judicially, so as a
practical matter, they just do not bother foreclosing.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
| received an emall, and | am not sure this would be an amendment the

Subcommittee would consider. What if during the mediation, the fines froze
until the mediator made his decision? s that something that you think would be
reasonable?

Michael Joe:
1 am sorry, |.do not understand.

Chalrman Ohrenschall:
After the parties enter the mediation, what If the fines, fees, and any potential
foreclosure were frozen until the mediator made the decision?
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Michael Joe: .
| think there are some real issues of due process for the homeowner, Can you

foreclose on someone while he is still appealing something? | think there should
be a stay on foreclosure and also maybe on some of the fees. There are
different situations where it might be okay, but in general, if you have the
mediator’s intent to be quick, | think you can resolve an issue, and during that
period, through the pendency of that hearing, maybe it should be stayed. In the
mediation program, we essentially stay the foreclosure until the mediation is

completad.

Chelrman Ohrenschall:
Sp it is possible that this mediation program for problems with HOAs could take

a lot of lessons from how the foreclesure mediation program is working under
the auspices of the Nevada Supreme Court. It seems that it is working well in
terrns of how it administers the program.

tMicheel Joe:
The foreclosure mediation program has had a lot of effort put into it, and

therefore, it is a pretty decent program. [t gives homeowners one way to’

appeal and it is appealed pretty quickly and efficiently. If everybody does their
Jjobs, the foreclosure mediation program runs within that 90- to 111-day period
that it takes to foreclose. in addition, | know the neighborhood justice center
does mediations on a routine basis. | know there are a lot of trained mediators
in Clark County and across the state. There is a pool of mediators whao are
available to do this, and you could craft a program that works pretty well.
Currently, there is a $50 fee for the notice of default that goes to fund the
program and the administration of it. | am not sure whether that would be

avaitable for this program.

Michael Buckley:

There is a difference between assessments and other fees. | am not sure there
is anything the association can do if it Is in mediation as far as collecting the
penalties or fines. [t s different as far as assessments go. If someone is not
paying his or her assessments, | do not think the assessments shouid stop or
that the association should be stopped from enforcing its liens for the
assessments, Those assessments are the lifeblood of the association. They are
based on a budget and there are not too many arguments you can make about
not paying your assessment. There are lots of arguments as far as fines or
interpretation of the documents or construction pehalties, et cetera. | would

distinguish between those.
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Chairman Ohrenschall;
You would be all right with freezing any move toward collections, fines, or

potential foreclosure if it dealt with construction penalties as long as it did not
deal with arrears assessments. |Is that correct?

Michael Buckiey:
| think | would be okay with that.

Fleissa Lavelle:
When you see these arbitrations or intervention matters, if someone has

violated the goveming documents, for example, he or she has not landscaped
his or her property, or he or she left his garbage cans out, or there may be some
other dispute that has absolutely nothing to do with construction penaities or
with the payment of the assessments. | personally think it is inappropriate to
penalize the association for enforcing a rule or regulation that has nothing to do
with those assessments and then not ailowing them to collect the assessments,
If there is a homeowner who is absolutely violating rules and regulations on
something that has nothing to do with payment of assessments or construction
penazlties, there Is no reason that you stop the payment of assessments because
he or she has not taken his or her garbage cans in or left pla_yground equipment
out. One has nothing to do with the cther.

Chalrman Ohrenschall: .

Perhaps | am not expressing myself ciearly. | was thinking that only fines,
collection costs, or interest should be suspended during the pendency of any
mediation or arbitration, because that could be part of the arbitrator's award.

I was not referring to the assessments,

Eleissa Lavella:
| wanted to ensure that was the case because | was hearing different thlngs and

I wanted to clear it up. If a homeowner Is being assessed $10 per month for a .

violation and the arbitration process goes for 4 months, does that mean that

during the time there will be no retroactive assessment of those fines? Do they-

stop completely, or simply stop the collection process during that fime?

Chairman Ohrenschall:
The way I was envisioning this is that any action by a collection agency would
be stopped until resolution. 1 also believe that any interest accrual would stop.

- Michael Buckley:
Under NRS there was no interest on fines by statute, but that was changed in

2008, I believe that the fine is not foreclosable, except for the two exceptions
you mentioned, I arm not aware of collection agencies enforcing fines.
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Eleissa Lavelle:
The distinction needs to be if we are talking about the accrual of the fine as

opposed to the collection of the fine,

Chairman Ohrenschall: :

What would be the adverse impact to having both frozen until the mediator or
arbitrator makes his decision?

Eleissa Lavella:

| have no problem with freezing them both, provided that the arbitrator is °

entitled to do a retroactive award of those accrued fines if it is determined that
the homeowner has violated the governing documents.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Do you feel that would need to be spelled out in statute?

Elaissa Lavelle:

| think it is happening that way now. | would not want to see the provision be
authored in such a way that the association's ability to retroactively collect
those acerued fines be diminished if in fact it is determined that the homeowner

has violated.

Chairman Ohrenschell:

In those two exceptions on fines where someone could lose his or her home for
construction penaities or for a health hazard issue, assuming that got resolved,
it might prevent a foreciosure if the fediator or arbitrator is able to reach a

succassful agreement.

Eleissa Lavelle:
That would be absolutely appropriate.

Assemblyman McArthur:
| am not comfortable with this at all. This new language for this new

amendment, we are going to have to add too much technical wording for a_

conceptual amendment.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
i thirk our Legal division is pretty topnotch.

Assemblyman NMcArthur:
| understand that, but we have a lot of topnotch stuff we are adding to this bill

already.
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Chairman Chrenschall:
We do want it to be right.

Assemblyman McArthur: .
Well, if you want to bring it back to another work session later this week 50 we

can see those conceptual amendments.

Chairman Ohrenschall: :
We could always propose the amendment to the full Committee. [ could make
my recommendation and you can certainly express your opinions against it.
Mr. Carrillo, what are your feelings? .

Assemblyman Carrilio:
| concur with that, Chairman.

Chalirman Ohrenschail:
Mr. Joe, is there anything else here in S.B. 254 (R1) that causes you any
concern for your clients?

Michael Joe:
I see arbitration clauses all the time, and for those of us who went to law

school, it seemed like they were good things. | have no problem with arbitration
as long as it is reined in and accomplishes what it is supposed to. | think
arbitration was intended to be an alternative to the judicial process; it is
supposed to be cheaper, and to the extent that it does not turn out to be easier,
or cheaper, or faster, what is the point? If you are saying that you want to
have an arbitration and mediation process that has reasonable costs, | am okay
with that. Sometimes arbitration can run amuck, then they ought ‘to be in
district court and they should not be barred from doing that. If the reason an
arbitrator wants to charge $10,000 to $20,000 is because it is so complicated,
then maybe it should be in district court. Having a cap on it wilt drive those
cases that should be in the district court and this will give them an opportumty
to get there. | am in favor of a cap for both the arbitration and mediation.

Chairman Ohrenschaii:
| suppose as a compromise, we could go ahead with the $500 flat fee for

rnediation and with the $225-per-hour fee that Senator Copening recommended,
rmaybe have a maximum of $2,500, and give the party the option to go to
district-court if the fees will be higher than that.

Michael Buckley:
The Real Estate Division has a group of experienced arbitrators who Know
NRS Chapter 116. As we all know, NRS Chapter 116 is complex, it is
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complicated, and, of course, CCRs are usualy BO pages long. Even in
A.B. 448, while there is a $1,000 cap, it says "unless for good cause.” | am
not sure you can legislatively solve this by giving a cap. You will always need
_to have an out, If we add “for good cause," that will be the next issue to
discuss; what is "good cause"? Ms. Lavelle mentioned earlier to allow the
Administrator or the Commission to have the ability to review the fees of an
arbitration. She mentioned that the State Bar has the fee dispute committee,
where they.can see whether the fees are reasonable.

Chairman Ohrenschali: .

Thank you. You are correct. Assembly Bill 448 does have that safety hatch of
a good cause showing ailowing higher fees. We could put that good cause in
this bill also, or we could go with Senater Copening's proposal of $225 an hour
with no absolute cap. These are complex issues that could require a lot of time.
I do think Mr. Joe brought up a good point that when it gets over $1,000,
should the people go to court?

Eleissa Lavalle;

I would like to go back to the beginning and why arbitration is important. It
works. Are there problems? Yes, sometimes there are problems. | think that
Senator Copening's suggestion addresses those issues with the additional
suggestions we have been talking about today. My concern is that, because
these issues are cornplex, there will be cases not being heard by arbitrators who
are qualified to do the work and are spending the time to do the work. This
program has been enormously successful. While | recognize that there are
many people who are in very serfous financial straights, understand that there
are communities with all kinds of people, with all kinds of property values, with
all kinds of issues. By saying that there will be an absolute dollar cap on these
arbitrations, effectively what you are saying is that these arbitrations are not
going to be doing what they were initially designed to do. | gave a seminar on
NRS Chapter 116 with Mr. Buckley in Reno. It was interesting to hear from the
people up there how successful this program has been and how very few of
these cases actually get to district court because people are satisfied that they
are getting an adequate opportunity to be heard and getting Fair and reasonable
arbitration awards. They may not always win, but if they feel like they have
been heard and understood and there is a good reason for the decision, they are

not going to go anywhere else.

Michael Joe:

The question of whether it is working or not is depending on which side you are
looking at it from. If you are saying that the purpose is to keep it out of district
court, | am not sure that it is working for homeowners and association
members. Maybe it is working for the Real Estate Division, maybe it is working
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for the district court, maybe it is working for attorneys and collection

companies, but | do not think it is working for horneowners. | think that it is .

not fair to say that it is working if you do not look at all parties involved. The
question is who is it that you are representing and who is it that you are trying
to protect in this. | think there are plenty of protections for the collection
companies and the management companies and the associations, but there are
very few protections for the homeowners. This arbitration and mediation
process and court litigation is a process to help the homeowner protect himself.
| wonder whether it is not slanted to protect the other parties: the management
companies, the associations, and the attorneys.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

Thank you, Mr. Joe. We did adopt that $1,000, and it is not an absolute cap.
It does have exceptions for good cause. When higher fees are nieeded, they
could be granted. We thought it was good policy six weeks ago in A.B. 448,
and J am not really sure we should backtrack from it. It was a unanimous vote
when we adopted that $1,000 cap to match the Supreme Court Rule 24, but it
also had the exception for circumstances that required it. | would propose that
we accept all the amendments with the changes proposed by Senator Copening,
with the changes we recommended, which for conceptual amendment nurnber
one included instructing the Administrator of the Division of Real Estate to
adopt a flat fee cap for mediation fees of $500, However, | think we should
stick with the cap we adopted in A.B. 448, which is not an absolute cap. | am
sure when there is a complex case involving a lot of money, an exception will
be granted for the Administrator to charge an hourly rate going over the cap of
$1,000. We all agreed on amendments two and three. Regarding amendments
four, five, and six, we were all fine. Actually we decided not to adopt number
five because it is in $5.B. 204 (R1). Conceptual amendment number seven, we
will change the word "are"™ to "may be" and “proof of service of affidavits
proving the claim” should be there to substantiate the other party was served if
the other party does not show up. Mr. Joe has a good potential amendment to
the conceptual amendment coming from the mediation program that our
Supreme Court administers that good cause be required if the person cannot
show up for the mediation. Perhaps we could model that on the rule the
Supreme Court has adopted for the foreclosure mediation program. We also
have Mr, Stebbins' amendment which has been incorporated into
Senator Copening's amendments. '

Assemblyman McArthur:
If we are going to take a vote, | am not going to go with the recommendation at
this point until | see the conceptual amendments.
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Chairman Chrenschall:
Do you mean a mock-up?’

Assemblyman McArthur:
Yes, | want to see those mock-ups of conceptual amendments.

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| agree with Mr. McArthur's statement.

Chairman Ohrenschall:

We have gone over Senator Copening’s amendments and we agree on most of
the language. There is a little debate on conceptual amendment one on whether
we should adopt the arbitrator fee cap we had- adopted in A.B. 448.
Mr. McArthur brought up some cleanup in the original bill he is interested in.
I think we should process all the recommendations that we all agree on that will
be in the mock-up we present to the full Committee, which basically are
conceptual amendmertts two through seven, without amendment five and with
the additions proposed in conceptual amendment number seven. The part we
disagree on is in conceptual amendment number one. We can propose to the
full Committee on Friday. Does either of you have any appetite for
Mr. Friedrich's amendment? '

Assemblyman Carrillo:
| do not.

Chairman Ohrenschall:
Mr. McArthur is shaking his head no.

Michael Buckley:
For clarification, 1 did not hear that the Subcommittee had an issue with the

mediation set fee, only the arbitration fees, correct?

Chairman Ohrenschall:
That is correct. We would go ahead with recommending that the Administrator

of the Real Estate Division propose a regulation that has a maximum total cost
of $500 flat fee for mediation. We are in dispute about whether to keep the
arbitrator cap we had adopted in A,B, 448, which is $1,000 with exceptions, or
to go ahead with Senator Copening’s suggestion. Is there anything else that
1 am missing? Are we all in favor of that recommendation?

There is another point we do not agree on, which is those fines for construction
penalties and the health hazard. These are the fines that are not for
assessments that can lead to foreclosure in a common-interest community.
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Should they be put on hold during the pendency-of the mediation or the
arbitration? | feel they should, if they are the issue of the arbitration or
mediation. Mr. McArthur has some concerns with that. Maybe we can have an’
option A and an option B in the mock-up on that issue when we present to the
full Committee,

Assemblyman McArthur:
There are some other cleanup things we want to get in there also.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
One is dealing with the geographical area of the Ombudsman.

Assemblyman McArthur:
We have noted it.

Chairman Ohrenschall;
Are we all on board with the recommendation for the full Committee that we

agree on most of these recommendations, and there are two points where we
are presenting an option A and option B? We are all unanimous on this
recommendation and hopefully we will have a mock-up by Friday to present to
the full Committee, Could | get a motion?

ASSEMBLYMAN MCARTHUR RECOMMENDED AMEND AND DO
PASS SENATE BILL 254 (1st REFRINT). :

ASSEMBLYMAN CARRILLO SECONDED THE RECOMMENDATION.

THE RECOMMENDATION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.
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We will forward this recommendation to the full Committee. There will be a
few decisions that will need to be made on Friday during the werk session.
| appreciate everyone being here. Meeting is adjourned [at 12:20 p.m.].

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Nancy Davis
Committee Secretary

APPROVED BY: - :

Assemblyman James Ohrenschall, Chairman

DATE:
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S.B. 280

SENATE BiLL NO. 280~-SENATOR [CHUEN

MARCH 15,2013

Referred o Committee on Judiciary

SUMMARY-—Revises provisions relating 1o common-interest
communities. (BDR 10-863)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Governnent: No.
Effect on the State: No.

BXPLANATION ~ Matter bn ol Erefivs §s neng mater between Dgrkits foutine by =il is matedial 15 he ol

AN ACT relaling lo common-interest communities; revising
pravisions governing ihe collection of past due finaneial
- obligations owed to an association; revising provisions
governing payments received by an association from a
unit's owner; revising provisions governing  the
foreclosure of an association’s len by sale; and providing

other matters properly relating therelo,

Legisintive Counsel's Digest:

Undcr exisling law, o homeawners® assoeintion has a lior on ¢ vait or cerlain
amounts duc 1o the associntion. (MRS [I&3THG) Existing law nuthorizes the
assocfation lo Foreclase its fien by sule of the ynil nad preseibes the procedures for
such o foreclosere. (NRS 116.31162-116.31188) This bill reviscs provisions
gaveming: {1} the collectien of past duc finencinl obliealions owed 10 o
lronteowners® associion; and (2) foreelasures by o lromeowners® nssocittion.

Section 1 of this bili cstabilsles procedures which o omeowners essaciation
must follaw hefore initisting the pracess of Jercclosing an 8 unil or commencing
gay ather debi collection activity. Under section 1, belore inflinting the toreclnsure
process or cammencing aiy other delit ealiection aelivity: {1} o homeowners®
associntion most mail three letiers end make two telephone culls o a unit’s owaer
who owes # pust due obligation (o the associaiiog to inform the unil’s ewner of
certain nformation concerning the past due obligation; and (2) e executive board
of the homeowners” associtifon must approve the inliiation of the foreclosure
process or the commencement of any other debl colleclion ectivily at o ropuwier
meeling of the exceotive bosrd, Section 7 of this Bl nuthorizes the excertive bonred
(o meet in execulive session Io discuss whether to approve Lhe foilistion of the
forevlosure process or the commeacement af ny other debt colleetfon selivity, but
renquires the votes of each member af the exceutive bogrd and the asseszor's pircel
nutnber ol the unit to be recorded in the minutes of the meeling. Sections 1 nnd 7
furliier nutharfze o unit's owner to request & eadng before the excoutive bonrd Lo
caritest & postdue ablipation oad require e cxecutive board 1o hold sieh a hearing

1 IR
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in exceotive session upen e widilen reguest of the unit's owner. Under seetion 1.
A homeowners™ associalion is required to offer o repayment plan e o onil’s owaer
who awes a past due oblignlion to the associalion and a vril®s owner may accept
such n repaymerd plan ot any iime before the Breclosere sale of the unit or e
commencemend of 4 eivil uclion to eollect Uie past due ablipation, Scetions 1 and 4
of this bill prohibit the yssocielion from eharging the vni’s owner for any costs
incurred in complying with i nequiremenis of section 1.

Section 8 of (his bill requires the epliection policy of a homemwner's
associntion to provide an adminbstrolive process by which o unit’s owner may
contest a past duc obligation.

Sections 9-11 ol lhis bill revise provisions goveming fareclosures by
lremeowner's nszavintions. Seetion D prohibity the ascociation from forcclosiog v
tnit unjess the Ioreclosure s for o Iailiee fo pay whea due assessments for commoa
expenses and onfy I the amound of such delinquent ossessments, cxcluding

accelemtion nnd any interest, chacees for late pryment, fines or cosls of collecting -

the assessinend, is 51,000 or morc. Seciion 11 ulso provides that o foreclosure of a
unit by a homeowner's ussociation is subject to o rightl of redemption for the unit’s
owner and that the redemption period is 180 duys. Under section 10, the notiec ol a
forcelosure sake provided by o homeowner’s sssociation er a person conducting e
[ureclosure sale must provide notice of e right of redemption,

Soection 5 of {his bill prohibits nn association [rom refusing lo accept o tnit
owrer's prymenl ol any assessiment, Nine, fec ar other charge thal 1 due beeause
there is an owistanding payment due. Seetion 5 further requires on assosintion to
apply mny payment received fom o vailt’s ewner to any past due assessments,
including inte chnrges, costs of colecting and interest, owed by the unit's owner
beture Lhe payment is applicd to eay otier Dnancizf oblipation owed by the vnits
OWHCT.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapler 116 of NRS is hereby amended by adding
thereto a new section to read as follows:

Jo A asspciation may nor madl fo o quit's evwner or (0s or ey
successor in fnferest « notice gf delingnent usyesynent pursueny io
paragraph fu) of subsection | af NRS 116.31162 pr fuke any orher
aerfan o colléet o past due obfleation fram o mnit's ovmer or iy
ar lrer successer i inferest mirless:

() The associarion  fas  savisfred  rhe  reguirements  of
suhseerions 2 and 3; and

(%) Not later than 38 dupy yfier the associarion hax surisffed
the reynirenents of subseetions 2 and 3, af o regalur meeiing of
the execntive baard, the evecurive board determines thar the
ascackarion hay sarisfled the requtirenmieniy of subsection 4 wnd
appraved the fareclpsare of the mssociation s len porstant to NRS
J16.31162 o T1G.3LI68, inclushwe, or ihe taking of aup otier
action to collect the past dne pbligation.

2. If a anit’s owner owes g past doe obligation tg the
associafinn, e usSeciution wesr:

0 *
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fu} Mail by certifted e registered  mail, return receipr
reguested, to fhe aiie's onater ar iy or ey successor i inrerest, wf
ltis or her address, i kv, and ar e address of the unit, at least
three fetters, nar fexs tlune 10 days apapt, Wnforming e wiit's
awirer ar ity or her suceessor of?

(1} Tle wmonat af the puse due pbiipetion and an feaized
starerment of puaymenty anede and e elharpges ovwed by the amic's
DHLE;

{2} The right fo contest the past die obfigetion af o hearing
before the execntive fward and the procedires for requesting such
 frearing;

(3} A schedude of wny late fees, inferesy, collection costs,
gines ar other charges that may be imposed if the past due
abligarion is nat paid; wed

{4 The repayurent plan gffered by the association purstiant
to subsection 4.

(W) Muake ur leasr two refephimre cuily, not fess than 10 duaps
apari, 1o e sty mvner or i or her successor in incerest of the
fast fnowen teleplhione pumber of the unic's owner or Iiis or her
successer fr futeresi. Duping quy contact with o anie's owaer or
Iriy or lrer spuccessor in inrerest pm'.'.mmt to Hris paragragh, the
associufion must inform the onic’s ;ener or iy or Jier yaecessor
frr inearest oft

(1) The wmount af the pasr due ablisation;

(2} The right to contest the past doue obifzaion ar o hearing
hefore the exeewiive hoard wird the procedures, fnr reqriesting sl
u freqring; and

(3} The repaynat plan offered by the associaticn pursuans
fo sufseciion o,

3. Not luter thau 30 dups after receiving the fast of the fetters
reguired by paragreph (u} of subseciion 2, @ wnit's moner ar ks or
frer suecessor fit fnderest mey subitic fo the asspciation o weirfen
request jor a ewring before e ececutive board o contest the past
thue obfigation, If the asseciativn receives o jeritten regaest for o
hearing within the period prescribed by this subsection, ihe
wvecutive  boord must hold a fearing in accirdouee  nyh
subsection 5 pf NRS 11631083 hefore the avvociation mgy maif fo
a unit'y owner or iy or Iter Sicceysor jn inferest o opotice gf
delinguent usyessment pursuant to paragraplt (o) of subsection f
of NRS 11631162 or tule any other activn fo colleet a pase diue
alifigarion from the wnit's owner or his or lrer suecesyor In
interest. The executive board shalf sefhednle the daie, time.and
focation for the henring o condest the past die ehiigation so that
the uniy's owner or hiy or ier succesyor in inferest is provided with
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o reaspnalle ppporianily o prepare for and be present w o ihe
hearing, A

4. An assocfutipn nuisy affer o nuic's owsier wha owes a pasi
Hue phligation fo the wssociafion « repayment plan providing jor
the paymenr of the mmawint af the pust due ofificotion T equid
monilly installments over a periad of?

() Six monihy, I the amounr gf the pust due obligation is
F1O00 or less. .

(B) Twehve months, i the amennt of the past due shiiguiion iv
more o 81,00 b fesy thaie 82,000,

(t) Twengp-funr months, " the amount of the pase dne

ohlizarion iy S2,000 ar maore.
& The associulion shall nor clurge wny fee for a repaiment plap
or any ierest o jute fees on a pasi due obiigation for whicl o
wir'y enoner or lify or frer suceessor i dnterest lray enrered o o
repayment plan. A tede's ovurer or iy ar her xonceessor i interest
may aceepy a4 paymeny plas af any tipe before the date of the sale
of te iy pursiant (o NRS 11631164 or the commpencenent of a
Rl action against the wnit’s swner or his or her suecesser ju
frnterest fo wbmin o jodement for the amomnt of the past doe
abligation. A unit's awaer or Iis ar her successor in inferest meoy
accepr the repuapment plar gffered by the gssociation pursiant to
this subsection by tendering the fivst moaihly payment, If o unit's
gvwmrer or Iis or Der snceesspr i fnferest defanits onooaoy
repupment plan, the asseciation pugy resuame iy efforss fo collece
thre past due obligaiion fram the vitme of which the qnit's gwner ar
ftis pr frer suceessor in inrerest aeeepied the repuyment plan.,

3. Any costs neurred by an associntion in subisfping the
requirements of flhic section st not be charged fo the unit's
awrer or iis ar ter snceessor i inferest,

6. Ay nxed fn rhis section, “ebligativn” has the menning
aseriped to i in NRS 116.310313.

See. 2. NRS 116.1203 is hereby amended (o read as follows:

116.1203 ]. Except as otherwise provided in subseclions 2
and 3, if a planned community conlains no more than [2 units and is
not subject o any developmental rights, it is subject only o NRS
116.1106 and 116.1107 unless the declaration provides that this
entire chapter is applicable.

2. The provistens of MRS 116.12065 and the definitions set
forth tn NRS 116.005 to 116.095, inclusive, to ihe extent thal the
definitions are necessary in construe any of those provisions, apply
t0 a residential planned community containing more than 6 units.

3. Except for NRS 116.3104, 11631043, 11631046 and
118.31138, the provisions of NRS 116.3101 to 116.350, inclusive,
and yectionr 1 of thix aer and the definitions sel forth in
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NRS 116.005 to 116.095, inclusive, to the extent that such
definitions are necessary in construing any of those provisions,
apply to a residential planned community containing miore than 6
units.

See: 3. NRS 116.12073 Is hereby amended fo read as follows:

116.12075 1. The provisions of this chapter do not apply ta a
nonresidential condominizm except to the extent lhat the declaration
for (he nonresidential condominium provides that:

{a) This entire chapter applies o the condominium;

(b} Oniy the provisions of NES 116.007 to 116.2122, inclusive,
and 116,3116 ta 116.51168, inclusive, and sectfon I af this uct
apply to the condominjvm; or

{¢) Only the provisions of NRS 163116 to 11637168,
inclusive, enrd section I of thiv act apply to the condeminium.

2. If this ertire chapter applies fo a nonresidential
condominium, -the declaration may also require, sobject to
NRS 116.1112, that:

(o) Notwithstanding NRS 1163105, eny management,
mainienance operutions or employment contiaci, lease of
recreational or parking areas or facilities and any other contract ar
lease between the association and a declarant or an affiliate of a
declarani continues in force after the declarant turns over control of
the association; end

(b} Nobwithstending NRS 116.1104 and subsection 3 of NRS
116311, purchasers of unils must execute proxies, powers of
atiorney or similar devices in favor of the declarant regarding

“particular matters enumerated in those insiruments,

Sec. 4. NRS 116310313 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

116.310313 |. An association may charge a unif®s owner
reasonabie fees to cover the cosis of collecting any past due
obligation. The Commission shall adopt regulations establishing the
amount of the fees that an association may charge pursuanl to this
section. :

2. The provisions of this section apply lo any cosis of
collecting a past due obligation charged to 8 unit’s owner, regardless
of whether the past due obligation is collected by the sssociation
itself or by any person acting on behalf of the asseciation, incleding,
without limitation, an officer er employee of the association, a
community manager or a calection agency.

3. Asused in this section:

{a) “Costs of collecting” includes any fee, charge or cost, hy
whatever name, including. without limilation, any collection fee,
filing fee, recording fee, fee related to the preparation, recarding ar
delivery of a lien or [ien rescission, title search lien fee, banknuptcy
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search fee, referral fee, fee for postage or delivery and any other fez
or cost lhat an association charges a unit’s owner for the
investigation, enforcement or collection of a past due obligation.
The term does not inclide any costs incurred by an association if a
lmwsuit is filed to enforce any past due obligation |, fo¢} any costs
awarded by a couti J=} er any costy fucnrred by wn association in
corplping with flre requirements af section I of thiy ael.

(b) *Obligation™ mesns any assegsment, fine, consiruction
penalty, fee, charge or interest levied or imposed against a unit’s
owvner pursuant-lo any provision of this chapter ar the poverning
documnents.,

Sec, 5. NRS 116310315 ¥ hereby amended to read as
follows:

116.3105315 1. Au asvocivtion:

() Shall not refuse te gecept from o giic’s opner puyment af
ay assessment, fine, fee or oifier charse it iy due becanse there
i wit maiNterding pupnent e,

(h) Shafl apply @ payinent received fionr a #uiv’s qvier fo ay
past dre gysessipend Jur commoll expenses based on the periodic
budger adopred by the assevivtion pursaani 1o NRS 716.31135,
inefuding ainy ffe feey, costs af collection and interest on the pust
dre aysessient, bafore any povtion of the papment is applied 1o
mi) pthier agseysment or ony fine, penafip, foe, clharge gr inferest
whicl fas fHeen levied or fmposed against e unit's owner
prersans o this chapter or the geverning ducnmieniy.

2. If an associalion has imposed a fine against & uvmt's owner or
a tenant or an invitee of a unit's owner or a tenant pursuant io NRS
116.31031 for violations of the governing documents of the
association, the assoctation shall estabiish a compliiance account to
account Tor the fine, which must be separate from any account
established for assessments.

Sec. 6. NRS 116.31068 is hereby amended 1o read as follaws:

. 116.31068 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3,

an association shall deliver any notice required to be given by the
association wnder lhis chapler to any mailing or electronic mail
address a unit’s owner designates. Excepl as otherwise provided in
subsection 3, if a unit’s owner has not designated a mailing or
electronic mail mddress to which a nofice must be delivered, the
associztion may deliver notices by:

{a) Hand delivery lo sach unit’s owner;

(b} Mand defivery, United Siates meil, postage paid, or
commercially reasonable delivery service to the mailing address of
each unit;

{c) Electronic means, if the unit’s owner has given the
association an eleclronic mail address; or
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{d) Any other method reasonably calculated to provide notice to
the unit’s awner.

2. The ineffectiveness of a good faith effort lo deliver notice by
an authorized means does not invalidate action taken at ar without a
meeting.

3. The provisions of this section do not apply:

(n)- To a notice required 1o be piven pursuani o NRS 1163116
to 116.31188, inclusive =}, end section I of this act; or

{b} If any other provision of this chapler specifies the manner in
which 2 notice must be given by an asseciatioi,

See. 7. NRS 116.31083 is hereby amended to read as Tollows:

11631085 1. Except as olherwise provided in this section, a
unit’s owner may attend any meeting of the units® owners or of the
executive board and speal at any such meeting. The exectlive board
may establish reasonable limitations on the thoe a unit’s owner may
speak ai such a meeting.

2.  An cxecutive board may nol meet in executive session fo
open or congider bids for an association project as defined in NRS
11637086, or to enter inin, renew, miodify, terminate or take any
other action regarding a conlract.

3.  Anexeculive board may meef in executive session only lo;

(a) Consult with the attorney for the assoclation on matters
relating to proposed or pending litigation if the contents of the
discussion would otherwise be govermned by the privilege set forth in
NRS 48,035 to 49,113, inclusive.

(b) Discuss the character, aileged misconduel, professional
competence, or physical or menlal health of a community manager
or an employee of the association.

{c) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, discuss s
violation of the governing docuements, including, without Hinitation,
the failure to pay an assessment.

(d} Discuss the alleged . failure of & unit’s owner to adhere Lo a
schedule required pursuant to NRS 116.310305 if the alleged failure
may subject the unit’s owner to a construction penally,

{e) Discuss wherher fu initiate the process of foreclosing e
usspcintion’s  fien by sofe pursnant o NRS 11637162 o
J16.31768, Inclusive, or wihtether fa fafe any detion pther than the
actions yer fortlr fn seerfon I oof this aer o collect o past dup
abligarion.

4. Anexecutive board shall meet in executive session to [old a
hearing on an alleged viointion of the govemning documents unless
the person who may be sanctioned for the alleged violation requests
in wriling that an open hearing be conducted by the execitive board.
If the person who may be sancitigned for the alleped violation
requests in writing that an open hearing be conducted, the person:

L | I
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(2) Is entitled to attend all poriions of the hearing related 1o the
alleged violation, including, without limitation, the preseatation of
evidence and the lestimony of witnesses;

(b} Is entitled to due process, as set forth in the standards
adopted by regulation by the Commission, which must include,
without limilation, theright to counsel. the right to present witnesses
and the right to presemt information relaling to any conflict of
interest of any member of the hearing panel; and

boayd.

5. dn exevwive bowrd shall et in execieive session to indd
a frearing on o reguest fo confest o past dae obligation submireed
My g e’y opwer or Lis pr ey saceessor in interest pursuant in
sufisection 3 wfsection 1 of this ger. Tie person who suliitied the
request:

(wt) Iy entitled o ariend all portious of the iearing, including,
witlrany Hmirarion, e preseniation of evidence wnd the festimeny
67 witnesses;

(b} Iy curitied fo due process, os sef forth in the stundurds
atlopred by regufofion by the Conpnission, whiclr msy incelude,
witlioa limitatfon, the risht (v connsel, the right te presemt
witnesses and tire right (o presemi information reluting fo any
confifer of nrerest of auy preuiher af the earing patel; ard

(¢} Is not eniitled o attend the deliberations of the executive’

board.

6. The provisions of jsubsesties] subseefiony 4 and 3 establish
the minimuym projections thal the executive board must provide
before il may make a decision. The provisions of {subssetian}
stebseciiony 4 gnd 3 do not presmpt any provisions of the paverning
documents thai provide greater pratections.

456+ 7. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, any
metter discussed by the executive bpard when it meefs in executive
sesgion miust be generally noted in the minttes of the meeling of the
executive board. The executive board shall maintain minutes of

) Ay decision made puysuant {o subsection 4 concerning an
alleged vielation and, upon request, provide a copy of the decision
to the person who was subject to being sanctioned at the hearing or
ta ihe person’s designated representative.

1=t (B) Ay decisftenr mude  prrsuant to subsection ¥
concerning i confest of o past dpe obiivation and, npon reguest,
pravide o copy uf the decision fo the persen whe was afleged 0
pive the past due oblisation er rw the persoi’s  desiymred
represeniame.

R

{c) Is not entitled to attend {he deliberalions of the executive
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(&) Any decision made pursaant to subsection f of section § of
this o coneerning Wiether o initivte the process nf foreclosing
the asswctutivn’s Hen fp sule pursuant to NRS 17631162
11631168, inclusive, or whether to take auy actfon othar thai the
actipny sef el fn section §oof this act (v colleet o past due
abligution. The miinntes wiast stafe o) the vore of eaclr member
af the exeeurive bourd wnd e assessor's pereel aamher of te
wiir.

& Except as otherwise provided in Larbsestign subvectiony 4
I and 3, a unit’s owner Is not entitled to attend or speale at a
meeting of the executive board held in executive session.

Y. As nyed in thiv section, “ebligarion™ lras the wmewning
ayerthed oy it it NRS £16.310373.

Sec, B. NRS 116.31151 is hereby amended to read as follows:

11631151 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2
and unless the declaration of a common-interest community imposes
more stringent standards, the executive board shall, not less than 30
days or maore than G0 days before the beginning of the fiscal year of
the association, prepare and distribute to each unit’s owner a copy
of:

(z) The budget for the daily operation of the association. The
budget must inclode, without fimitation, the estimated annual
revenue and expenditures ol the association and any cortributions to
be made 1o the reserve account of the associxtion.

(b) The budget to provide adequate funding for the reserves
required by paragraph (b} of subsection 2 of NRS 116.3115. The
budget must include, without [imitation:

(1) The current estimated replacement cost, eslimated
remaining life and estimated vsefuf life of each major componen( of
the common elements and any other portion of the common-interest
communily that the assqciation is obligated to maintain, repair,
replace or restare; .

(2) As of the end of the fiseal year for which the budget is
prepared, the cwrent estimale of the amount of cash reserves that
are necessary, and the current amoeunt of accumutaled cash reserves
that are sel aside, to repair, replace or restore the major components
of the commaon elements and any other portion of the common-
tnierest communily that the association is obligated to maintain,
repoir, replace or restore;

(3) A stalement as to whether the exccutive board has
determined or anticipates that the levy of one or more special
assessments will be necessary to repaii; replace or resiore any major
component of the common elemenls o any other portion of the
common-interest community thal the association is obligated to

i
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maintain, repair, replace or restore or to provide adequate funding
for Ihe reserves designated for that purpose; and

{4) A general stalement describing the procedures used for
the estimation and accumulation of ecash regerves purspant to
subparagraph (2}, including, without limitation, the gualifications of
the person respansible for the preparation of the study of the
reserves required by WRS [16.31152.

3. In lieu of distributing copies of ihe budpets of the
asspciation required by subseclion 1, the executive board may
distribute to cach unit’s owner o summary of those budgets,
accornpanicd by a written natice that:

(a} The budgets are availabie for review at the business office of
the association or some oiher suitable Jocation within the county
where the common-interest community is situated or, if it is situated
in more than one county, within ane of those counties but not to
exceed 60 miles from the physical location of the common-interest
commurity; and

{b) Cuapies ofthe budgets will be provided upan request.

3. Within 60 days after adoption of any proposed budpet for
the common-interest communily, the executive board shall provide a

summiary of the preposed budget to each unit’s owner and shall set a -

date for a meeting of the units’ owners to consider ratification of the
proposed budpet not less than 14 days or more than 30 days after the
rmailing of the summaries, Unless at that meeting a majority of all
units’ awners, or any larger vole specified in the declaration, refect
the proposed budget, the proposed budget is ratified, whether or not
a quorum ig present. If ihe proposed budget is rejected, the periodic
budpet last ratiffed by the units® owners must be continued until
such timme as the units® owners ratify a subseguent budget proposed
by the executive board.

4. The executive board shall, at the same time and in the same
manner that the executive board makes the budget avallable to a
unit’s owner pursuant to this section, make available to each unit’s
owner (he policy established for the associalion concerning the
collection of any fees, fines, assessments ol costs imposed againsi a
wmit’s owner pursuant ta this chapter. The policy must include,
withoul fimitation:

(a) The responsibility of the unit’s owner lo pay any such foes,
fines, assessments or costs in 2 timely manner; fanél

(b) The association’s rights concerning the collection of such
fees, [Tnes, assessments or costs iF the unit’s owner fails to pay the
fees, fines, ossessmients or costs in a timely manner{=} ; and

{o) An adwminisicarive procesy iy which o muit's owier miy
voniest wi alfegation thar the uniz's owner Iy delinguene in the
puyprent of aup fees, fines, axsessments or costs imposed against o
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HRIES owner porsuant 0 Hiis chaprer. The administraiive process
ungyt inelnde, withouwr fhnitatioe, o reasonabfe opporinniiy for o
Trearing before the execarive board. .

See 9. NRS 116.31162 is hereby amended lo read as follows:

[16.31162 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4,
in a condominium, in a planned community, in a cooperative where
the owner’s interest in 2 untt is real estete upder WRS 116.1105, or
in a cooperative where the owner’s interest in & unit i5 personat
property under NRS 116,1105 and the declaration provides that o
tien may be foreclosed under NRS 11631162 o 11631168,
inclusive, the association may foreclose its lien by sale after all of
the following cecur:

(2) The associntion has mailed by certified or registerad matl,
return receipt requesied, to the upit’s owner or his or her successor
in inierest, al his or her address, if known, and at the address of the
unit, a notice of delingquent assessment which states the amount of
the assessmenis and other sums which are due in accordance witl
subgection 1 of NRS 1163116, a description of lhe unll apainst
which lhe lien is imposed and the name aof the record owner of the
unit,

(b) Not less than 30.days afier mailing ihe notice of delinquent
assessiment pussuant to paragraph (a), the association or other person
conducting ihie sale has execuied and caused to be recorded, with the
county rtecorder of the counly in which the common-inlerest
community or any part of it is stivaled, a notice of default and
election to sell the unit to saiisfy the lien which must contain the
same information as the notice of delinquent sssessment and which
must also comply with the following:

(1} Describe the deficiency in payment.

{2) State the name and address of the person authorized by
the assaciation Lo enforce the lien by sale.

(3) Contain, in 14-paint bold type, the following warning:

WARNING! IF YOU FAIL TO PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECJFIED IN THIS NOTICE, YOU COULD LOSE YOUR
HOME, EVEN IF THE AMOLUINT IS IN DISPUTE!

(c¢) The unit’s owner or his or her successor in interest has fajled
to pay Lhe amaount of the lien, including costs, fees and expenses
incident io its enforcoment, for 90 days following the recording of
the notice of defaull and election to sell.

2. The notice of default and election to sell must be signed by
the person designated in the declaration or by the association for that
purpose or, if no one is designated, by the president of the
association.

0 A
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3.. The periad of 90 days begins an the first day following:

(a) The date on which e nolice of default is recorded; or

(b} The date on which a copy of the notice of default is mailed
by certified or registered mail, relurn receipl requested, o the unit™s
awner or his or her successor in interest at his or her address, if
knawn, and al the address of the unit,
= whicliever daie ccowrs Iater.

4. The association may {sorfarmelpse-g-lion-bysalebassdana
HfeBRpehsl !-u—rb—uwwlﬁ-lsﬁ-»&k—i-]ae—&w&wwu—dre&h%ﬂ-h—a%-«ma

letiar—pass—an—imrinent—thres—al—causing—s
%LanHJHHéL&HJ——LF&&H&ﬁh-Lh&&#L—q#&H.—%H:A—nHP
i Fumon-nleres-eamnnie o

: e wre—trdhereta-a-Sehenule
Pqun—“-a!ﬁ}ui%iw:-m—r—rl?r?rl-%—lr(}a =N f wrecluse i lien dyp serle onfy
Jor a fuilure fo pap when dite gn assexsiment_for commnn expensey
based on the perivdic hudget adopted by the associgtion purseant
e NRS 1163715 and onfy IF the amount of suel delinguent
assessment, exeluding aceelepption aind wny lnierest, clharpes for
fare payenent, fines or covty of collecting the assessment, is 82,000
Or more.

See. 1, NRS 116311635 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

116.311635 1. The association or other person conducling
the sale shall also, after the expiration of the 90 days and before
selling the unit:

{(2) Give notice of the time and place of the sale in the manner
and for a time not less than that required by law for the sale of real
propeity upan execution, except that in lieu of following the
procedure for service on a judgment debior pursuant to NRS 21.130,
service must be made an the unit’s owner as follows:

(1) A copy of the notice of sale must be mailed. on or before
the date of first publication or posting, by certified or regislered
mail, refurn receipt requested, to the unil’s owner or his or her
sticeessor in Interest at his or her address, 1F lnown, and to the
address of the unit; and

{2) A copy of the notiee of sale must be served, on or before
the date of first publicaiion or posting, in the manner set forth in
subsection 2; and

(b) Mail, on or before the date of first publication or pasting, a
copy of the notice by first-class mail lo:

(1) Each person enfitled lo receive a copy of the notice of
default and election to sell notice under NRS 116.31163;

(2) The holder of a recorded securily interest or the purehaser
of the vnit, if either of them has notified the association, before the
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mailing of the notice of sale, of the existénce of the security jnterest,
lease or cantract of sale, as apphcable and
(3} The Ombudsman.

2. In addition to the requirements set forth In subsection 1, a
copy of the notice of sale must be served:

(a) By a person who 1s 18 years ol age or nlder and who iz nob a
party to or interested in the sale by personally delivering a copy of
the notice of sale to an occupant of the unit who is of suitable age;
ar

{b) By posling & copy of the patice of sale in a conspicuous
place on the wnit,

3. Any copy ofthe notice of' sale required {o be served pursuant
to this section must include:

{a) The amount necessary to satisfy the ]:en as of the date of the
proposed sale; Jepsth

(b} A studetzent that the unit is heing m[t! subjeer to the right
af redepsplion created by snhsecrion 3 uf NRS’ 110.31166; und

(¢) The following warning in 14-point bold type:

WARNING! A SALE OF YOUR PROPERTY I8
IMMINENT! UNLESS YOU PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED TN THIS NOTICE BEFORE THE SALE DATE,
YOU CQULD LOSE YOUR HOME, EVEN IF THE
AMOUNT I8 TN DISPUTE. YOU MUST ACT BEFORE
THE SALE DATE. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS,
PLEASE CALL (name and itlephone number of the contacl
person for the assaciation). 1F YOU NEED ASSISTANCE,
PLEASE CALL THE FORECLOSURE SECTION OF THE
OMBUDSMAN'S OFFICE, NEVADA REAL ESTATE
DIVISION, AT (toll-free telephcme number desxgnalad by the
Divizion) LMM‘ED!ATELY

4, Proof of service of any copy of the notice of sale required ta
be served pursuant to this section must consist of:
(1) A certificate of mailing which evidences that the notice was
mailed through the United States Postal Service; ar
(b} An alfidavit of service signed by the person who served the
notice staling:
© (1) The time of service, manner of service and location of
service; and
{2} The name of the person served or, if the notice was nat
served on a person, a description of the location where the notice
was paosted on the unit.
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Sec. 11. NRS 11631166 is Lereby amended to read as
follows:

11631166 1. The recitals tnh a deed made pursusnt (o
NRS 116.31169 of

(a) Default, the mailing of the notice of delinquent assessment,
and the recording of the notice of default and electton to sell;

{b) The elapsing of the 90 days; and

{c) The giving of notice of zaie,

“ are conclusive proof af the matters recited.

2. Such a deed eomtaining those recitals is conclusive against
the unit’s former owner, s or her beirs and assigns, and all other
persans. The receipt for the purchase money conlained in such a
deed is sufficient to discharge the purchaser from obligation to see
to the proper application of the purchase money.

3. The sale of a unit pursvant to NRS ]]6.:] EE.‘?., 1163[]63
and 11631164 |vesis-intha-pechasarthaiie ax
-'-’—:-H-‘Jﬂl-.’-‘——‘fil—rr—ﬁri iy arrﬁjed to rr right of rEdemptlcm H far r.’m
andt's onwaer, The redewprion period witlin wihich o mit's owier
muy redeemy the wpuit from o foreclosiee sole parsuant fo o this
xubsection cads 180 deaps after the safe. I o unir's onmer doves nor
redeenr He undt fromr o foreciosure safe within e redemption
period specified in iy sabsectivp, the tide of the auie’s owaer
vesty in flre pureiueser.
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(Reprinted wilh amendments adopted on May 24, 2013}
SECOND REPRINT S.B. 250

SENATE BILL NO. 2B0-SENATOR KIHUEN

MARCH 15,2013

Relerred 1o Committee on fudiciary

SUMMARY—Revises provisions relaling to common-interest
communities. (BDR [0-863)

FISCALNOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.
Effect on the State: Ne.

EXPLANATION — Manier In fafdiditfits i3 m2w; master hebwees hpokets faniinsHisi=32Y £ material to be anidlied.

AN ACT relating to common-inierest communities; revising
pravisions governing an association’s lien np a unit
revising provisions governing the payment of finzncial
obligations 1o an associalion; revising provisions
governing the foreclosure of an association’s lien by sale;
requiring an association to provide a statement conceming
cerlain armounts dne o the associntion under certain
circurmstences; autheorizing an association to charge a fee
for such & statermenl; and providing other matiers properly
relating thereto.

Legisintive Counsel's Dipest:

Under existing law, o homeawners® association has a {ien os a wnil for cerluin
omounis due 1o the assoclelion. Generally, thic associution's lien is not prior {o &
first sueurity Interest pn Uie unit recorded before Eie dote an whizh he amount
sought to be enloreed became delinquent. However, (he #ssocintion’s livn is prior lo
the Tirst sécurily intcresl on the wait 1o the extenl of corlnin muinlenanee ond
nbaternent charges and a cerlsin amount efnssessments for comman expenses. The

ortion af the mssociolion’s fien that Is prior (o the first secerity inferest on te unit
15 commonly referred lo ps Hie “super-priody Hen™ (MRS £16,3116) Existing law
authorizes the associslion to foreclose its lien by sele ard prescribes the procedures
for such a forcciosure. (NRS 116.31162-116.3{1G8)

This bill revises provisions poveming lhe associstion’s llen on a wnil and
the foreclosure of e association’s en, Seetion 10 of this bill provides that the
nssucintion does nat have a priorily lien over e first scourily fmerest whe the
assovinlion forecloses its len and, Ui, the foreclosure of the assorintion’s lien
does aof extinguish the frst seewrity nterest on {he unit, However, under section 7
of this biil, if the hoider of the [rst security interest Iorecloses on a unit, Lhe
association ling o fica on the unit which is prior lo the firsl sceurity nlerest, This
priority fien consists of the amounts Incleded in the “super-prienly {ien™ under
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exisling Inw and the cosls of coilecling e ussessments fncluded in the “super-
priofity Fen,” unless tie [ederal regulutions ndopled by the Federal Homwe Louan
Monpnpe Comportion, the Federal Nationol Moripape Associstion or ihe
Pepartment of Veleruns AdToirs requive & shoder perdad of prioriby or prohibil tie
inclusion of collection costs in e “super-priocity lien™ Section 7 also limits
the pmounl of te costs of colleeling included i (he lien upen ibe forcciosure of the
Rrst seeurily thieresl,

Under section 8 of this bill, the associntion may not foreclose its lien by sole
based on vapuid eollection costs, Seetfon 2 of this il requices that cerain notice of
the foreclosure ef the nssoeiation’s lien be pravided by cortified or regisicred muil,
et receipt requested, radher than by frst-class mnil.

Section 3 ofF this biki: (1) sets foeth the ordet in which an wssocintion must apply
o paymerl made by o ownit’s oweer whe is delinquent in the paymenl of
aszessments, unloss o contrast belween the associution snd the wnit's owner
provides otlicnwise; and (2] probibits the sssoeinlion or jts sgent from refising to
accept o partinl pavenenl om0 unit’s owser or any holder of a frst securily
inlerest encumbering the inlerest of the unit™s owner beenwse the nmount tendered
i Iess than the omoun owed,

Section 11 of this bill avthorizes a uail™s ewner or the authorized ngent of a
unit*s ownerto request from the associndion 2 stalement conceming certain rmounts
awed 1o (lic nssaciztion. Under section 13, the assoelation iy charge ceniain fees
[or such o statement. Section 11 nlso revises provisions poveming the rosale
packnge provided (o i prospective purchoser of & unit and ssthacizes the assoeintion
lo clmrpe a fee Tor providing in electronie farmat cerlain documents reloled to the
resale puckage,

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REFRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 116 of NRS is herchy amended by adding
thereto the provisions set fortli as sections 2 and 3 of this act.

Sec. 2. Ar wused in rtihiv section wnd NRS 1163110 tn
11831168, incinsive, and section 3 of thix ver, nless the confexy
otfterivise requives, “first secnriiy inferest™ means o Jirst security
inrerest  deseribed i porsgreph (h)  of  subsectionr 2 of
NRE 1163116 )

Bec. 3. 1. Uunless  the  partiey agree  otherwise,  the
axsaefution shodl upply any suny poid by o anit’s owaer wie iy
delimipnent fr puying wssessmenty in the following order:

(i} Unpaid aseessiienis;

(b)) Charges for late payuient af usyessimens;

f¢} Caosts of colleciing pust due asyessments charged to the
unit’s ouner porsnait o NRS 116.31H0313; and

(W) All ather unpaid fees, churses, fines, penaltivs, costs of
colfecting vharged 1o o anic’s oyarer prrsuant (o NRS 116.3100313,
interest and fuie clirges.

2. The usseciatton or ity agent sholl not refise 1o necept o

artft! paanent frosr o sabit's ovwarer g ooy relder of a firs
parefafl piwient frour o s mwner ar an) felder of o f
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securily inrerest caepmhering the inerest of the wii’s owner
becunse tre qmonnt tendered iy Tess o e oo owed,

Sec. 4. NRS 116.1203 is hereby amended to read as follows:

116.]1203 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2
and 3, if a planned eommunity contains no more than 12 units and is
not subject to any developmental rights, it is subject anly io NRS
116.1106 and 116.1107 uniess the decloration provides that this
entire chapler is applicable.

2. The provisions of MRS 116.12085 and the definitions set
forth in WRS 116.005 1o 116.095, inclusive, to the exient that the
definitions are necessaly to construe any of those provisions, apply
to a residential planned community containing more than 6 units.

3. Except for WRS 1163104, 116.31043, 116.31046 and
11631138, the provisions of NRS 1163101 ta 116350, inclusive,
and yeesiony 2 and 3 gf this act and tie definitions set forth in NRS
116.005 to 116.095, inclusive, to Lthe extent that such definitions are
necessary in construing any of those provisions, apply to a
residential planned community containing more than 6 units,

See. 5. NRS 116.12075 is hereby amended to rend as follows;

116.12075 1. The provisions of this chapter do not apply ln a
nanresidential condominium except to the extent that the declaration
for the nonresidential condominium provides that:

(a) This entire chapter applies to the condominium:

()} Qnly the provisions of NRS 116.001 to 1162122, inclusive,
and 116.311G to 11631168, inclusive, nud sections 2 und 3 of thiy
wet apply to the condominium; or

{c) Only the provisions of WRE 11683116 to 116.31168,
inclusive, amd secrions 2 wnd 3 of thiv wer apply to the
condominium.

2. I this entire chapter applies lo a nonresidential

- condominium, the declaration may also require, subject 1o NRS

116.1112, that:

(8) Notwithstanding NRS 1163105, any manageinent,
majnfenance operations or employment contract, lease of
recreational or parking areas or facilities and any other contyact or
lesse between the association and a declarant or an affiliate of a
declarant continues in force after the declarant turns over control of
the association; and .

{b) Notwithstanding WRS 1164.1104 and subsection 3 of NRS
1t6.311, purchasers of units must execute proxies, powers of
attorney or similar devices in favor of the declarant regarding
particular matters enumerated in those instruiments.

Sec. 6. NRS 116.31068 is hereby amended to read as Tollows:

11631068 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3,
#n association shall deliver any notice required to be given by the
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association under this chapter te ony mailing or electranic mail
address a unil’s owner designates. Except as otherwise provided in
subsection 3. if a uni’s owner has nol designated a mailing or
electronic mail address to wlhich a notice mus( be delivered, the
association may deltver notices by:

{a) Hand delivery to each unit’s owner;

(1) Hand delivery, United States mail, postage paid, or
commercially reasonable delivery service to the mailing address of
each unit;

{c) Electronic means, if the unit’s owner has ‘given the
assaciation an electronic mail address; or

{d) Any other method reasonably calculated to provide notice to
the unit’s owner.

2. ‘The ineffectivencss of a good faith effort to defiver notice by
an authorized means does not invalidate aclion taken al or without a
meeting.

3, The provistons of this section de not apply:

{a) To a notice required to be given pursuant o NRS 116.3116
to 176.31168, inclusive &+, aud secrions 2 aud 3 of this ner; or

{b) If any other praviston of this chapier specifies the manner in
which a nolice must be given by an association.

See. 7. NRS 1163116 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1163116 |- The associalion has a lien on e unit for zny
construction penalty that is imposed * against the unit's owner
pursuant to NRS 116.310303, any assessment levied against that
unit or any fines imposed against the unit's owner from the time the
conslruction penally, assessment ar fine becomes due. Unless the
declaration atherwise provides, any penalties, fees, charges, lale
charpes, fines and Interest charged pursuant (o paragraphs () to {n),
inclusive, of subsection T of NRS 116.3102 are enforceable as
assessments under this section. I an assessment is payable in
installments, the full amount of the nssessment 15 a lien from the
time the first installment thereof becomes due,

2, A lien under this section is prior to sl other liens and
encumbrances on a uait except:

(a) Liens and encumlbrances recorded before the recordation of
the declaration and, in a cooperalive, liens and encumbrances which
the association creates, assumes o takes subject Lo

(0) A Hrst security interest on the unit recoided before the date
on which the assessment sought to be enforced became delinguent
or, in 2 cooperative, the Tirst security interest encumbering only the
unit’s owner's interest and perfected hefore the date onr which the
assessment sought to be enforced became delinguent; and

(¢} Liens for real estale tuxes and other govermmental
assessments or charges against the unil or cooperative,

T IR
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3. The associution has o lien awhich is feiss} prior (o {sh
sasuRs—itesssp-deseribed —n—paeassaph—ty] the Jirst securiiy
fnterest to the extent of fesz} -

{u} Any clmrges incurred by the associalion ona unit pursuant to
NRS3 116.310312 ; and fta-the-estental}

{H) Except m aifrerwiye  provided -in iy poegeaph, the
assessments for cammon expenses based on the periodic budget
adopted by lhe association purstant to NRS 1163115 which would
have become due in the absence of accalamtmn durmg the @ months

:mmechatefy preccdmg i {eree-thatian:
W—%-I—:.uxe——l—aar-

fr mrm: i3 su!e or fi Jru.!rmne sm'e uj’ me umr fo enforce the first
sechrity inferest und the cosis of vellecting those asyessmens
wtivh are clirged ro g nnit's mvner prrsuant te NRS 116.310313.

If federal regu[aliuns adopted Dy the Federal Homie Loan Mortgape
Corporation , |s¢t the Federal Nationzl Mortgage Association s e
Deparmment of Veteruns Ajfiivs vequire a shorter period of priority
for the lien {f or juulnlut the inclusion of costs af ml!ucrmu m ithe

fien, the {parad-guris - eraznt af the lien wiieh is prior to
Jel-seeasitsintaranndossribod-fa-porazrash-{s M the firsr seci iy

fnterest puarsugnt o this paragraph most be determined in
accordance  with those federal regulations, exeept that
nntwilhstnnding the provisions of the federal regulations, the period
of priority for the lien most not be less than the 6 months
rmmediale[y precedmg-}nm efargeHonaentoree-thelian—
a-doas) n rrustee’s sele or fareclosure sile af the
nit m cu_ﬁ)rw e first seenrity imerest. The amenit of the eosts
af eoflecring fncinded in the lien prrsiaut o this puragraply st
ot eyeeed f!n.- amroanty set forth in the regalations adopted by the
Commission puryian? o NRS T16.310313, except that the et
incduded in the lew to recover the aetnal costs charged ro the
association or g person acfing on bellf of the wssocintion o
eedlect o pust die obiigutfon by a person whe I8 nar an ufficer,
director, ngent ar affiliote uf the eommunity smanager af the
assaciation or of an agent af the asspeintivy, un_!m!mg, witlront
finitation, the cost af @ trustee’s safe groarantes and oflier ik
costy, recording costs, posting and pabfishing eosts, sele costy,
mgiling costs, express defivery costy and skip trave fees, mast not
exceed S5

4. The provisions uf subyectiony 2 wnd 3 do nol affect the
priovity of mechanics” or materizlmens liens, or the priotity of liens
for other assessmenls made by the association,
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=t 5 The holder of the fiest yeenrity interest ar the holder's
withoerized agent nuy establish an escreoy account, lean irust
neepnnt or aiher impeund gecppnt for advance confeibations jor
the paynent of aysessinenty for conunoit expenses hased on the
perigdic budget adapred by e asseciotion pasweont to NRS
FIG31IS §f the unit’s owner and the holder of the firse xecuriyy
interest consent fo the extablishment of sueh an aeeoune. If such
an aeepnne i established, pupments from e ucconns for
assessaetly for cgnnpuon expenses mast e mode i accaordanee
with the some due detes as apply o pasinents of Suelh assesyueurs
Iy g unit's owner,

4. Unless the declaration otherwise provides, if lwo or more
associntions have liens for assessments created at any time on the
same property, hose liens have equal priority.

it 7. Reecording of the declaration coustitites recard notice
and perfection of the len. No further recordation of any claim of
lien for assessment under this section is required.

&4 8 A lien for unpeid assessments i5 extinguished wvnless
proceedings to enforce the lien ars instituted within 3 years alier the
fiill amauni of the assessments becomes due.

164 2 This section does not prohibit actions to recover sums
for which subsection 1 creales a lien or prohibit an assoeiation from
talting & deed in lien of foreclosure.

=} 10. A judgment or decree in any action brought under this
section must include costs and reasonable attorney®s fees for the
prevaijling party.

&} f1.  The association, upon written request, shall fivnish to
g unit’s owner a statement seiting forth the amount of unpaid
assessmenis against the unit, If the interest of the unit’s owner is real
esiate or if a lied for the wnpaid assessmenis may be foreclosed
under MRS 116.31162 to 116.31168, inclusive, the statement must
be in recordable form. The statement must be furnished within 10
business days afier receipl of the request and is binding on the
associalion, the executive hoard and every unit’s owner.

{3-} 72, In & cooperative, upon nonpayment of an assessment
on a upil, the unit’s ewner may be evicted in the same manner as
pravided by law in the case of an unlawful bholdover by a
comumercial tepant, and:

{a) In a cooperative where the owner’s interasl'in 4 unit is real
estate under NRS 116.1103, the association®s lien may be foreclosed
under NRS 11631162 to 116.3]1 168, inclusive.

(b} In a cooperative where the owner’s interest in a unit is
personal property under NRS 116.1103, the association’s lien:

1} May be foreclosed as a security interest under WRS
104.9101 to 104.9709, nclusive; ar
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{2) If the declaration so provides, may be foreclosed under
NRE 11631162 to 116.31168, inclusive.

H&:=} 73, Inan action by an association to collect assessments
or 1o foreclose a lien created under this section, the court may
appoint a receiver (o collect all renis or other income from the unit
alleged to be due and owing 10 o unit’s owner before
commencement or during pendency of the action. The receivership
is governed by chapter 32 of NRS. The court may order the receiver
to pay any sums held by the receiver to the association during
pendency of ihe action to the extent of the association’s common
expense assessments based on o perjodic budget adopted by the
associntion pursuant fo NRS 11631145,

Sce. 8 NRS 116.31162 is hereby amended to read as follows:

116.31162 1. Execepi as otherwise provided in subsection 4,
in a condominium, in a planned community, in & copperative where
the owner's interest in a unit is real estate under NRS 116.1165, or
in & cooperative where the owner's interest in a unit is personal
property under NRS 116.1105 and the declaration provides that a
lien may be [oveclosed under NMRS 116531162 to 116.31168,
inclusive, the nssociation may foreclose its lien by sale ofter all of
the [oliowing occur:

{a) The association has mailed by cerlified or registered mail,
relurn receipt requested, to the unil’s swner or his or her successor
in interest, ot his or her address, iT known, and at the address of the

unit, a notice of delinquent assessment which states the amount of

the assessmenls and other sums whieh are due in accordance with
sithsection 1 of WRS 116.3116G, & description of the unit against
which the lien is imposed znd the name of the record owner of he
unit.

(b} Naot lesy than 30 days after mailing the nolice of delinquent
assessinent pursuzant to paragraph (a), the association oy other person
conducting the sale has executed and caused to be recorded, with the
county recorder of the county in which the common-inierest
community or any part of it 5 silvated, a notlee of defanit and
election to sell the unit to satisfy the lien which must conlain the
same information as the notice of delinquent assessment and which
must also camply with the following:

(1) Deseribe the deficiency in payment.

(2) State the name and address of the person authorized by
the association to enforce the lien by sale.

(3) Contain, in 14-point bold lype, the Tollowing werning:

WARNING! IF YOU FAIL TO PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECITFIED IN THIS NOTICE, YOU COULD LOSE YOUR
HOME, EVEN IF THE AMOUNT LS IN DISPUTE!
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{c) The unil’s owner or his or her successor in interest has failed
to pay the amount of the len, including costs, fees and expenses
incident 1o its enforcement, for 90 days following the recording of
the notice of default and election Lo sell.

2. The notice of defzult and election to sell must be signed by
the person desipnated in the declaration or by the asgsociation for that
purpose or, if no ono is designated, by the president of the
association.

3. The period of 30 days begins on the first day following:

{a) The date on which the nolice of default is recorded; or

{b) The date on which a copy of the notice of default is mailed
by certified or registered mail, return receipt requesied, to the unit's
owner or his or her successor in interest at his or her address, 1
known, and at the address of the unit,

“ whichever dale occurs later.

4. The association may nol foreclose a lien by sale based on

() The cosis of collecting charsed ta o wnit's wmwner pursnoans
to NRS F16.310343.

(h) A fine or penalty for a violation of the governing doctments
af the association unless:

H=H (1) The violation peses an imminent threat of causing a
substantial adverse effect on the health, safcly or welfare of the
units’ owners or resideris of the common-interest community; or

I (2) The penalty is tmposed for failure {o adhere 1o a
schedule required pursuant to NRS 116.310305.

Sec. 8. NRS 116311635 is hereby amended to read as
follows: ’

116.311635 1. The association or aother person conducting
the sale shall also, after the expiration of the 90 days and before
selling the unit:

(2) Give notice of the time and place of the sale in the manner
and for a time nat less than that required by law for the sale of real
properly upon execulion, except that in licu of following the
procedure for service an a judgment debtor pursuant to MRS 21,130,
service must be made an the unit’s owner as follows:

(1) A copy of the notice of sale musl be mailed, on or before
the date of first publication or posting, by certified or regisiered
mail, retern receipt requested, to the unit’s owner or his or her

successor In interest ot hiz or her.address, if known, and ta the

nddress of the unit; and
{2} -A copy of the notice of sale must be served, on or before

the date of first publication or posting, in the mannper set forth in
subsection 2; and
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{1} Mail, on or before the date of first publication or posting, a
copy of the notice by Himt-elassmally ceriffied or registered nail,
returs receipy requesied, 10:

{1} Each person entitled to recelve e copy of the notice of
default and clection to sell notice under NRS 116.31163;

{(2) The holder of & recorded security interest or the purchaser
of the unit, if either of them has notified the association, before the
mailing of the notice of sale, of the existence of the security interest,
lease or conlract of sale, ns applicable; and

{3) The Ombudsman. :

2. In addition to the requiremenis set forth in subseclion 1, a
copy of the notice of sale must be served:

(1) By = person who is 18 years of age or older and who is not a2
party to or interesied in the sale by personally delivering a copy of
the notice of sale ta an oceupant of the unit who is of suitable age;
ar

(b} By posting a copy of the notice of sale in a conspicuous
place on the unil.

3. Any copy of the notice of sale required to be served pursuant
to this section must include:

{a) The amount necessary {o salisfy the lien as of the date of the
proposed sale; and

(b) The [ollewing warning in 14-point bold type:

WARNING! A SALE OF YOUR PROPERTY 18
IMMINENT! UNLESS YOU PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED IN THIS NOTICE BEFORE THE SALE DATE.
YOU COULD LOSE YOUR HOWE, EVEW IF THE
AMOUNT IS IN DISPUTE. YOU MUST ACT BDEFORE
THE SALE DATE. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS,
PLEASE CALL (name and telephone number of the contacl
person for the association). IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE,
PLEASE CALL THE FORECLOSURE SECTION OF THE
ONMBUDSMAN'S OFFICE, NEVADA -REAL [ESTATE
DIVISION, AT (toll-free telephone number designated by the
Division} IMMEDIATELY.

4. Praof of service of any copy of the notice of sale required to
be served pursuant ta this section must consist of:

{a) A certificate af mailing which evidences that the nofice was
mailed through the United States Postal Service; or

{b) An affidovit of service signed by the person who served the
natice slating:

{1) The time of service, manner of service and location of

service; and
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{2} The name of the person served or, i the notice was not
served on a person, a description of the location where the notice
was posted on the unit.

See. 10. NRS 11631164 is hereby amended to read as
follows:

11631164 1. The sale must be conducted in the county in
which the eommon-interest community or part of it {5 situated, and
may be canducted by the association, its agent or atlarney, ar a title
insurance company or escrow agent licensed 1o do business in this
Stale, except that the sale may be made al the office of the
association if the notice of the sale so provided, whether the unit is
located within the same county as the office of the association ar
not. The association ar other person conducting the sale may from
thne to time postpone the sale by such advertisement and notice as it
considers reasonable or, without further adverlisement or notice, by
proclamation made to the persons assembled at ihe lime and place
previously set and advertised Tor the sale,

2. QOnihe doy of sale originally advertised or to which the sale
is postponed, at the time and place specified in the notice or
postponement, the person conducting the sale may sel] the unit ot
public auction to the highest cash bidder. Unless alherwise provided
in the declaration or by agreement, the association may purchase the
unit and held, lease, morlgage or convey it. The pssociation may
purchase by a credit bid up to the amount of the unpaid assessments
and any permilted costs, fees and expenses incident to the
enforcement of its lien. :

3. After the sale, the person conducting the sale shiall:

{e} Make, execute and, after paymenl is made, deliver to the
purchaser, or his or lier successor ar assign, a deed withoul warranly
which conveys (o the grantee all {itle of the unil’s owaer lo the unit;

(b} Deliver a copy of the deed to the Ombudsman within 30
days nfier the deed is delivered to the purchaser, or his or her
successor or assign; and

{c) Apply the procesds of (he sale for the following purposes in
the following arder:

{1) The reasonable expenses of sale;

{2} The ressonable expenses of securing possession before
sale, holding, maintaining, and prepasing the unit for sale, including
payment of taxes and other governmental charges, premiums aon
hazard and [iahility insurance, and, to the extent provided for by the
declaration. reasonable attorney’s fees snd other legal expenses
incurred by the essociation;

(3) Satisfaction of the nssociation’s lien;

() Satisfaction in the order of priority of any subordinate
claim of record; and

L)
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(5) Remitlance of any excess to the unit’s owner.

{.  The foreclosure iy sale of the essoeiation's livn does noe
extingisish tie rights of the hofder of the first securiey interest,

See. 11, NRS 1164100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1164109 1. Exceptin the case of a sale in which delivery of
a public offering statement is required, or unless exempt under
subsection 2 of NRS [16.4101, & unil’s owner or his or her
authorzed agent shall, at the expense of the unit’s owner, furnish to
a purchaser a resale package conteining all of the following:

(a) A copy of the declaration, other than any piats, the bylaws,
the rules or regulalions of the association and the information
statement required by WNRS 116,41095.

(b) A statement fromn the association setting forth the amount of
the monthly assessment for common expenses and any unpaid
obligation of any kind, including, withowt limitation, management
fees, tansfer fees, fines, penalties interest, collection costs,
foreclosure fues and attomey’s fees currcntly due fram the se!lmg
upil's owner, Jhe—statemes = F:*k—#id—anﬂa
*';-e—:—l—h—eF-l:i—iJu—rWtemL—rL—Lmuﬁ—:-rrdsz—HPHam-les ihen
dagatam-thedat ol dalivepebeily -.Heaae:—.eﬁm.—aw{-fima" .
er-hizar-ReraceptHthe-assoctabian-beemsag-peare ot tm—-lﬁr.l—m
the-stammestidurinathe paded-irsehich-the shteme; A
delizar—s—raplicemeni-stiamantiothie-pwpilsepes-oe-hi-arhar
%M#FF%H%AHMMEW&%HHHH%%
ar—his—si- ﬂ:%—qﬂEI-H?}PS!‘—H“LI—'—‘M&hWEHH—E—PSE—HQwH—r&
ener—ar—his—as-hersventresaives = raplasamant statamen—the
—-iH-F—S—!:\—hE.‘i-»E‘F—-ﬂi-":—H—!—?’HE{:‘HE—. aypel-spes-he-nestrer—athe

it hl-v&Fb['%mWPl-pH—h’“b]—h‘—}%lrﬂﬁﬁah—iﬁﬂﬁ—rﬂr
Lth"-e*nJrc—:

{c) A copy of the current aperating budget of the association and
current year-to-date financial statement for the nssociation, which
must include a summary of the reserves of the association 1‘equired
by NRS 116.31152 and which must incilude, without limitation, a
summary of the information described in paragraphs (2) to (&),
inclusive, of subsection 3 of MRS 116.31152.

(d) A statement of any unsatisfied judgments or pending legal
actions agninst the association and the status of any pending lepal
actions relating to the common-interest community of which the
unit’s owner has actual knowledge.

{e) A statemenl ofany transfer fees, transaction fees or any other
fees associated with the resale of a unit.

(R In addition to any other document, a statement describing all
current and expected fees or charges for each unil, including,
without limitation, association fees, fines, ossessments, [ate charges

[
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or penalties, interest raies on delinquent assessments, additional
costs for collecting past due fines and charges for opening or closing

any file for each unil.

2, The purchaser may, by written notice, cancel the conivact of
purchase untit midnight of the fifth calendar day following the date
of receipt of the resale package described in subsection I, and the
contiaci far purchase nust contain a provision to that effect. If the
purchaser elscls fu cance]l 8 contract pursuant o this subsection,
the purchaser must hand deliver the notice of cancellation o the
unit’s owner or his or her authorized agent ar mail the notice of
cancellation by prepaid United States majl to the unit's owner or his
or her guthorized agent. Cancellation is without penally, and all
paymenis made by the purchaser before cancellation must be
refunded promplly. If the purchaser has accepted a conveyance of
the unit, the purchaser is not entitled to:

{a) Cancel the contract pursuant io this subsection; or

(b) Damages, rescission or other relief based solely on the
ground that the unit*s owner or his or her authorized agent [ailed o
furnish the resale package, or any portion thereof, as required by this
section.

3. Within I} days afier receipt of a wrilten reqetest by a unit’s
owner or his or her authorized agent, the association shall furnish all
of {he following to the unit’'s owner or his or her authorized agent
for inclusion in the resale package:

(a) Copies of the documents required pursuant to paragraphs (o)
and (¢) of subsection 1; and '

(b) A certificnie containing the information necessary to enable
the unit’s owner to comply wilh pavagraphs (b), (d), {2} and (F) of
subsection 1.

4. 1f the association furnishes the documenis and certificale
pursuant to subsection 3:

(a} The unit’s owner ar his or her authartzed agent shafl include
the documents and cerlificale in the resale package provided to the
purchaser, and neither the unit’s owner nor his or her authorized
agent is liable to the purchaser for any erroneous information
provided by the association and included in the documents and
certificate,

(b) The association may charge the unit's owner a reasonabls
fee lo cover the cost of preparing the certificate furnished pursuant
to subsection 3. Such a fee must be based on the actual cost the
nssoctation incurs to fulfitl the requirements of this seclion in
preparing the certificate. The Commission shall adopt regulations
establishing the maximum amount of the fee fhat an association may
charge Tar preparing the certificate.

T AT
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{c) The other documenis furnished pursuant lo subsection 3
must be provided In electronic formatl {at-ne—chaseal to the unit’s
owner . fes-i] The ussociurion ney charge the uiit's aweer o _fee,
nol fo exceed 520, to provide saclr documenty in electronic furmar.
If the association is unable to provide such documents in electronic
format, the associntion may charge the unit’s owner a reasonable
fee, not to exceed 25 cenis per page for e first §0 pages, and 10
cents per page thereafier, to cover the cost of copying.

. (d) Except for the fees allowed pursuant to paragraphs.(b) and
{c), the assoeiation may not charpe the unit’s owner any other fees
for preparing or furnishing the documenis and certificate pursuant to
subsection 3.

5. Meither a purchaser nor the purchaser’s interest in a unit is
linble for ony unpaid assessment or fee greater then the amount set
forth in the documents and certificate prepared by the association. IF
thie association fails to furnish the documents and certificate within
the 10 days allowed by this section, the purchaser &5 not hable jor
the delinquent assessment.

6. Upon the request of a unit’s owner or his or her anthorized
agent, or upon the request of a purchaser to whom the unit’s owner
has provided a resale package pursuant to this section or his or her
authorized agent, the association shall make the entire study of the
reserves of the association which is required by NRS 118.31152
reasonably available for the tnit’s owner, purchaser or authorized
agent lo inspect, examine, photocopy and audit. The study must be
made availahle at the business office of the association or some
other suitable location within the county where the common-interesi
communtty is situated or, i it is sitoated In more than one county,
within one of those counties.

o A unif’s cwener or the arihorized agent of the unit’s owner
ey request o stalenrent of demand from the associarion, Not fufer
rhaar 1 dapy qfter reeeins of o writien regaest fronn a nndt’s owner
ar the guilovized agene of the wule's owser for o stoiement of
demand, the axsaciwzion shall furnish o statement of demand to
the units awaer or fie gwhorized agent. The asseciation may
clurrge u Jee of nut more vhan $130 1w prepare and furnish o
Sturemenr of dennud poursaunt to his stbsection and un addiionmd
See uf oot more e 5100 to frirnisi a stacement of dempnd witliin
I dapy after receipt af a written reguest for o stevement of deinaiid,
The stutemeni of dennond:

(u) Nuse set fortlr the amount of e montfly assessment for
comnmn  expenses and aup wapeid ebligation of auy Lo,
inclnding, withowt limitation, muanagement fees, iroesjer fees,
Jines, penaltivs, interest, colleetivnr vosts, foreclosure fees and
aftprney's fies enrrendly due frour the sellfing anie’s owaer; and

g I

US BANKO0613



-

{h) Remains gffective fir the pevied specifted in the statement
af deatand, wilich muyst not be fess than 15 businesy diys after die
dwte af deliverp Bp the assacigffon ta the anit’s ewner or
erthorized ngent of the paft's ouner.

8. 7 the associution becomes ware of an errgr in a stefement
of demand furnished pursiant to snbsection 7 during ihe period in
whiclr the sugemear of dend iy effective hur before ile
eonsmniafion of a resele for which o resefe package wug

Sfurnixtred pursiant fo subsection I, the asypciation nist deffeer o

replucament stafement of demand fo the units owmer gr the
anthorized agent of the wnit’s owner who regaested e stufeinent
af denrend. Onless the wniv's onwner or the muthorized agens of the
i’y gynier wiho regquested e stetement of dened recefves o
replacement stutmeny of dewand, the unit's owner or authorized
ugent i) rely upon te gcenrgey of the informasion et forth in
the staternent of desiand provided hy the assoeiution for the resale.
Pupment of the amenny set forth in the statemenr of demrd
constitutes full puyment of the oot due from the selling nnit’s
wIer,

I
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(Reprinted with amendments adopled on Juna 3, 2013)
THIRD REPRINT S.B. 280

SENATE BiLL Na, 280-SENATOR KHHUEN

MARCH 15,2013

Referred to Commitiee on Judiciary

SUMMARY—Revises provisians. relating io  common-interest
communities. (BDR 10-863)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Loeal Government: No.
Effect on the State: No.

~

LEXTLANATION « hagier i Safifedt Toplles {s nen mabter Besieen heackais Lonlaabiiedal) @ matesied o e pininel

AN ACT relating to common-interest cominunities; atthorizing the
establishment of an impound account for the payment of
assessments  under certain  circumsiances; revising-
provisions governing the coliection of past due financial
obligations owed to an association; revising pravisions
governing the foreclosure of an association’s lien by sale;
requiring an association to provide a statemnent concerning
certain amounts due to the association under certain
circumstances; authorizing an association to charge a fee
for such a statement; and providing other matters properly
relating therelo.

Legislative Counsels Digest:

Untler existing low, a homeowners® associotion has 2 {fen on o unit Tor eerteio
amounls due le he sssoeintion. (MRS [63116) Existing Inw suthorlzes e
ussociotion to Foreclosc its [ien by sale and prescribes the procedures for soch a
foreclosore. (NRS 116.31162-116.31 168}

Seetion 7 af this bitl euthorizes the cslablishment of aa fnpound account for
advance condributions for e paysnent of assessmenis. Under seetion 8 of this bifl,
not earlier thun 60 deys aficr o unil®s owner becames delinguent on o payment
awed (o the assorcintion and before the ussociation mails a notice of delinguent
assessment or tnkes gey other actfon 1o colflecta mst due oblipution, the associution
must mail a notice lo the unit's owner seiting farth the fees that may be chorged iF
the unil’s owner fiils o poy the past due obligalion, @ proposed repayment plen nnd
eertnin informntion eoncerning (he procedore for requesting a hearing before the
execulive honnd,

Section 11 of this bill sulhorizes o wnit’s owner, the suthorized sgent of a uniCs
awner o {lie hnlder of 2 security intercst on the wnit to request from the asseeintlon
a sintement concerninp cerinln smounts owed 1o Lhe association, Under section 11,
the nssocintion may chorge cerfain fees for such o stelement. Section 11 also

A% Iy
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reviscs provisions governing tic resale package provided lo a prospeetive purehaser
of" vmit owed aulhorizes {he nssocialion Lo charge a fec for providing in electranie
format cefain dacuments releted to (he resale packoge.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Seetion 1. {Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 2. (Deleted by amendmenL)

Sce. 3. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec, 4. {Deleted by amendment.)

See. 5. (Deleted by amendment.)

See. 6. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 7. NRS 116.3116 is hereby amended 1o read as follows:

1163116 [. The association has a lien on a unit for any
construction penalty that is imposad apainst the unit’s owner
pursuant to WRS 116310305, any nssessment levied apainst that
unit or any fines imposed against the vnit’s owner from the time the
construction penalty, assessmem. or fine becomes due. Unless the
declaration otherwise provides, any penalties, fees, charges, lale
charges, fines and interest charged pursuant to paragraphs (7} lo (1),
inclusive, of subsection 1 of NRS 116.3102 are enforceable as
assessments under this section. If an assessment is payable in
installments, the full amount of the assessment is a lien from the
time the first installment thereof becomes due,

2. A lien under this section is prior to all other liens and
encumbrances on a4 unit excepl:

(a) Liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordation of
the declaration and, in a cooperative, liens and encumbrances which
the asseciation creates, assumes or takes subject to;

{b} A [irst security interesl on the unit recorded before the date
on which the assessment sought (o be enforeed became delinquent
or, in a cooperative, the firsl security interest encumbering only the
unit's owner's inlerest and perfected before the date on which the
assessment scught to be enforced became delinquent; and

(c) Liens for real estale taxes and olher povernmenial
assessiments or charges against the unit or cooperative.
= The lien is also pror to pl] securly interests described in
paragraph (b) to the extent of any charges incwrred by the
association on a unit pursuant to NRS 116.310312 and to the extent
of the assessments for common expenses based on the periodic
budget adopled by the asscciation pursuant to NRS [16.3115 which
would have become gue in the absence of acceleration during the 9
months immedialely preceding institution of an action to enforce the
Hen, unless fedecal regulations adopted by the Federal Home Loan

q - T
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Mortgage Corporation  or the [Federal National Mortgage
Assaociation require a shorler period of priorily for the lien. If federal
tcpulations adopled by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation or the Federal National Morgage Association require a
shorter period of priority for the lien, the period during which the
lien is prior to all security intevests described in paragragh (&) must
be determined in sccordance with those federal regulations, except
that notwithstanding the provisions of the federal regulations, the

period of pricrily for the lien must not be less (han the § months -

immediately preceding institution of an action to enforce the Hen.
This subsection does naot affect the priority of mechanics™ or
maierialmen’s liens, or the priority of liens for otheér assessments
made by the association.

3. The kolder af the secarity interest described in poragraplt
(0} of subseerinn 2 or the holder’s anthorized agent may establish
ait excrow acconnt, loain trust avcount ur other nponnd acconnt
Jor advence contribations for e popment of assessments for
eompnon expeiyes hased ou the periodic budged pdppred by the
asseciution pursont to NRS 116.3115 if the unit’s joner and the
holder af that yecarify inferest consent to the establishment of
Suede an geconnr [ sucl an ucconnt iy eseabfished, poynients froim
the aeconnt for asvessments for Common expenses must be mude
in qecordunce with the same dme dotey a5 applyp to paymients of
suel aysessuenty by a wnit's owper.

4. Unless the declaralion otherwise provides, iF two or more
nssactations have liens for assessments created at any time on the
same property, those liens have equal priarily.

{4 5. Recording of the declaration constitutes record notice
and perfection of the lien. No firdher recordation of any claim of
lien for assessment under this section is required.

4 4 A lien for unpaid assessmenis is extinguished unless
proceedings to enforce the lien are instituted within 3 years afier the
full amount of the assessments becomes due.

46-} 7. This section does not prohibitl actions to recover sums
for which subsection 1 creates a [ien or prohtbit an associalion from
taking a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

+} 8 A judsment or decree in any action brought under this
section must include costs and reasonable attormey’s fees for the
prevailing party.

18} 9. The association, upon written request, shall furnish to a
unit’s owner a statement seiting forth the mmouni of unpaid
assessments against the unit If the interest of the unit®s owner is real
estate or if a lien for the vnpaid assessments may be foreclosed
under WRS [16.31162 to 116,31168, inclusive, the stalement must
be in recordable form. The staternent must be fumished within 10

q: A
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business days after receipt of the request and is binding on the
association, the executive board and every unji’s owner.

{8 10. Tn a cooperative, upon nonpayment of an assessment
on a unit, the unit*s owner may be evicted in lhe same manner as
pravided by law in the case of an uniawful holdover by a
commercial tenant, and:

(a} In a cooperative where the owner’s mten.st in a unit is real
estale under NRS 1 16,1105, the association’s lien may be foreclosed
under NRS 116.31162 to 116.31168, inclusive.

(b) In & cooperotive where the owner’s interest in a unit is
personal properly under NRS 116.1103, the association’s lien:

1) May be [foreclosed as a security interest under NRS
104.9101 lo 104.9709, inclusive; or

2) If the decloration so provides, may be foreclosed under
MRS 116.31162 to 116.31 168, inclusive.

L4 77, Inan actlon by an association io collect assessments
or to foreclose a lien created bnder Lhis sectiom, the court may
appainl a receiver to collect all reats or other income from the umt
alleped o be due and owing fo a unit's owner before
commencement or during pendency of the action. The receivership
is governed by-chapter 32 of NRS. The court may order the recejver
io poy eny sums held by the receiver to the association during
pendency of the action to the extent of the associalion’s commen
expense assessments based on & periodic budget adopted by the
associalion pursuant to NRS 116.3114.

Sec, 8. NRS 11631162 is hereby amended to read as follows:

11631162 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection <}
5, in a condaminivm, in a planned community, in a cooperalive
where the owner’s interest in a unil is real estate under NRS
116.1103, or in a cooperative where the owner’s interest in g unit is
personal property under NRS 116.1105 and the declaration provides
that a lien may be foreclosed under NRS 116.31162 to 11631188,
inclusive, the association moy foreclose ils lien by sale after all of
the: following oecur:

(8) The association has mailed by ceftified or regislered mail,
return receipk requested, to the unit’s owner or his or her successor
in interest, ai his or het address, iff known, and at the address of the
unit, a nolice of delinquent assessment which states the amount of
the assessments and olher sums which are due in accordance with
subsection | of NRS 1163116, a descriplion of the unit against
which the lien is imposed and ihe name of the record owner of the
unit.

(b) Mot less than 30 days after mailing the notice of delinquent
assessment pursuant to paragraph (o), the association or other person
conducting the sale has executed and caused to be recorded, with the
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county recorder of the county in which the common-interest
community or any part of it is situated, a notice of default and
clection (o sell the unit to satisfy the lien which must contain the
same information as the notice of delinquent assessment and which
must also comply with the following:

(1} Describe the deficiency in payment.

(2) State the name nnd address of the person avthorized by
the association (o enforce the lien by sale.

{3) Conlain, in 14-point bold type, the following warning;

WARNING! IF YOU TFAIL TO PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED IN THIS NOTICE, YOU COULD LOSE YOUR
HOME, EVEN IF THE AMOUNT IS IN DISPUTE!

{c) The unit’s owner or his or her successor in jnterest has failed
to pay the amount of the lien, including costs, fzes and expenses
incident to its enforcement, for 90 days following the recording of
the notice of delauli and election to sell.

2. The nolice of default and election 1o sell must be signed by
the person designated in the declaration or by the association for that
purpose of, i[ no one is desipnated., by the president of the
association,

3. The period af 94 days begins an the first day lollowing;

{a) The date on which the notice of default is recorded; or

(b} The date on whicl a copy of the notice of default is mailed
by eertified or megisiered mail, return receipt requested, to the unit’s
awner or his or her successor in interest at his or her address, if
known, and at the address of the unik,

“+ whichever deie oocurs later.

4. Aw association may noy mail 10 o yidt's awner or fis or er
successor in inferest o fetter of Bty fnterd fo omadl o onotice of
delingueny aysessmens porsioans (o preagraple () of subsection 1,
il the notice of delinguent assessment or teke apy other action
1 cediect o past due abfigaiion front a uniit's owoer or hiv or her
suceessgr in interest unless, noi eorfier i 60 duyy after the
obligation beeones past dae, the dssociarion maily to the adidress
e file for the npit's enwurers

(u} A schedule of the fees that muy he charged i the anic's
owaer fuily to pay the pust dae obffgation;

(i) A proposed repayment plon; and

(c) A notice of the right ro contest the past due obligation af o
heaping before the execmtive hourd amd  the procedores for
requesting suclt o lreqring.

Qs IR
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3. The association may not foreclese a lien by sale based on a
fine or penally for a violation of Lthe governing documenls of the
associnlion unless:

(a) The violation poses an imminent threat of causing a
substantial adverse effect on the healih, safety or welfare of the
units® gwners or residents of the common-interest community; or

{b) The penalty i{s imposed for failure 1o adhere to a schedule
required pursuant iv NRS 116.310305.

Sec. 8. NRS 1163116835 is hereby amended to read as
Tollows:

116311635 |. The associatior or other person conducting
the sale shall alsa, after the expitation of the 90 days and before
selling the unit:

{a) Give notice of the time and place of the sale in the manner
and for a lime not less than that required by law For the sale of real
property upon excculion, except that in leu of following the
procedurs for service on 2 judgment debtor pursnant to NRS 21,134,
selvice must ba made on the unit’s owner as follows:

(1) A copy of the nolice of sale must be mailed, on ar befare
the dale of first publicotion or posiing, Ly certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested, 1o the unit's owner or his or her
suctessor in interest at his or her address, iF known, and to the
address of the unit; and

{2) A copy of the notice of sale must be served, on, or before
the date of firsi publication or posting, in Lhe manner set forth in
sutbsection 2; and

{b) Mail, on or before the datc of first publication ar posting, o
copy of the notice by HEstek cerifffed or registered malil,
rernrn receipt 1 eqm_'.sfed o:

(1) Each person entilled o reccive a eopy of the notice of
default and election to sell notice under NRS 116.31163;

{2} The holder of a recorded security interest or the purchaser
of the unit, if either of them has notified the associafion, before the
mailing of the notice of sale, of the existence of the security interast,
lease or contract of sale, as applicable; and

{3) The Ombudsman.

2. in addition to the reguirements set forth in subsection |, a
copy of the notice of sale must be served:

(a) By a person who is I8 years of age or older and who is not a
party to or interested in 1he sale by personally delivering a copy of
the notice of sale fo an cecupant of the unit who is of suitable age;
ar

(b} By posting a copy of the notice of sale in a conspicuous
place on the unil,
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3.  Any copy of the notice of sale required to be served pursuant
to this section must inciude:

(2) The amount necessary to satisfy the lien as of the date of the
proposed sale; and

{b) The following warning In i<-point bold type:

WARNINGI A SALE OF YOUR PROPERTY I8
IMMINENT! UNLESS YOU PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED IN THIS NOTICE BEFORE THE SALE DATE,
YOU COULD LOSE YOUR HOME, EVEM IF THE
AMOUNT IS IN DISPUTE. YOU MUST ACT BEFORE
THE SALE DATE. IF YOU HAVE "ANY QUESTIONS,
PLEASE CALL {name and telephone number of the conlacl
person for the assoetation), IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE,
PLEASE CALL THE FORECLOSURE SECTION OF THE
OMBUDSMAN'S OFFICE, NEVADA REAL ESTATE
DIVISION, AT (ioll-Free telephone number designated by the
Division) IMMEDIATELY.

4. Proof of service of any copy of the notice of sale required to
be served pursuant to this section must consist of

(a} A certificale of meiling which evidences that the notice was
mailed through the Uniled Staies Postal Service; or

(b} An affidavit of service signed by the person who served the
notice stating:

(1) The time of service, manner of service and location of
service; and

{2) The name of the parson served or, if the notice was not
served on a person, 4 description af the location where the notice
was posted on the unit.

See. 10, {Deleied by amendment.)

Sec. 11. NRS 116.4109 is herelly amended. 1o read as follows:

116.4108 1. Except in the case of a zale in which delivery of
a public offering statement is required, or unless exempt vnder
subsection 2 of MRS 1164104, a unait’s owner or his or her
anthorized agent shall, at the expense of the unit’s owner, furnish Lo
a purchaser a resale package containing al! of the faliowing:

(a) A copy of the declaration, other than any plais, the bylaws,
the rules ar repulations of the association and the information
statement required by NRS 116.41085.

(b} A statement from he association setting lorth the ahount of
the monthly assessment for common expenses and amy unpaid
obligation of any kind, including, withoul limitation, management
fees, [ransfer fees, fines, penalties, iotevest, collection casls,
foreclosure fees and attomey’s fees currently due from the selling
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(c) A cnpy of the current operating budget of the association and
current year-lo-date financial statement for the association, which
must include a summary of the reserves of the association required
by NRS 116.31152 and which must include, without limitation, a
summary of the informotion described in paragraphs (a) to (g),
inclusive, of subszction 3 of NRS 116.31152.

{d) A slatement of any unsatisflied judgments or pending legal
actions sgainst the association and the status of any pending legal
actions relating to the common-inlerest community of which the
unit’s owner has aclual knowledge.

{e)} A siatement of any transfer fees, transaction fees or any ather
fees associated with the resale of a unit

([} Tn addition to any other document, 2 statement describing all
current and expected fees or charges for each unil, Including,
without limitatian, association fees, fines, assessmants, lale charges
or penaliies, interest rales on delingquent assessments, additional
cosls for eollecting past due fines and charges for opening or closing

any file for each unit,

2. The purchaser may, by withen notice, cancel the contract of
purchase until midnight of the fifih calendar day fellowing the date
of receipt of the resale packapge described in subsection 1, and the
contract for purchase must confain a provision to that effect. If the
purchaser elects to cancel a contract pursuant to this subsection,
the purchaser mus! hand deliver the notice of cancellation to the
unil’s owner or his or her authorized agen! or mail the notice of
cancellation by prepaid United States mail 1o the unit’s owner or his
or her authorized agent. Cancellation is without penaliy, and all
payments made by the purcheser before cencellation must be
refunded promptly. If the purchaser has accepted a conveyance of
the unit, the purchaser is not entitled to:

(a) Cnncel the contraet pursuant to this subseclion; or
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(b) Damages, reseission or other reliel based solely on the
ground that the unit™s awner or his or her authorized agent fajled {o
furnish the resale package. or any portion thereof, as required by this
section.

3. Within 10 days afier receipt of a writien request by a unit's
awner or his or her authorized agent, the association shall frnish all
of the following to the unit’s awner or his or her authorized agent
for inclusion in the resale packape:

(a) Copies of the docunients required pursuant to paragraphs (o)
and (c) of subsection 1; and

(b} A certificate containing {he information necessary to enable
the unit’s owner {o camply with paragraphs (b), {d)}, (e} and (T} of
subsection 1.

4, If the associstion furnishes ihe documents and cerlificale
pursuant 1o subsection 3: .

{o} The unit’s owner or his or her authorized agent shall include
the documents and certificate in the resale package provided to the
purchaser, and neither the unit®s owner nor his or her aoihorized
agent is- liable to the purchaser for any erroneous information
provided by the assoclation and included in the docmmenis and

certificale.

(b) The association may charge the unit’s owner a reasonabie -

fee 1o cover the cost of preparing the certificate furnished pursuant
to subseclion 3. Such a fee must be based on the actual cost the
association ineurs to fulfill the requiremenis of this section in
preparing the certificate. The Commission shall adopl regulations
establishing the maximum amount of the fee that an associakion may
charge for preporing the certificate,

{c) The othier documenis furnished pursusnt to subsection 3
must be provided in electronic formal Grns-—eharest to the unit’s
owner . s The associntion nury charge the anit’s owner o fee,
not to exceed 528, to pravide snedt documents in efeeranic formai.
If the assoclation is unable to provide such documents in elestronic
formal, the association may charge the unil’s owner a reasonable
fee, not to exceed 235 cents per page for the first 10 pages, and 10
cents per page thereafier, to cover {he cosl of capying.

{d) Except for the fees allowed pursuant to paragraphs (b} and
{(c), the association may not charge the unii*s owner any other fees
for preparing or furnishing the documents and certificate pursuant to
subsection 3.

3. Neither a purchaser nor the purchaser's inferest in a unit is
liable Tor any unpeid assessment or fee greater than the amount get
Torth in the documents and certificate prepared by the association. IT
the association Fails to furnish the documents and certificate within
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the 10 days allowed by this seclion, the purchaser is not lable for
the delinquenl assessment.

6. Upon the request of a unit’s owner or his or her authorized
agent, or upon the request of a purchaser to whom ihe unit’s owner
has provided a resale package purstunt to this section ar his or her
authorized agent, the associntion shall make the entire study of the
reserves ol the association which is required by NRS 11637152
reasonably available for the vnit’s owner, purchaser or authorized
agent to inspect, examine, photocopy and audit. The study must he
made available at the business office of the association or some
other suitable tocation within the county where the comman-interest
commupily is situated or, if il is situated in more than one county,
within one of those counties.

7. A maiv's meaer, the qutherized agest of the anit's nwner or
the holifer of n security inferest on the wdf ney reguest o
srarement of demand from the assocfutfon. Noy eter than I doys
affer receipt of @ written reguest frons the unit’s ewner, the
auhorized agent af the anit’s owaer or the holder of o security
fmterest pn the undt for o stwrement of demand, the associotion
shall frrniish o stetement of demmd to the pervon wha requesied
the stwrement. The asseeiation may charge o fee af net more than
5158 tp prepoare und fnrnish a starement of demand parsiant to
thiy snbyecrtion wud wie adiditional fee of not more than SI00 to
Furnish a seatement of desesed within 3 daps affer receipt of o
weitten reqoest for o statement of denmnrd. The staieineny of
demund:

() Bust set forth the amonnt qf the monthly assessment fur
connnen  expenses wnd  any pnpaid ebligarion wf wmy Kind,
inetuding, withour Hndtetipn, mmggement fees, fransfer feos,
Jinas, penaliies, inferest, colfection costy, foreclosare fees wnd
atipraey'y foex cirrently due frou the sefling andt’s owner;y and

8} Remuainy effective for the period specified in fhe stotement
af demand, wiiel st nat be fess than 13 bosinesy duyy afier the
dure of defivery hp the wsyocivion fo the wn¥'s owner, the
authorized agent gf the unit's owner or the holder of a securify
interest o the wnit, whiclrever iy applicahle,

8. If the usseciotion becomey aware af an error in o stufeinent
of denand furnished pursuant to subsection 7 during the pesiod in
JAvhich the statemerrt of demwond fyoogffective big before e
conswinmetion of o resele for which o resafe puckuage was
Jurnisiied pursnuant to snhsection I, ithe aysocintion muse delfver o
replacement stutement of dennnud to the persear wl requesied e
statement af demand. Unless the peesan wiie reguesiod  the
Staremient of demand recefves o replucement statemen! of dengnnid,
Hre peryon gy rely np the aecureey of the infarmation ses ford
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i the suetement of dengmnd provided by the association for the
resale. Payment of the muonnt see farth in the statement of
demuntd congtitntes fidl poyeny of the amonnt dee fiom the
selling unit's wwner, '
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2013 Session {77th} A 5B280RT 777

Antendment No. 797

Assembly Amendment to Sensle Bill No. 380 First Reprint (BDR [0-E63)
Proposed by: Assembly Commitlce an Judiciary

Aments: Sumimory; No o Title: Yes Preomble: No Joint Sponsorship: No Dipest: Yes

ASSEMDBLY ACTION nlbtatemi ne | SENATE ACTION  1ulital ne ke
aoued F1 0 wns [ I adopta [ wem [J
Concurnct Iy D ol D 4 Conreneal In l:l Nnt{] S
nentd 7w [ | feended [} wet [ 1

EXPLANATION: NMatler in (1) Iue befdd frdies is new language in the arginal
bill: (2) et hole inelie andecfiiine is new iangeape proposed in his omendment;
(3) eodderilothraush is deleted langunge in tho originol Bill; {4) puple=double
steikithrengh §s lnpuepe proposed o De deleted in ihis omendmeat; {3) ey
doubic_ppeledlining js deleted Innpuage in the oripisal bill that §s proposed 1o be
retnined in Wis amendmenl; and {6} 2reen Lold gndecliniun is aewly added
transitory langbnge. )

BFGIBAW Dnte: 3/2442013

S.B. Mo. 280—Revises provisions relating o common-interes| communilics.

(BDR 10-863)
AL A
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Assembly Amendment Mo, 777 to Seaate Bill No. 280 First Reprint Pope 2

SENATE BILL NG 280-5SENATOR KOHUEN

Manrcd |35, 2013

Referred o Comenittee an fudiciary

SUMMARY—Revises provisions reluting to common-inlenest  communities.
(BDR 10-863)

FISCAL NOTE:  Effect oo Loer] Government: No.
Effect gn the Stote; Na.

EXPLANATION < M2ter in fafiliad foffey I8 new; maiter henwees brazkets faisinbmakiiah s ial 1o be cadn=t

AN ACT rchiling lo common-inicrest cantmuaities; revising provisions goveming
Jthietotuntiatmei F~paskdi—-daanneinl—eblizndont—swedmlg—nn
ssewintjangl an associnlipn's Hen on u unit: revising provisions
governing  {paymonbi—reraivad—Ee}l the povioepl ol Tenweiak
alidigntions o gn ossocintion_: Hieni=n=umls-owner] mevising

provisions goversing the [oreclosure of an associntion’s lien by sale;

rewnirine nir assoeintinn (o provide a statentent concerning certnin
mwoonts due tn the nysnehetivn toder corisin clrenmstanees:
wafhorizing an associntion to chnepe o ey e suel o soilezent: and

providing other matiers properly reintiog terelo,

Lepisintive Counscl’s Digests

Under existing fuw, 8 homeowners' nssociation hos A licn on o nnil o ceriil wnotnts
due to e assocfalinn, {fSHMSwl b MR tim-iv=niioeizesth-psaniativa-h-SBnaose
dls=lan=hmgnlt=d fd hossitanduprosorilne=ln=provdurssforsuheseforoslumire= 4 itg
bl e b fidad il frtrs B inahillaresiieaaprosisiog s ovoriiiae (el emoHoationen (Spoat=tu
fimteinl=mb Huntio il et em—trrasini o et =forsHesars—{i=y
hanmtevwene spzsaoiiting: -
—rfatipnel=pl=iliiz=billestablislios=praeodunseavhivla-lameswnomsatssouin En-nis:
fplzu=halpe=iiitfuiing-tosprsosmii-fa el asint-u=t=t i rstpnnani-sng-nibaedob
entivativmaitichiy=bindossestion==holorasinitintings e vreplasireprvcisamununoeing
iyl harad 2l B atimimu i G l=t= o e ne e n 25t =-zi=-pin -0 -a-tnis
awnrteatnlomunl=mid=tamboitarzeilnprostifenas dr=iformiimeosaingeio-pusts i
sibsligd i ontet nd {2 =thsanmuntivoshoycdes [wHio=lo poisos=nsssrintion=fsteasmiueis)
leutngelever li=tept=hieo i Ga=Redions=tudweh bk thesoaive
L ARl 2 AT e ozt bl [Oet S R TN 2Ty -t bt B he
unisinvnasiapliavwidadoaiond=nid-presant-evidapeeui-be=hairingambiSphnt-the-omt
tumberafyetistonnidianinamlciermimntione i leerceitive-boarkamilio-honrngdonerii
shwpusbdlitephliamneindsenessessgz pareelnumbarealalmit-borato it Tt s
f.-l'slhu.\u1mrr.-ﬁllim%?mlur:-:-uulimblﬂblmnmm\-'udrsénssouiztlit\ﬂ:ig:rph]|lirud-[i::ﬂl'i'ur—-u=ru]m_u1|uml
plansia=h-ienit=z-pwier=slie-gavozsts aust=the ol iga e dhessgouiation=anid-asunitss-awnor
y=nueapiestelt-apiront=jHupntenivdi-halia-hosfirmd oo raesn o istti==th
denynEnduneptoft-givilienm-pntoeiepaatdpenbliznisneRimr=stion-t-auhorkzys
tbmszointon-Tsalinrget g ni 1o vEd g s o Bnatsme el =S sermmymenkplan
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Assembly Amendment No. 777 to Senale BHI Na. 280 Firsl Reprinl Pnge 3

i T B broreh A G Joranys-esty-neuend-bostienssacintian-iibvemplyingawitl
thertguirnizulietionat:

—Soatinn - MiE-hill-roipiecs-the-sulbsetinn-pabor-tl=hiemumessaasaaidon-
pestidepi-rdminiimiivsproesste=swiiolguniEs-swiernnsinieskepnsidnealiizming
—=HorHattr=0= = =l Hretizm el ainesegmmeiine=frreolssnresdy=in nomiens
nzspaintivnesteriond-prihiihit-ila-nssveiiivn-Fonefraelosingnegilelorn-fiiEs e
B T TR S T R ey R T T e b T ER et R I R =t P TS T
ussessmenlsratilding-agechurution-amd-uasinforesteelinpesdindiapugsonte i sp-didly
wf-zeloctine- he-nsrssmun == o008 anannre-or—vate td eI rihs—n - Tmasmomne.
sehiuhesrr-inleggmtegtint=hle i spprevidusintBaunitsastineasena-sunpiadlunEiogso
Tosoul mareeHhsnil-g-phonsvmorpesoelulion-dssubjsaieasd ghiarodamprinelnrehe
skl pwiar-tdndursautipn=ld-lrerattmptiz nnmnint-mbsldneludesseenneneanropay
inxnsapniilnlivetn=lforcolusnneinle=n nilaharodwmMisb purfinbla=R2 0= ndoeszotien=Hy
Hushetiswniitrnntzs-gideprevided-by=ihumsswiEarsseintintue e rerenvondusting
Hoiruologuro-sibe-ninzepravid et osa it leriglit-n Erdumpiion,
—Saatian-Fol-dhishil-prelibiaunasaoeie an-drone o MsmsdoampEanE P an=Fo e
Utlite=ssv b=t HithsSa Rt o pr sz oo plem=pig e fesoivod=Fema
WS it it et asmentspa noliHng-tiie-ol Brpes~aastzas Feallvcting—und
inturstemowail-by=flie-unils-wer-lifarostfi-gasmoni=isenniods i = e e-Teiwoin
t‘.-llli;'.;luir:-1\~u\W:I-I)yrﬂ:m|uii-'=:-mu|1m=,-l|u||.‘5ﬁ-ﬂm-m| lé_'-q.l\\tfmrqlimuis-nrdiRbrdu|-lmpliumimw4:
thaspismank] Genernliv, The sseacistion’s Wee fe one_prine 1noo sl securily interest og
the woit_peeortfud belnre e dute s which the aoemsl sooashe o e ey foeeed lecunne
delinguend. owever, the assochelion®s lieo s peioe to the Gese sveanrice fpleress nn g
HHI fo e exlent ol ceriain wainienawee amd abavesseen? e rres nod o cerinio smooe of
sssexshrertty S connmm exneises, The portiee of (he ussoedation’s fien Hne i orur m
1he s seepriny fueeest o e Buil i conptinnly releceed 1o as fhte “supeisorineio
Lo, ™ (VRS FEOITLO) Badsting daw aptharizes the aysociiing o forecioge 85 Hep by sule
wited nresecibes e proeedures o Sich s nreclosure, NGBS 1163116211631 ERE

This BElF vevises provisoons poveeniuge Wi sespckifoe’s livh on o aofl eoed e
Furvelnsure ol she associution®s len. Seetion BE o iy Dill peovides thal the ugsoginton
thyes gnt leave g priorfly [len over tlee ficst seeurine indeeest when the sssoelstme
Inrecloses it ety i, Hee forvednynee of Ure sissaeistion”s Hea daes dal exlissnisle
e Ticst seeariby inrerese an the nodl. oweves, oinder sectinn 7 o this Bill iV e holdey
ol ghe exr secority interest Seceelnses o g wnit_ glre pssoedatinon bos o lien up the nuil
whith ix_prier o the fest seearily intervest. This pforite How consives ol e otsmends
Ieluded in ibe “spoer-priseity Jien™ ooder extsting love aud the costs of enllvedne thy
fssessotenis incharded in {lie “supeceprvipeity Hen” goless e foderal regulations ndoped
Ly thie Fedepnt dlome oy dociesee Corparngiog, the Fodesat Muotfon! M epogse
Assucintinng e Lbe Tepnetment of Veterais ATirs ceouive o shocter pecdad ol orforiiy
o5 prodedbil ile inchesdue of eolfeeiien costs in the “super=peiocity Tive.™ Seetbme 7 gl
Yieeire thoe spmsnean of e emig ol coffectbnr eluebel In rle tos gopon (fe Hievedgee of
the Tipse securliy inleees).

Llaeehiy- sweting 8 of this bill, the nsrovia b suy gal Geeeebose Tis Hen Dy sode Tased oy
o rallecline vests. Sectien 2 of lis DEE regoires shal cevirde ootlee ol ihe
Freelnsyre nf (he ngovintions Hen be peovided by eectifisd o pepistered mdl, votuen
reevipnd vepubsted, rather g by Oesi-elass pinil

Sertiwg 3 of Hs bill: (1] seis el the ardee in_selileh wn assoacintinn ntas) anale o
Jatvanenr e iy o uniCs ewnecwho i delingoeed i e poviseel ol ngsessigents, anbess
a_emfrsel hetwee Hae essoedsdon aned the onit’s swoer peovides othernises nnl §3)
araltihits ife ussociiting or lts poen) feont relusiog f necent o partin navisead Fow s
ani's pwater or axy Inkler ol Oest seenrite Tnlecest encetnherine gie nterose of the
1irF pavier huease he wisoint Tepslereed 1 less chng e sinmniar awed,

Sectlup [1 of this bill surfmebaes 0 unit’s owner o tne autimdzed aeenl of & anic's
mvseee oy prenest fenm the asgieintisg b fistenend eoberenizg ceviin pmonnis swed
Hie sssneintion, Vinder seclfon | the sissovitiion gy ehinree eerlain fovs five seels o
statemend. Seetion L also revises neavisions jaocepning the vesibe mreksuse oroeided tha
prspeetive prccleeser ol o undt ool porloeizes the assewektien e ehyeme o Tee foe
providing in clevironic fhraunt ceetnin deeanents velated to ilie resale pocluee,
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Assembly Amendment Wo. 777 (o Senale Bill No. 280 FirsL Reprink Page 4

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED Iy
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Deloete existing sections I through 11 af this bill and repiice with the following
new sections T theoogh 113

Seefinn L Chuplor 116 of NRS Is herebv suended by sebdBne therotn the
provisions set forth ns seetions 2 awd 3 uf this act.

Seen 3. by wsedd B thls sociion il NRS T3 0 163816, fnclusive,
annf yeetingy 3 of this gel ifesy the eouroxt prheewise vegmives, st secoritt'
arerese™ prenny o ficyr yocnvine furerest deseeiled in parasroph () of subyociime 2
of NRS T16.531 14,

See 3, L Unlesy the purties aprey othenvive, the associoifon shafl applp
rare snens perif By o dende 'y envnrer w5 deflaguens in ieine axsessiients i e
ol prider;
fa)_Eipneie] pasossnis:
th] Charnes far lute pincnient of gsxessnienisy .
fel Coxty of colleeting_post e ossesvpnenry elorvsed to the goid's o
preesnanat iy MRS 1163183732 wnid

ff} A mher nomnid e, chaeses, fings,  oenpities, - eosts of eolleciing
chroed fo g i’y ewger preseans (g MRS 116 3HI IS, ineerest i fure charoes,

3. The axxucimion prify avent siell nof rednse fo qeesn o aorifad povinens

frenint ot wadt's_ogier ar gne feldder of o fiest Secupiic interest guetindiering the
frrerest uf ehe pepit's aaneer Deentese the grennd teodered iy fesy s thae sty
e, ’

See. o, NRS 116123 is hereby wmpnded te read as filows:

116.1203 1. Excepl as othcrwise pravided in subseetions 2 und 3, if a
planned community copiting oo mare than 12 units and 15 nm subject to any
devetopmental rights, it is subjeet anly to NRS 16,1108 and 116.1107 vnless the
declarntion providis that this eneire chopler is applicable.

2, The provisions of MRS ]16.12065 and Lhe definilions sel fosife in NRS
116.005 1o [16.093, inclusive, o the extenl that the definilions aré necessary 1o
construe any of thoss provisions, wpply to a residenlial planmed community
eontaining more than 6 units.

3. Except for NRS IGO0, 11631043, 11631046 ond F1G.3113E, the
provisions of NRS 1163101 1o 116,330, Inclusive, gud xectiuns 2 atid 3 af iy ster
and the definitions sel farll in NRS §16.005 to 116.0935, inclusive, o the extent (hat
such definitions are accessary in construing any of those provisions, apply (o a
residential plonned communily conlaining more thin 6 vnits,

See. 30 NRS LG 12875 is hervhy amendwd do yesd ns Tollows:

116,12073 1. The provisions of this chapler da not opply lo n nonrcsidential
condominium exeept {g the extent that the declaration lor the norresideatial
eondominium provides that:

{a) This entire chapter applics to the condominiin:

(b} Only the provisivos of NRS 116.001 to 116.212%, iachusive, and TI6316
to 116.31188, inclusive, goed seetfes 3 and 3 of thix act apply to Yie condominium;
or

{c) Only the provisions ol MRS 1163116 1o 11631 L6Y; tnclusive, und sectinns
2 tinred 3 of vlilv e pply to the coudominium,

2. IF thiy catire chopter applies te o nonecsidentinl condominium, the
declarulion muy alse requice, subjeet ta NRS 1161113, that:
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{a) MNotwithzsionding NRE 116,3103, uny monagement, maintenunce opznnions
or crployment caplmed, [case of recrestionel o parking ereos or (cilitics ond any
other contract or feose between the associution and a declarant or an alfilfaie of a
dul:t!umm continues in fovee alter the declarant turns over conieol of the gssaciotlion;
i

(B} Motwithsiondinp WRS 16,1104 apd subsection 3 of MRS EIG3I,
purehinsers of unils must execiie proxies, pewers of altarncy or similar devices in
favar ol the declarant reparding particular mutiers ennnernted in those nstruments.

See ¢, MRS 11631068 is hevsby amended 1o rend ps [l ows:

11631068 1. Excepl as othenwise provided it subsection 3, aa associolion
shnll deliver any nolice requined 1o be given by the pssoeistion under this chapter to
any mailing or electronic mail address o vnit’s owner desipooics. Execpl os
otherwise provided In subscotion 3, il o ynit®s owner has not desipnated n mailing
or clecirenic mail addross to whicl a notice must be delivered, e associstion may
defiver notices by:

() Haod defivery lo cach unit™s pwaer;

(B} Hand delivery, United Sizles mail, postage paid, o commercially
reasunable delivery service to the muiling address of each vaig;

(c} Elecironic means, i the unil’s owner s phven the association an elestronic
maii address; or

(d) Any ather metod reggsonably colenliicd ta provide natice to the wnit's
OWRET.

3. The incllecliveness of a good faith effort to defiver notice by an aothorized
menas does not invalidite actien tiken ol or without o meeting.

3. The provisions of Ihis s¢clion do not apply:

(=) To o notice nquired 10 be given purstant o NRS 1163116 10 11631165,
inclusive dsb o andd seetinns 2 ol 3 of thiv aet: or

(b) Il uny other provision of s chapler specifies the manaer in which a notice
must be given by an associntion.

See. 7. NRSTIG3016 s hereby nmoendud to rend a5 (olows:

3163116 . Theassectation hos o lien en a unil for any construction peaalty
thal 15 imposcd updinst the wnil’s owner pursuant lo MRS 116.310305, my
assessiment [ovied aguinst that uait or any Rnes imposed opainst e unit’s owner
fram he time e constraction penolty, assessinent or fine becomes due, Unless Hie
deelaration otherwise provides, any penaltics, {tes, chorges, late chnrges, fines and
fnterest clerped pusuant (o pargraphs G) (o (a), inclusive, of subseetion | of WRS
1163102 are enforecnble #s gssessments wnder this seetion, IU on assessmicnl is
payuble in sinllments, the Rl amounst of the tssessment is @ licn tom the lime the
[irst tnstallment thereel hecomes due.

2. A lics under this section is prior (o oft oer Iens and encumbronces on a

upit except;

{#) Liens and cncumbrances recorded before the recordation of thie declomtion
wnd, i n coopenilive, Fens pnd cacumbrances which the associalion creales,
assuints ar takes subjeet to;

(b} A sl security fnlerest an the enit recorded before the date on which the
assessment sosght to be enforced beceme delinquent or, in o cooptralive, the [irst
security interest encumbering only the unit's ownoer's inlerest and perficted befoce
tise dhate on which the assessnienl sought (o be enforeed becume delinguent;, and

{c} Liens for renl cstate taxes ond olbier povernmenial assessments or churges
pzninst the unit or coopemlive.
1=

3. The asseeiniivg fins o licn which is {alsef prior o {ellseoudis~inerests

duaurthed=in pnraamphelnt the first seeneine inferesi to the extent ol Jang £

R
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fe) Anve thorges ineurred by the associolion on o unil pursuant to WRS
VEGA103E2 ;and {ta-thaaexlenlkol]

i} Except ay athenvise provided i shis _paeagenply, he osscssments for
common expenscs based o Uie perndic budgel adopted By the sssorialion pursuaat
ta MRS 163113 which would have beeome due in the absence of acceleration
during the 9 months immedintely preceding Jinstitulion-sinnanotion-lc-mianea-tha
Han=unlegsatadoml-ragulntipns~odoptetlebmtha-ladoml=H ome-lom=Alacange
Farporatansemtisivderni=Nuiemi-borgnsa-Assusindon-taguire-i-slierar-paningd
wlprinniy=foriastion:} o e s sofe or forecissare Sale of the 10it e eafirce
fhre fivst yecnrin: figerest qrnd e eoases of eollecifny those asseevpines wiiely i
chursed to it nait’s oywger siesaged 0 NES T16.3105 13, T Tedera) repulsiions
adopted by the Federal FMlome Loon Morlgage Corporntion . {usf the Federl
Naliono! Mortgnae Associalion_or the Depurimens of Piterany Affhirs wauie o
shorler period of priorty For the len =} vr profibit the inelision_of eosts of
cuflpciiug in Hie feg, e poded-dusing-whieh] goamen of 1e lien pfrieh s pdor
lo Jutl-speudiinteresls=deseribadmin-pueagrpha{al] the firse secnrite fnrorgse
pursuen o i parppraplt most be delenwined in nccordance with those federul
regulations, except [hat nobwithstnnding the provisions ol the federal regulutions,
the perfod of priority Tor the licn must nol be Jess than the 6 months imimediotely:
preceding Jinatittion-ann-netisnde-unloree-the-lien:

Fembhigesibsention-dans} @ rrastee’s siale or foreeluseery sufe af e il e eafpree
He first securine buerese, The anwnnr of e casey of ealfecting fincluded iy the
fien pursnant i this prrgeenph nesy ol exeerd the ampnnis set forth in the
resnfufiony acaied by the Conynissiog prysaant o NRS [ IG.310313, exeept thit
e gy inelndod in e lien o recaver the gernl costs cliarpod fo the

pxsaciniion o o persay goliing gn heliedfiaf iine axsocigiion fo eolleet o pusy due

alfiogripn by o pees wdio i npd an officen, direcion, aeenf or affifivie of the

capunitie nnaeer of e asvoefarion _or af aa geenr of e assoecintion.
dteedudins, withoot Heitytfon, ehe cast of a froasbee s virfo sy arpniee ol peher idile
COSIN. recorline eosts, postine amd paddishing cosis, Sole eoses, mndiine coviy,
exprusy defiveny costs pod SR Irace feos, nuse uaf exeeod S581),

4. Thye pravishms of Sulyeerions 2 wnd 3 e not aflect e pejorty ol
mechontes' or materialmen’s [iens, or the priprily of Hers [or other pssessments
made by the essociation.

{8:] 3 Fire bodder of the first seearite interest or the fobder's siadocized
aeend gy estallich g ssergw geconnt. g tease geeont o othve iipiniind
ageming mr wehvaaey conrihirians for the pevmenr of pseessaents folr eonunon
wxpenses hoased ou fle perindic bideer milopred b tlie gespeiiiion puarsnaid fo
NRS TI0.3400 f the wnit's awaer tid the holder of the fise soeneite inenesr
cansenl tn the eviehlisiend of siueh nn gecount, FE snell an opecomit 7
estublisfiod, poviemy Fonr the goeonyl for gesessptuids foe conitnon oxpeises
miesr he e in peeoardustce with the spare e diutes as spnly to pavianes of
SHCh Hxsessieniy g jeie's msner, :

fi. Unless the dechernlion othenwise provides, iF twe or more associntions have
liens for assessments crenled ot any Hme on the spme property, Uiose liens bove
enual priority.

{<f 7 Recording of the declaration constitutes record notive and perfection
of the {ien. No further recordation of ony cloim of lien for assessment under this
seelion s required.

IFf & A licn for unpoid ussessments is extinpuished wnless pracecdings Lo
enlaree Lhe lien dre instituted within 3 yeurs afler the full amount UF[EE usseszments
becomus due.
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{6z 2. This scction daes nol probibit aclions fo reeover sums for which
subseciion I crentes o Hen or prohibil an ussociation from taking n dued in fiew of
[oreclosuse.

{7 £4._ A judgment or decres in #ny action broupht under this section must
include costs and reasenable aftorney™s fees far (he previiling party.

{8:] /. The ossaeintion, wpon written requesl, shull furnish o a unit's owner
a slaiemest selling forth the amounl of unppid assessments ogainst the wnit. 17 the
interest of the unit's swner is real estate or i a lien [or the unpaid yssessmeats oy
be foreclosed under MRS 116.31162 to 11631168, inclusive, Lhe stutemend must be
in recordable form. The stalement must be [umnished within 10 busiaess deys afier
receipt of Lhe rqoest and {s hinding on the association, the executive board apd
£yery Unit’s owner,

18] 12 In un cooperative, upon nonpeyment of an assessmenl on a unit, {he
unit's owner may be evicted in the same manner os provided by law in the cose of
an unlowtil boldever by 2 commeredal tenant, nnd:

{o) In o cooperative where Hie swaer's inlerest in & vail Is real eslate under
NRE 16,1103, the assncintion’s lien may be foreclosed onder MRS 11631162 1o
116.31 168, inclusive.

{0} In o coppemtive where tie owner's interest in a vait is personal property
under NRS 116.1103, Uic associalion’s lien:

(1) Moy be foreclosed as e sceurity intervst oader NS 1049100 1
1049709, inclusive; or .

{2} ITthe declamtion so provides, may be forecloged under NRS 11631162
lo 11G6.31168, Inelusive.

Mk} 43, Inun petion by an ussaeiaton (o collect pssessments or 1o foreclose
n lizn created under (his seelion, the court may uppoint a receiver to colkeet oll rents
or ather income [rom the tait alleged 1o be duc snd owing Lo o wpit's awner belore
commencement or during pendency of the aetion. The receivership is poverned by
chapler 32 of NRS. The court muy order the receiver to pay any sums held by the
receiver lo the wssoeiation during pendency of the action [0 the extent of the
associolion's comman expense: ussessments besed on @ periodie budpet ndopted by
the nssocialian pursuont o NRS 1163113,

See, 8. NRS 116.31163 §s heeehv simended Fo rend ns {nllows:

11631162 1. Excepl as ofhecwise provided in subsection 4. In o
condominium, i a pluaned commuonily, in a cooperalive where the owner's interest
in o unil s real eshste under NRS 16,8103, or in 2 eooperntive whore the owner's
inlerest in n unil is persoral properfy under WRS VE6.T103 and the declosation
provides (bt o licn mey be [oreelosed under NRS 11631162 1o 11631168,
inclusive, the sssocintion mey foreelose s en by sale afler all of the fwilowing
ercur:

(1) The associafion has meiled by ceslificd or repisicred mnil, relom mmeetpt
requested, to the unlt's owaer or his or hioe successor T fnleresl, ab his or her
address, IF knowa, oad 2l Lhe address ol the pniy 2 notice of delinquent nssessment
whiclh sinfes the amount of the assessments ond other sums wlich are due in
accordanee with subseetion [ of MRS 1163116, v deserlplion of the unit agrinst
which e lien is imposed and the numne of the record owaer of the voit

(b) Mot less i 30 days afier mailing tie aolice of delinquent asscssment
pursutnt to poragraph {n), the ossociation or etfrer person condueling the sl has
executed and cansed to be recorded, with tie connty recorder of the counly in
which the common-inletest communily o ooy part of it 15 siluated, o notice of
default and election to sell the unit to sutisfy the lien which must contain lhe swne
informalion us the nolice of delinguest ssscssment @nd whicl must also cumply
with the following:
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{1) Boscribe the deficiency in payment.

(2) State the name ond address of the person authorized by the ossociation
to enforee the lien by sule,

{3} Contain, in 14-point bold Lype, fic following warming:

WARNING! IF YOU FAIL TO PAY THE AMOUNT SPECIFIED [N
THHS NOTICE, YOU COULD LOSE YOUR HOME, EVEN IF THE
AMOUNT IS [N DISPUTE! :

{£} The wnit’s owner ar his or ber suecessor in inlerest hus foited o mty the
omounl of the lien, incfuding costs, fees und cxpenses incident Le il enforcement,
for 90 doys following the recording of the noiice of defpull and clection to seil,

2. The notice of defooll and election o sell must be signed by the person
designaled in the declomlion or by the association for {wt purpase ar, iFno once is
designated, by the president ol the associotion.

3. The period of 90 days beping an the first doy following:

{a) The doale an which the notice ol defull is recorded; or

(b} The dnte on which 2 copy of the natice of defunlt is maiied by cortified or
registered snail, retorn receipl requested, ta the ogit'’s owner or bls or her suceessor
in interesL ot his ar hor address, iFkoaown, and sl the sddress of the unit,
= whichever date aceurs later.

4, Theussocintion may not Joreclose a lizn by sale based on Juf 2

fo} The vosts of eollociine churmed In g nit's_pwser ppcsigny T NS
0310313,

(b1 -1 Tine or penalty for o violation of Uie goveming documents of the
nssociation unless:

{todf £I} The violalion poses oo imminent threat of causing a subsiantind
adverse effect on the heatth, safely or wellore of the unils® owners or residenls of
the commaon-interest community: or

{ihit 2} The penelty 15 imposced Jor Milure to ndhere to o schedule requiced
pursbant 1o NS 116310303,

Ser. B MRS 116311635 is hereby nmended to vend as Tultows:

116311635 1. The ussociefion or olbcr porson conductine the sule shall
alun, after the expimtion of the 90 days snd hefore selling the unit:

{1} Give notice of Hie time and pliee of the sale In (e moanner and Tor u time
not less than st required by law for the sale of real property bpon execution,
cxcept that in lew af following the procedurs [or serviee on a judpment debtor
pursuant 1o NRS 21,130, serviee mus! be ninde o the uni’s owner os Toflows:

{1} A copy of the notice of sale musl be.mailed, on or before 1he date of
tirst publication or posting, by centified or regislered mail, relym roeipt reguested,
ta e unit™s-owner or Nis or her seecessor in fateres! at bis or her address, i known,
and (o tho add ress of iz unity and

(2) A copy of the noetice of snle must be served, on or before e date of

_ first publication or pusting, in the mumncr scl forth In subscetion 2; and

{1} Mall, on or bofore the dule of first publication or posling, n copy of the

notice by (rstalns-maily certfTed or reslsered mail, vegiien ceceipl reanested, o

(1} Encly persom entitled to receive u cupy of the notice of defoull and
eleetion (o self nobice under NS 11631 163;

(2) The hplder af a recorded secerity interest or the puselinser ol the wnit, &
either of them has notilied the assoeintion, before the mulling of the notice of sale.
ol the cxistence ol ihe sceurily interest, lense or contrael ol sule, os appliesble; and

(3) T Ombudsmar.

[ ]
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2. In addition lo the requirements sct {orth in subsection I, = copy of the
natice of sale must be scrved;

(a) By =z person who is 18 venrs of nge or older and wha is not a parly o or
intecesied in the sule by persenully defivering o copy of the notice of sale 1o o
occupant of the unit who is of suileble nge; or

(b) By posting & copy ol the nolice of sle fn a conspitnous place on the unil

3. Any copy of the nalize of sule required lo be served pursusnt 1o this section
must includs:

J {n) The amount recessary Lo salisfy the licn as ol the date of the propased sule;
o
{b) The fallowing waming [n 14-point bold 1ype:

WARNING! A SALE OF YOUR PROPERTY IS IMMINENT] UNLESS
YOU PAY THE AMOUNT SPECIFIED IN TS NOTICE BEFORE THE
SALE DATE, YOU COULD LOSE YOUR HOME, EVEM IF THE
AROUNT IS TN DISPUTE. YOU MUST ACT BEFORE THE SALE
DATE. [F YOU BAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE CALL (mimc nnd
tclephone number of the conlact peeson for the nssociation). [F YOU NEGD
ASSISTANCE, PLEASE CALL THE FORECLOSURE SECTION OF
THE OMBUDSMAN'S OFFICE. NEVADA REAL ESTATE DIVISION,
AT (oll-free  felcphone  number  designnted Dy the  Division)
IMMEDIATELY.

4. Proal of service of noy copy of the notice of sale required (o be served
pursuont fa s sectfon must consist of: i
(1) A contilicaie of mniling which evidences thal Lhe notice wis mniled Uieough
the United Stales Poslal Senvies; or
{b) An olTtdnvit of service sigaed by the person who served the sotiee staling:
(13 The lime of serviee, rinnner of service and location al*service; and
{2} The oome of ihe person served or, if the nolice wos nol served on o
peesan, a deserptivn of the loration where he notice was posted an the unit.
See, JR. NRS [16.3] 104 s Berely amendedd to read as follows:
1i631184 [ The sole must be conducled in lhe county n which the
common-interest corminuaity er pod of it is situnted, and may be conduoeted by the
association, ils sgent or ntlocnty, or & litle insorance company or cscrow agent

* licensed lo do business fn this Slate, cxeept thal the sale moy be maode il the ofTice

al’ the associntlon iF the natice of Lhe sale so provided, whether tie unil is Jocaled
withic the same county us the office of the sssocimtion or pot. The wssociution or
allier persan contfueting the sale may from lime (o time postpone the sale by such
advertisenent and potice os L considers reasonable or, without [oriher
adverlisement or retice, by procfomution made 1o the persons assembled at the time
and place previously sel nnd advertised {or the sale.

2. Qn the day of sale originolly sdvertised or ta which (ke sale s pasiponed,
al the dime and place spectfied in the notice or postporement, the persan conducting
the sple may sell the unil ot public avction Lo ihke hiphest cush bidder. Unless
olhervise provided in the declaration or by apreement, the sssocintion may
purehnse the unit ond hold, lfense, morigape or convey it The wssociution mny
purchase by a eredit bid up o the amount of the vnpaid assessments znd any
nermitted costs, fees and expenses incident to the enforcemenl of its lien.

3. Aller the sole, the person conducling the snie shall:

{n) Muke, exccute end, alier payment is made, deliver 1o the perchaser, or his
ar her yuccessor of assign, a deed without warronty which conveys to the praotes olf
title of the unil’s owner to the unit;
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{b} Deliver u copy of the deed to the Ombudsman within 30 dnys ofler the deed
{5 delivered to the parehaser, or his or her suceessor or assigh; and
g {c} Apply the proceeds of the sale (or the following pueposes in Lbe followine
orderz

1) The reasonabile expenses ol sale;

(2} The reasopable expenses of securing possession before sale. hiolding,
maininining. end preparing he uril [or sale, including poyment of taxes and other
governmental charpes, pramivms on lneard ond Habifity insoeance, ond, w0 the
extent pravided far by the decleralion, rensonable sttoracy®s ltes and ollier lepul
expenses incurred by the assocfalfon;

(3) Sutisfoction of Lhe assovialion’s licn;

{4) Satisfaction in the order of priority of any subordinate claim ol necord:

{5} Remillanece ol sny cxcess 0 tho unit's owner.
o, The fareclosure be vafe of the uyeaciation's es dues s extinsiish e

riziis of the frlder of the fese seenvice oot

Soe. If, NRS HGA 0% iy Bereby amendoed {o cend as fullows:

1164109 1. Except In e casc of a sale in whieh delivery uf a public
offering siptemnent is required, or unless exempt under subiseclion 2 of NRS
[16.4101, o uni’s gwaer ar his or her authosized ppent shafl, ot the expense of the
unil’s owner, fumish {o a porchaser noresle peckope contuining all of the
following:

(a) A copy of the declarntion, olher than agy pluts, the Dyfuws, the roes or
?:gﬁufulinns ol the nssocfation and the information steement roquired by MRS

16.41093.

{b) -A siplerent from lhe sssocintion selting forth the amount of the montlity
pssessment {or common cxpenses nnd any nnpnis obligation o uny kind, including,
wilhout limilotior, menrgement fees, teonsfer lees, fincs, penallies, inleres,
colicetion cosls, foreelosure foes mnd ollorey’s fees currently doe from the selling
unil’s pwaer. JEhe-sument=romningfzotive=for=tha~pariadepeaitiod=in=te
slatoment=whtah-rs-rarhadess-ian=la=-warking-tins-ram-tho-dato-efdelivan
Dy=lhinaso plutiorteie-nnidsowhesolhiFyehoagent~tHahsnssoaindorbasomes
nVare=g F-gi=arar-itt=tha=slneni=durine-the-padod=-in-tdiish-the-slniamant=is
elhieativa-but-belpre-thevansummollon--thi-rsplashenssaointion-mistdativern
el nzamanl~sitanisn=la=tha=units-swnapsoehis-ar=loeaneat-and=ablofi-nn
uekneswledaiont=i=1eeithins=bp-tha=asifs-ganepeer-liis=o=ha=agenl=bolore-ot
vensuinmatiehednles-theupit-s-swnar-orhiz-oadisenzan-roveives=iereplisement
sl ienniEsavhamnei isaehaeaan-nusmlve pnstho-guoirmussniihe
informmionserlsinisastninanprovidaddns lionssooiadfon-for ho-rsuled

(c} A copy of the current operating budgel ol the nssaciution and eurrent yepr-
lo-tlote [inuncin! stetement for the association, whickh must inclode 8 semmany of
the seserves of the assorintion regulred by MRS 11631132 and which must include,
without Hmitntion, 1 summery of the informuotion deseribed iy paragmophs () to (2,
inclusive. of subscelion 3 of NRS 116311572,

{d) A slatement of any unsatisfed judpments or pending Tepal netions upainst
the sssociation and L stitos of uny perding lepal actions reluting to Ui commor-
interest communily of which (he unil’s ownaer hos aclual knowledge,

(¢} A stutement of any transfer fees, wansaelion fees of any olher feey
associated with the resale of & unit.

(1 In addition to any other document, u statemeat deseribing afl corrent nnd
expeeied Jees or elarpes for each onil including, without 1imitstion, associalion
fees, fines, asscssmenls, lale charges or pensliies, interest rates on delfaguem
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assessmends, additfonal costs for cotlecting, past due Nnes ond dmarpes for opening
or elosing any e lor each unit.

2. The purchaser may, by wrilten nolice, cancel the contrac] ol purchuse natif
midnight of the G0h eolendor doy following the date of receipt of the resufe
package described in subsectfon [, and ihe vontrael for purchase must contain o
provision o that effect 15 (he purchoser elecls o ceneet » tontmel pursuant <o this
subsection, the purchaser must hond deliver the notice of cancellittion to (he unjt’s
owner or his or hier authorized sgent or mail the nofice of coneeligtion by prepuid
United States mail to the undt's owner or his er her nulhorized vpent. Conceliation is
without penalty, and all payments made by the porchaser belore cancellation must
be refunded promplly. 1T (he purchiser bas accepled s conveyance of the unil, the
purchager is not eatitled lo;

{n} Canecel e conlracl parsuent in this subseelion; or

(1) Dumopes, rescission or other reliel bosed solely on the ground thol Lhe
unit’s owner or his or her asthorzed agent fajled to furaieh the resele pockage, or
any portion thereof, us required by this scetion.

3. Within 10 days uRer receipt of o weltlen requesi by a oait’s owaer or bis or
ker authorfzed agent, the sassociation shall [umish all of the following i the unil's
owner or 115 or her authorzed agent for tnelusion in the resale packnge:

(e) Copies of the documents required persurnl lo parngrephs (2) and () of
subseelion 1; and

(b} A cedificele containing the infommation necessary {o annble tie unit's
ownes {o comply with pargraphs (B), {d), (e} and ([} ol subsection 1.

4. I the nssocintion fumishes the decoments ond certificate pursuont (o
subseetion 3:

{a) The unit’s owner or his or her awthorized agent shall inchude the documen
and certifivate in e resple pnckape provided o the purchazer, and neilber the
uit’s owner noe Ms or her authorized ngent is fable 1o (he purchoser {or any
eirencous information provided by the associnlion and fncluded in e documents
nnd certificale. ;

(b) The sssaciatian may charge the unil’s owner a reasonable {ie o cover the
cost of preparing the cerlificale Turnished pursuant [o subsection 3, Secl a fec must
be bused an the aclund cost Ue associatiun incurs o i) the requirsments of sis
seetion in preparing {he eertificnte. The Commission shoH udopt cepolations
eslablishing Whe maximum wmount of the fee that an associntion mny charge lor
preparing the cectificete,

(c) The other documents furnished poesunnt 1o subscetion 3 must be provided
in clectranis Formnt {u=ac-atbhmize] (o the vait's owner, Jor-i6} e pxsoviation mm:
elrpy thy wnit's awaer ¢ fee. nor fo exeeed 520 o provide seelt thacaments fn
elegtranic fivomg, I he assoeinlion Is vaohle lo pravide such documents In
eicctronic formal the sssocinlion maoy charze e unil’s owner a reasonsble fec, nat
to exceed 23 eenls per prge Tor Wie first 10 pages, and [0 cenls per pege thierenficy,
lo cover tit cost of capying.

(¢} Except foc ie fees ollowed pursuant to ponmgraphs (b} ond (o), the
ussocintion may not elarpe the wvpil’s owner any other fees for prepering or
furnishing the documents and eertificnle pursuan! to subsection 3.

5. Meither a purchaser nor the purchaser's interest in & unil is linble lor any
unpaid assessment pr Jee greater than the amount sel Torlb in e documents opd

certificate prepared by the ossocintion. [ the ossocintion fuils lo Tumish die -

dovuments aod certificale within the 10 days allewed by (his section, he purchaser
is nol liable {or the delingeent assessment.

6. Upan the request of ¢ unit™s owner or his or hee ousthorized agent, or upon
the request of o purthaser to whom the unil’s owner kes provided o resnle packoge
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Senate Bill No. 280-Senator IKihuen
CHAPTER..........

AN ACT relating to comumon-inierest communities; autharizing the
establishment of an impound accaunt for the payment of
assessiments under cerfain eircumstances; revising provisions
governing the collection of past due Tinancial obligations
owed to an associatian; revising provisions governing the
foreclosure of an association’s lien by sale; requiring an
nssociation to provide a statement conceming ceitain
amoustts due to the association under cerfain eircumstances;
authorizing an “association to charpe a Tee for such a
statement; and providing other matlers properly ralating
{hereta,

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Under existing law, @ homeowners® assccintion hns a llen on & unit for cerlzin
amounls due to the assoviation. (NRS [16.3116) Existing Iuw auilorizes the
associnlion 1o foreslose fts lien by solc and prescribes the procedures for such o
[oreclosure, (MRS 116,31162-116.31164)

Snetfon 7 of this bill authorizes the establishment of an impound nccoent for
advanee coniributions for the miyoent of assessments. Under seelion 8 of this bill,
aal earlier than 60 dovs afer o unit's owner becomes dellaquent on o payment
owed 1o the associotion and belbre the assoriation mnlls @ ndtice of delinquent
assessment or takes ony other action (o colicel o prst due obligation, the asseciation
must maeli 1 otice to the unit's owner setling, forth the ees that may be clerged 0T
the unit*s owner foils to pry the post due abligation, a proposed repayment plan and
terain informslion conceming the procedars for requesting & hearing before the
exeeative board.

Section 17 of this bill authonzes a unit’s owner, the outhorized apent of a unit’s
ewner or the holder of & sceurity interest on the unil to request from the associstion
o stetement concorning eerlin amornts owed to the assoetation. Under section 11,
the usssocintion moy chorpe codain fees for such o slulemenl. Section !E also
revises provisions govemning (e resale package provided to a prospective purchaser
of o upit and suthorizes the assochation {o clwrgs u fee for providing in cioctronic
format cennin documents refoled Lo the resule pockape.

EXPLANATION ~ Kaiter indeicel Turdies Is nots mriics Hetwesn Bseeliets Jsnsdelsl4at=0al | 15 matestslia beomlned.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SEMATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Sections 1-6. (Deleted by amendment.)

Bee. 7. NRS 1163116 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1163116 1. The association has a lien on & uni for any
construction penally hat i5 imposed agninst the unif®s owner
purstant to MRS 116310305, any assessment levied against that
unit or any fines imposed ngpinst the unit’s owner front' the time the

VIR .
X1 1 .

a‘ i,
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construction penalty, assessment or fine becomes due. Unless the
declaration otherwise provides, any penalies, fees, charges, late
charges, fines and interest charped pursuant to paragraphs §) to (n),

inclusive, of subsection 1 of NRS 116.3102 ae enforceable as’

assessments under this section. I an assessment is payable in
installments, the full amount of the assessment is a lien from the
time the first instaliment thereof becomes due.

2. A lien under this ‘section is prior lo all other liens and
encumbrances on a unit except:

(a) Liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordaticn of
the declaration and, in a cooperative, liens and encumbrances which
the assoectaticn creates, assumes or lalees subject to;

(b} A first securily imterest on the unit recorded before the date
on which the assessmien! sought to be enforced hecame delinquent
ar, in & cooperative, the first securlty inferest encumbering anly lhe
unit’s owner’s inierest and perfecied before the daie an which (he
assessment sought to be enforced bzcame delinquent; and

(c) Liens for real estate taxes and other povemmental

assessments or charges against the unit or cooperative.
- The lien is also prior to all securily interests described in
paragraph (b) to the extent of any charges incurred by the
association on a unit pursuant to NRS 116.310312 and to the extent
of the assessments for common expenses based on the periodic
budget adopted by the associalian pursuant to MRS 116.3115 which
would have become due in the absence of acceleration during the 9
maonths immediately preceding institution of an aclion to enforce the
lien, unless federal regulations adopted by the Federal Home Loan
Martgage Corporation of the Federal WMational Mortgape
Association tequire a shorler period of priovity for ihe lien. If federal
regulations adopted by #he Federal Home Loan Mortpage
Caorporation or the Federal National Merlgage Association require 2
shorter period of priovity for the lien, the period during whicl the
lien is priar to all security interests described in pacagraph {b) must
be determined in accordance with those Tederal regulations, except
that notwithstanding (he provisions of the federal regulations, the
period of priority for the lien must not be less than the § months
- mmmedjately preceding institution of an aclion o enforce the lien,
This subseclion does not affect the priority of mechanics® or
malerialmen’s liens, ar the priovily of liens for other assessinents
made by the association.

3. The hoelder of the secnrity interesi deserihed in paragraph
() of subsectinn 2 or e older’s apthoriced agent gy esteblish
aa escrow aecetil, Inwg frast aceaun? or ofler imponnd geconnt

R
g
]
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Jor wdvanee comribniions for the papmient of ussesswmenis for
carman expensey based on the perivdic budger odopred iy dhe
associafion pursuant o NRS 1163715 if the nnic’s onmer aud the
frefder of that secarity intergst consent (o the estabiishment of
suelr i qeeonidt, If suelr an poconni i estabfislred, payments from
the aeepunt fur qssessments for commuon expenses st be hode
in wecordunee with the sane due dates as apple o pnanenrs af
el axsessients by o wieit's ;moner.,

4. Unless the declaration otherwise pravides, if fwo or more
associations have liens Tor assessments created at any time on the
same property, those liens have equal priority.

4 5. Recording of the decloration constitutes record notiee
and perfection of the lien. No further recordation of any claim of
lien for assessment under this section is requirad.

= 6. A lien for unpaid assessments is extinguished unless
proceedings to enfarce the lien are institoled within 3 years afier the
full amount of the assessments becomes due,

45+ 7. This zection does not prohibit actions to recover sums
for which subsection 1 creates g lien or prahibit an association from
taking a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

{4} 8 A judgment or decree in any action brought under this
section must inclide costs and reasonable attorney’s fees for the
prevailing party.

{8: #. The association, vpon writlen request, shail furnish to a
unit’s owner a statement setting forth the amount of unpaid
assessinents against the unit. If the interest of the unit's owner is real
estate or if a lien for the unpaid assessments may be foreclosed
under NRS 11631162 to 116.31168, inclusive. the statement must
be in recordable form. The stalement must be furnished within 10
business days aRer receipt of the request and is binding on the
association, the executive board and every unit’s owner.

a4 f{.  In a cooperative, upon nonpayment of an assessment
on @ uait, the unil’s owner may be evicted in the same manner as
provided by law in the case of an unlawful heldover by a
coinmercial teqant, and:

{a) In a cooperative where the owner's interest in a unil is real
estafe under NRS 116.1103, the association’s lien may be foreclosed
under NRS 116.31162 to [16.31168. inclusive.

{b) Tn a cooperative where the owner’s interest in a unit is
personal property under NRS 116.1105, the association’s lien:

{1} May he foreclosed as a security nteresi under MRS
10491061 to 1049709, inclusive; or
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(2) I the declaration so provides, may be foreclosed under
NRS 11631162 o 1]6.31168, inclusive.

JH<} F/. In an action Dy an association lo collect assessments
or to foreclose & lien created under this section, the court may
appoint a receiver to collect all rents or other income from the unit
alleged to be due and owing to a umit’'s owner before
cornmencemert or during pendency of the action, The receivership
is governed by chapter 32 of NRS. The courl may order ihe receiver
o pay any sums held by the receiver to the associntion during
pendency of the action to the extent of the associalion’s common
expense assesyments based on a periodic budgel adopted by the
association pursuant o NRS 116.3115.

See. 8. NRS 116.31162 is hereby amended 1o read as follows:

116.31162 [. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 44}
5, in a condominivm, in a planned community, in a coaperative
where the owner's interest in & unit @5 real estate under NRS
116.1105, or in a cooperative where the owner’s interest in a unit is
personal property under NRS 116.1105 and the declaration provides
that a {iert may be Toreclosed under NRS 116.31162 to 116.311468,
inclusive, the nssociation may fareclose its lien by sale efter all of
the following accur:

- {a) The associalion has mailed by cerlified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, to the unit’s owner or his ar har successor
in tnterest, at his or her address, if known, and at the nddress of the
unil, a notice of delinquient assessment which states the armount of
the azsessments and other sums which are due in accordance with
subsection 1 of NRS 1163116, a description of the unit apainst
which the Hen is imposed and the name of the record owner of the
uni.

(b) Mot less than 30 days after mailing the notice of delinquent
assessment pursuant to paragraph (a), the association or alher person
conducting the sale has executed and caused to be recorded, with the
county recaorder of the county in which the comimon-interest
cominunity or any pmt of it is situated, a nolice of default and
election ta sell the unit lo satisfy Lhe lien which most contain the
same fnformation as the notice of delinguent assessment and which
musl afso comply with the following:

{1} Describe the deficiency in payment.
- (2} State the name and address of the persan authorized by
the association to enfbree the lien by sale.
(3) Contain, in 14-point bold iype, the following warning:
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WARNING! IF YOU FAIL TO PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED IN THIS NOTICE. YOU COULD LOSE YQUR
HOME, EVEN IF THE AMOUNT IS [N DISPUTE!

(c} The unit’s owner or s or her successor in interest has faited
to pay the amount of the lien. including costs, fees and expenses
incident to its erforcement, Tor 90 deys following the recording of
the notice of default and election to sell.

2. The notice of default and election to sell must be signed by
the person designated in the declaration or by the association for that
purpose or, If no one is designated, by the president of the
association,

3. The period of 90 days begins on the first day followling:

{n) The date on which the notice of default is recarded; ar

(1) The date on which a copy of the notice of default is mailed
by cerified or registered mail, return receipt requested, lo the unit’s
awrner of his or her successer in interest at his or her address, if
known, and al the address of the unit,
=+ whichever date gecurs latar.

4, An assacigtfon may noet nudl o o anrie’s ownee or iy o her
succesyor in jnerest a lefrer of iy infent to mail @ nerice of
delinguent assessmenr purssant lo parageaplt (o) af soldsection 1,
mail tlre notice of delinguent asyessient ar take any ofter aetion
te eolleer a past dne obligntion fionr o wuit’s mmer or his or ler
suecesser in mrerest wnlesy, not enrlier han GfF duys after e
aolilization becomey pust due, the aysociation mails to the address
on file for the nuiv's owner:

(1} A scledule af the fees that sy be clurrged if the unic's
owner fuily fo puy the past due obligarion;

(&) A propased repuyineni pfan; aid

(e} A notice of the right to contest the past e obligation al o

frearippg befare ohe exeentive hoard and the procedures for

requesting suely o earing.

3. The association may not foreclose a lien by sale based on a
fine ar penalty for a violation of the governing documents of the
association unless:

{a) The violation poses an imminent threst of causing a
substantial adverse effect on the health, safety ar weliare of the
units® owners or residents of the common-interest eommunity; or

(k) The penalty 1s imposed for failure to adhers to a schedule
required pursuant to NRS 116.510305.
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Sec. 9. NRS 116311635 is hercby amended to read as
follows:

116.311635 1. The association or other person conducting
the sale shall also, afler the expiration of the 90 days and befose
selling the unik:

(a) Give notice of the time and place of the saJe in the manner
and for a tiime nol less than that required by law (or the sale of real
properiy upon execution, except thal in feu of following the
procedure Tor service on 4 judgment debtor pursuant to NRS 2i.130,
service must be made on the unit’s owner as foilows:

{1} A copy of the notice of sale musl be mailed, on or before
ihe date of first publication or posiing, by certified or registered
mail, relmn receipl requested, to the unit's owner or his or her
successor in infcrest at his or her address, if known, and io the
address of the unit; and

(2) A copy of the notice of sale must be served, on or before
the date of first publication or pesting, in the manner set Torth in
subsection 2; and

(b) Mail, on or before the date cnf first publication or posting, a
copy of the notice by Hust-elasssasit certified ar regisiered il
refnrn receipt requesied, to;

(1) Ench ‘person eatitled to receive a copy of the notice of
defaulf and election 1o self notice nnder NRS 116.31163;

{2) The holder of 2 recorded security inlerest or the purchaser
of the unit, if either of themn has notified the association, before the
mailing of the notice of sale, of the existence of the securily interest,
lease or contract ef sale, as applicable; and

(3) The Ombudsman.

2. In addition to the requirements sei forth i subsection 1, a

copy of the natice of sale must be served:

{a) By a person who is 18 years of age or older and who is not a
party to or interested in the sale by personally delivering a copy of
the natice of sale 1o an occupant of the unit who is of suitable age;
ar

{b) By posting & copy of the notice of sale In a consplouous
place on the unit.

3.  Any copy of the notice of sale required [o be served pursuant
to this section must include;

(2) The amount necessary to satisfy the lien as of the date ol the
proposed sale; and

{b) The following warsing in 14-point bold type:
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WARMING! A SALE QF YQUR FROPERTY IS
IMMINENT! UNLESS YOU PAY THE AMOUNT
SPECIFIED IN THIS NMOTICE BEFORE THE SALE DATE,
YOU COULD LOSE YOUR HOME, EVEN IF THE
AMOUNT IS IN DISPUTE. YOU MUST ACT BEFORE
THE SALE DATE. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS,
PLEASE CALL (name and telephone number of the contact
person for the association). IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE,
PLEASE CALL THE FORECLOSURE SECTION OF THE
OMBUDSMAN'S QFFICE, NEVADA REAL ESTATE
DIVISION, AT (toll-[ree telephone number designated Gy the
Division) IMMEDIATELY.

4, Proof of service of any copy of the notice of sale required to
be served pursuant to this section must consist of:

{2} A certificate of mailing which evidences thal the nctice was
mailed through the United Stales Postal Service; or

{b) An affidevil of service signed by the person who served the
notice stating:

{1} The time of service, manner of service and location of
service; and

(2) The name of the person served or, if the notice was nol
served on a person, a description of the location where the notice
was posted on the unit.

Sec. 10. (Deleted by amendment.)

See. 11. NRS 116.4109 is hercby amended io read as follows:

116.4109 1. Exeept in the case of 2 sale in which delivery of
a public offering statement is required, or unless exempt under
subsection 2 of NRS 1164101, a unit’s owner or his or her
authorized agent shall, at the expense of the unil’s owner, furnish to
a purchaser a resale package containing all of the following:

{a) A copy of the declaration, other than any plats, the bylaws,
the rules or regulations of the association and the information
statement required by NRS 116.41095.

(b} A stalement from the association setting forth the amount of
the monthly assessment for common expenses and any unpaid
obligation of any kind, including, without lijnilation, management
fees, tansfer fees, fines, penalties, interest, colleclion costs,
Foreclosure fees and attorney’s fees currently due fram the selhng
unit's owier. e —tement—remstnn—sffecfee—Tor—the—pevied
speeHia gsnertenl-wiieh -y stepniheteasuthan 15 oped
e!-LP—;—fJ-aﬁﬁh e-dur-aidelivant-theassosial |as1—£a—rhe—:u~1 HoG-tHEHaE
g aR-BEeR-in

o his-se hergzsat-Ho tha-sssoutitien-bosemag-aw
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{c} A copy of the current operating budgel of the assaciaiion and
current year-to-date financial statement for the associntion, which
must include a summary of the reserves of the associalion required
by NRS 11631152 and which must include, without limitation, a
summary of the informalion described in paragraphs (&) to (),
inclusive, of subseetion 3 of NRS 11631152,

(d) A statement of any unsatisfied judpments or pending legal
actions against the association and the stetus of any pending legel
actions relating lo the common-interest community of which the
unit*s owner has actual knowledge.

(e} A statement of any transfer Tees, transaction [ees ar any other
fees associated with the resale of a unit.

(D In addition to any other document, a stalement describing all
currenl and expected fees or charges for each unit, including,
without limitation, association [ees, fines, assessments, late charpes
or penaliies, inierest rates on delinquent assessments, addilional
costs for callecting past due fines and charges for opening or closing
any file for each unit.

2. The purchaser may, by writien notice, cancel the contract of
purchase until midnight of Lhe fifth calendar day {ollowing the date
of receipt of the resale package described in subseclion 1, and ihe
coniract for purchase must contain a provision 1o that effect. If the
purchaser elecis lo cancel a contracl pursuvant to this subsection,
the purchaser must hand deliver the noiice of cencellation to the
unit’s owner or his or her authorized apent or mail the nolice of
cancellation by prepaid United States mail to the unit’s owner or his
or her authorized agent. Canceliation is without penally, and all
payments made by the purchaser before cancellation must be

refunded promptly. 1Y the purchaser has accepted a conveyance of

the unit, the purchaser Is not entitled lo:

{a) Cancel the contract pursvant to this subsection; or

{b) Damages, rescission or other relief based solely on the
ground that the unit’s owner or his or her authorized agent failed to
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furnish the resale package, or any portion thereof, as required by this
section.

3. Within 10 days after receipt of a wrillen Tequest by a unit’s
owner or his or her authorized agent, the assaciation shall furnish all
of the following to the unli®s owner or his or her authorized agent
for inclusion in the resale package:

{a) Copies of the documents reguired pursuant to paragraphs ()
and {c) of subsection I; and

(b) A certificate conlaining the information necessary to enable
the unit’s owner to comply with paragraphs (b}, {d}, (e} and (f) of
subsection 1.

4. IF the association furnishes the dacuments and certificale
pursuant Lo subseclion 3:

{a) The unit’s owner or his or her authorized agent shall include
the documents and certificate in the resale pachage provided to the
purchaser, and neithier the unit’s owner nor his or her authorized
agent is liable to the purchaser for any erroneouns information
provided by the association and included in the documents and
certificate.

(b) The association may charge the unit’s owner a reasanable
fee to cover the cost of preparing the certificate furnished pursuant
to subsection 3. Such a fee must be based on the actual cost the
association incurs to fUlfll the requirements of (his section in
preparing the cerlificate. The Commission shall adopt regtlations
eslablishing the maximum amount of the {ee that an assuma[mn may
charge for preparing the certificate.

{c} The other documents furnished pursuant o subsection 3
must be provided in electronic formel {st-ne-eharsa] to the vnit's
owner . fee—if} The ussocfution nury charge dhe unie's owner o fin,
not to exeeed 824, ra provide yuel docranents i efaefronic joramt,
If the association is unable to provide such documents in electronic
format, the association may charge the unit’s owner a reasonable
fee, nol to exceed 25 cenis per pape for the first 10 pages, and 10
cenls per page theresfter, to cover the cost ol copying.

{d) Excepl for the fees allowed pursuamt to paragraphs (b) and
{c), the associntion may not charge the unit’s owner any other fees
for preparing or furnishing the documents and certificale pursuant to
subsection 3.

5. Neither a purchaser nar the purchaser’s interest in a unit is
fiable for any unpaid assessment or fee greater than the amount set
forth in the documents and certificate prepared by the association. 1f
the association fails to Furnish the docinments and certificate within

US BANKO0646
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the 10 days allowed by this section, the parchaser Is not [iable for
the delingient assessment.

6. Upen the request of a unit's owner or his or her authorized
agenf, or vpon the request of a purchaser to whom the unit's owney
has provided o resale package pursuant te this section or his ar her
authorized agent, the association shall make the extire study of the
reserves of the association which is equired by NRS 116831152
reasonably available for the unit’s owner, purchaser or authorized
agent {o tnspect, examine, photocopy and audit. The study must be
made avaitable at the business office of the association or some
ather suitable location within the counaty where the common-interest
community s sftuated oy, i it is situsted in more than one county,
within ane of these counties,

A& ity mvaer, the ouihorBed agens of the unit's ewner or
the frolder of o secorify fnrerest on the wuit may request o
stuterrent af dewsarrd fram the aysoeiation. Nog futer e 10 duypy
affer receipy of o written reqoest from the anie's owner, the
authorized agent of the nait's swaer or the hatder of o security
interext an the wiit for n statemnent of demiand, the assoeintioyg

shalf furnish o sratenrent of demand te the person wha reguested -

the statement, The axseciutinng gy charge n fee of nat morve ifn
S50 to prepare and furnish w stafement af detnnd poarsiant 10
thiy subsection und un additional fee of wot more than S100 i0
Jurnishe o starement of demend within 3 days after receipt of o
writtenr reguwest for a statemens of demand, The smfement of
derespd:

(n) Adusr xet forelr the wmount of the manthily assessieni for
cammon  expeses wiad any unpaid  ebiieation of wny Kind,
ineluding, withour fmivation, managenent fzes, transfer fees,
Jines, pennltles, faterest, collection eosts, fireclosure fees il
attoraey’s fees currensly due fron the xeffing anic's owner; and

(h) Remains effective for the peviod spectfed in the statenent
of demund, which muxt nor be less han 13 businesy doys after the
dute of delivery By the psvociation fo the wuit's owaer, the
gutheriged ageat of the nnit's pener or the halder of @ security
interest on the unit, whichever is npplicabie,

8 I the pxvaciutfon beeomes mware of un errpr R a statement
of devpgnd furnished parsaunt to subxection 7 during Hie perind in
witich  the sttement of demaod i effective nit before fhe
consimunarion of n rexnle for which « resale poclkuge wvas
Jurnisiied pursuans to Subsecrion !, the axsoeintion mast delfver o
replaveineni stedsinens of demannd (o the persow win requested the
srarenent of  demeanrd. Unless the persun whe requested the

 *
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stafermeny of demand receivey a replycenent Siatemeny of demand,
the person muy redy wgen the aecaracy of ihe infavnwtion set forth
in the statement of denvord provided by the nssociprion for the
resule. Payment of the wnount set foridr in the stutement of
demund constitntes fidl payuent of the anmionnt doee from the
selling unif’s moner.

{1 QN

).

.
wutf s
o[}
o

'
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JEROME TAD
DISTRICT JUDGE
PEFARTMENT XX

ORDR

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

PARADISE HARBOR PLACE
TRUST,

CASE NO.: A-13-687844
Plaintiff, DEPARTMENT NO. XX

V. ORDER ON DEFENDANT'S
MOTION TO DISMISS OR, IN
DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL THE ALTERNATIVE, FOR
TRUST COMPANY, et al., SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Defendants.

(1)  This matter comes before the Court on a Motion by Defendant Deutsche
Bank National Trust Company to Dismiss the Complaint or, in the alternative, for
Summary Judgment.

(2)  This dispute relates to residential property located at 5005 Paradise
Harbor Place, North Las Vegas, Nevada ("the Property"), formerly owned by Mimi
Ralph. (Complaint, paragrapbs 1-3, 6). According to the Complaint, the Property is

located within a common-interest community governed by a homeowners' association

known as the Tierra de las Palmas Owners Association ("HOA"). (Complaint, para. 3).

The Plaintiff avers that it obtained title to the Property from Ms. Ralph by way of
foreclosure deed recorded June 21, 2012 after the HOA initiated a foreclosure pursuant

to the provisions of NRS Chapter 116 after Ms. Ralph failed to pay monthly

g1/11
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assessments required by the HOA. (Complaint, paras. 2-4). The Defendant is the
beneficiary of a Deed of Trust recorded against the Property on November 7, 2003.
(Complaint, para. 4). The Complaint asserts that the foreclosure initiated by the HOA
pursuant to NRS Chapter 116 extinguished any interest in the property held by the
Defendant by operation of law, and seeks declaratory relief from this Court to that
effect.

(3) By this Motion, the Defendant seeks a determination by this Court that
the foreclosure initiated by the HOA pursuant to NRS Chapter 116 djd not extinguish
its prior interest in the Property.

(4)  The parties appear to agree that the facts relevant to this action are not in
dispute. Therefore, the Cowrt is confronted with a pure question of law, and
specifically a question of statutory interpretation.

(5)  The question whether a foreclosure initiated by a homeowners'
association pursuant to the provisions of NRS Chapter 116 extinguishes any and all
prior encumnbrances upon a property is one that has been litigated before numerous
Departiments of this Court as well as before different judges in the U.S. District Court
for the District of Nevada. The Coutt is aware that the decisions of various judges
regarding the answer to this question have been inconsistent.

(6)  InSFR Investments Pool I LLCv. U.S. Bank National Association, Case
No. A-13-078858, this Court solicited briefing in amicus curaie from the Real Property
Section of the State Bar of Nevada, as well as from the Nevada Bankers' Association,
regarding the question before the Court. (See, Amicus Curiae Brief of the Real
Property Section of the State Bar of Nevada filed Angust 1, 2013; Amicus Curiae Brief
of the Nevada Bankers' Association filed August 1, 2013). The Court was particularly
interested in the views of the Real Property Section because its Chairperson was onc of
the drafters of the model legislation that ultimately became NRS Chapter 116 as well as
one of the principal witnesses before the Legislature when the bill was considered and
subsequently amended. The briefing submitted by the Real Property Scction argues

2 US BANK
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that the unambiguous intent of the model legislation that was presented to the Nevada
Legislature and became NRS Chapler 116 was that a foreclosure initiated by a
homeowners' association based upon unpaid assessments extinguishes any and all prior
encumbrances upon the property. The Court also notes the existence of a December
12, 20]2 administrative opinion of the Nevada Department of Business and Industry
which reaches the same conclusion.

(7)  In this Court's "Order Denying Defendant's Motion to Dismiss” dated
May 30, 2013, in First ]00 LLC v. Burns, Case No. A677693, this Court concluded
that, as a matter of law, the provisions of NRS Chapter 116 must be interpreted such
that a foreclosure upon real property initiated by a homeowners' association based upon
unpaid assessments extinguishes all other prior encumbrances on the property except to
the extent that other lienholders also participate in the foreclosure proceedings, The
Plaintiff urges this Court to adhere to the same reasoning in the case at bar.

(8)  Because of the manner in which the question was originally presented to
the Court by the parties, this Court's Order in First 100 LLC v. Burns did not address
certain questions that may relate to the validity of a foreclosure conducted pursuant to
NRS Chapter 116. For example, the Order did not address the question whether a
junior lienholder's interest in the foreclosed property may be constitutionally
extinguished if the junior lienholder did not receive actual notice of the initiation of
foreclosure proceedings against the property. NRS 116.11635( 1)(b)(2) requires notice
to be given (o certain parties, but notably does not, by its plain terrs, require that
notice be given to all junior or subordinate stakeholders whose interests in the property
may be extinguished by a foreclosure. It is axiomatic that under the U.S. and Nevada
Constitutions, an interest in real property may not be extinguished by operation of law
or any governmental action unless and until the owner has been afforded "due process
of law" which includes, at & minimum, notice and a reasonable opportunity to object to
the extinguishment. See generally, Brown v. Brown, 96 Nev. 713, 715-716 (1980) (due
process requires notice and the opportunity to be heard). Yet, as literally written, NRS

3 US BANK

(0651




01/03/2614 14:54 7826714439 DEPT 20

b S, A S« L O U G O NE SN

~ S\ th L) — O o og - (=] fe = s - O

28

JEROMT. TA{}
DISTRICT RDGLE
NEPARTMENT XX

116.11635(1)(b)2) permits a junior property interest to be extingnished by a
foreclosure initiated by a homeowners' association even if neither the property owner
nor the association bother to give any notice whatsoever to any other lienholder
regarding the pendency of the foreclosure proceedings and the potential destruction of
their property interests.

(9)  Thus, as literally drafted, NRS Chapter 116 perrmits an outcome that, at
least in some cases, may contravenc the Due Process Clause of both the U.S. and
Nevada Constitutions. This potential outcome was not noted nor argued by the parties
in First 100 LLC v. Burns, and therefore was not addressed by this Court in its May 30
Order. liis also not addressed in the amicus curiae brief of the Real Property Section,
nor by the December 12, 2012 administrative opinion of the Nevada Department of
Business and Industry interpreting the meaning of NRS Chapter 116. Indeed, in this
Court’s "Order Denying Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Complaint” filed August 9,
2013, in SFR Investments Pool 1 LLC v. U.S. Bank National Association, the Court
expressly noted that while the question of due process had been presented in the amicus
brief of the Nevada Bankers' Association, it had not been raised by the parties and
therefore was not properly before the Court. The Court therefore declined to address
the argument. However, the question of due process or lack thereofis a very serious
flaw inherent in the plain language of the statute that has been noted by other pariies in
other cases pending before other Departments of this Court, and one that has troubled
this Court for some time, becanse if a statute, as literally interpreted and applied by this
Coutt, potentially (and in some cases actually) results in an unconstitutional deprivation
of a party's property interest withont even minimal notice or an opportunity to be heard,
then one of two conclusions must logically follow: either the statue is unconstitutional
and therefore void, or the statute has not been understood correctly by the parties
and/or the Court.

(10)  The parties in this case have now squarely presented to this Court the
question of due process which was not before the Court in either SFR Investments Pool

4 US BAN
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1 LLC v. U.S. Bank National Association or First 100 LLC v. Burns.

(11)  As an initial observation, in this case the Defendant does not assert as a
factual matter that it did not actually know of the foreclosure proceedings at issue when
they were initiated. Therefore, some question exists whether the Defendant has legal
"standing” to challenge or argue the constitutionality of the statute, because if the
Defendant was given actual notice, then although the Defendant may have been
generally harmed by the loss of its property interest, it has not been harmed in any way
that resulted particularly from a lack of Due Process in the underlying foreclosure
proceeding. See, Thayer v. City of Worcester, 2013 WL 5780445 at *3 (D.Mass.
October 24, 2013) (discussing standards of "constitutional standing"). Perhaps for this
reason, in its briefing the Defendant does not actually assert that NRS Chapter 116 is
unconstitutional, but this is a question that must be confronted, Whether or not this
particular Defendant was afforded notice in this particular case, if the interpretation of
NRS Chapter 116 proffered by the Real Property Section and by the Nevada
Departiment of Business and Industry is lite;*ally correct, then the statute is
unconstitutional because it facially permits some property rights to be extinguished in
at least some cases without any notice or any opportunity to be heard.

(12)  For these reasons, the Court is compelled to conclude that the broad
interpretation of NRS Chapter 116 proffered by the Rca] Property Section and by the
Nevada Department of Business and Industry (and by this Court in its May 30 Order in
First 100 LLC v. Burns) cannot be literally correct in all cases of any kind in which a
homeowners' association forecloses upon a property, because such an interpretation
could potentially result in an unconstitutional outcome in at least some cases in which
subordinate interests were never given notice of, or an opportunity to object to, the
foreclosure proceedings and the deprivation of their property interests as a consequence
thereof,

(13) Ifthat interpretation is not correct, the question before the Court then
becomes whether there exists an interpretation that is consistent with the EXPress

5 US BAN}
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language of the statute, the intent of the Legislature in enacting the statute, and the Due
Process clause of the U.S. and Nevada Constitution. If an interpretation exists that is
consistent with all three, then that must be the correct interpretation. If there is no such
interpretation, and it the only interpretation available to the Court js incompatible with
the Constitution, then the statute (or at least the foreclosure and extinguishment
portions of it) is unconstitutional and therefore void.

(14)  The Defendant asserts that the proper interpretation of NRS Chapter 116
must be that foreclosures initiated by homeowners' associations only operate to
extinguish other liens if the foreclosure was conducted Jjudicially. If the foreclosure
was non-judicial, then the Defendant asserts that the non-judicial foreclosure operales
only as a scheme of "payment priority" affecting only the distribution of proceeds from
the sale, and not the validity of any other liens or interests. The Defendant avers that
this interpretation is necessitated by the reference within NRS 116.31 16(2) to the
phrase "action.” (NRS 116.3116(2): "during the nine months immediately preceding
institution of an action to enforce the lien"). The Defendant asserts that "action” must
necessarily be interpreted as a judicial proceeding such as a lawsuit or other court
proceeding, citing NRCP 3; Seaborn v. District Court, 29 P.2d 500, 505 (Nev. 1934)
("an action is a judicial proceeding™); Black's Law Dictionary (8th Ed. 2004) ("bring an
action" means "to sue; institute legal proceedings"). However, this argument is dubious
at best, because the Court notes that the Legislature has expressly defined the phrase
"action” 1o encompass non-judicial foreclosures in at least one other instance in the
NRS. See, NRS 40.430(1) ("one action rule" defined to encompass non-judicial
foreclosures). Moreover, a more recent edition of Black's Law Dictionary (9th Ed.
2009) defines "action" to include non-judicial behavior: “the process of doing |
something; conduct or behavior."

(15) Fundamentally, the Defendant's argument explicitly reads NRS Chapter
116 to create something of a complex "binary" system under which two completcly
different outcomes are produced with respect to other liens (one in which all other liens

6 US BANH

/11

0654




B1/83/201d4 14:54 7826714433 DEPT 20 PAGE B7/11

co | = L3 a Ly 2

(= -]

1
i1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
2]
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JEROME TAG
DISTIICT AJDQR
DEPARTMENT XX

are extinguished and one in which they are not} depending upon whether the
association chooses to proceed judicially or non-judicially. But there is nothing in the
plain language of NRS Chapter 116 that can be read as creating anything remotely
approaching such a complex, two-tiered system producing radically different potential
outcomes. Quite to the cotrary, the statute expressly permits an association to injtiate
"foreclosure" upon a property (NRS 116.31162 is titled "foreclosure of liens™). The
text of the statute does not include any reference to two potentially different types of
"foreclosures" producing two different outcomes. Furthermore, a "foreclosure” has
long been held under Nevada law to be a process that extinguishes all other
encumbrances upon the foreclosed property as a matter of law. E.g., Brunzell v.
Lawyers Title Ins. Co., 101 Nev. 395 (1985); Erickson Construction Co. v. Nevada
National Banf, 89 Nev. 350 (1973). Moreover, NRS 116.31 166(3) recites that a
foreclosure sale initiated pursuant to NRS 116.3116 "vests in the purchaser the title of
the unit's owner without equity or right of redemption” which the Nevada Supreme
Court has defined as acquisition of title free and clear of any encumbrances. E.g.,
Bryant v. Carson River Lumbering Co., 3 Nev. 313, 317-18 (1867) (a sale "without
equity or right of redemption" is onc that vests the purchaser with "absolute legal title
as complete, perfect and indefeasible as can exist...and a sale, upon due notice to the
mortgagor, whether at public or private sale, forecloses all equity of redetnption as
completely as a decree of court"), quoted in /u re Grant, 303 B.R. 205, 209
(Bankr.D.Nev. 2003). The Defendant's proposal simply ignores this EXpPIEsS provision.

The Court can find nothing in the text or legislative history of NRS Chapter 116 that
suggests any intention to create the complex, dual-outcome scheme proposed by the
Defendant under which an association's foreclosure might, or might not, extinguish
junior interests depending upon how the association opts to conduct the foreclosure,
and notably the Defendant cites to no such language in its brief, If anything, the
express intention of the Legislature in creating the entirety of NRS Chapter 116 was to
simplify the process by which associations could recoup unpaid monthly assessments,

7 US BANK
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1/| and it strikes the Court that creating a complex two-tiered system of foreclosures which
produces two entirely different outcomes vis-a-vis other liens is something akin to the

exact opposite of "simplification."

T 3

(16) Contrary to the Defendant's argument, NRS 116.31162 through

116.31168 provide a detailed mechanism for foreclosure quite independent of the

L

judicial foreclosure process embodied in NRS Chapter 40. If, as the Defendant argues,
the Legislature merely intended that an association must employ existing procedures

for conducting a judicial foreclosure outlined in NRS Chapter 40 in order to foreclose

- T

upon a property, then virtually everything contained in NRS 116.31162 through

10§/ 116.31168 becomes utterly meaningless. The Court cannot interpret a statute in such a
11| way that multiple lengthy and detailed sections expressly included within it become

12|{ meaningless, while simultaneously importing into the statute a complex, dual-outcome
13| substitute scheme that is totally unsupported by any language actually contained within
14||the statute.

15 (17)  Nonetheless, the Court must reconcile, in some way, the fact that the

16|| foreclosure mechanism explicitly outlined in NRS 116.31162 through 116.31168

17(| permits associations to foreclose upon properties in a way that, at Jeast in some

18|| instances, violates the requirements of due process. As interpreted by the Real

19| Property Section of the State Bar (chaired by a drafter of the legislation) and the

20|} Nevada Department of Business and Industry, a foreclosure conducted pursuant to NRS
21|| Chapter 116 extinguishes all other existing encumbrances on the property, including
22| any pre-existing first mortgage on the property whose holder did not participate in the
23| foreclosure proceedings. This was the conclusion reached by this Court in its May 30
24| Order in First 100 LLC v. Burns based upon the plain language of the statute. But this
25|| Interpretation violates the requirements of due process in at least some cases, because
26({(NRS 116.11635(1)(b)(2) expressly does not require notice of the foreclosure to be

27|l given to all Jienholders before their property interests are completely erased by

28|l operation of law.
JTEROME TAD R US BANKP656
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1 (18) In view of the foregoing, the Court concludes as follows. NRS
2({116.31162 clearly establishes that when a homeowners' association imposes a lien for
3||unpaid asscssments, a portion of the unpaid assessments (not exceeding nine months)
are entitled to "super priority” status over existing liens and mortgages including any
first mortgage or deed of trust. NRS 116.3116(2). If the association initiates
foreclosure proceedings against the property based upon its "super priority" lien, any
existing subordinate claims are paid off with any surplus proceeds of the foreclosure

sale. NRS 116.31164(3)(c)(4). However, afier the foreclosure sale is completed, any

w98 -~ N o e

unpaid subordinate claims (including any prior first mortgage) are autornatically

10| extinguished by operation of law. NRS 116.31162 through 116.31168 sets forth a
11||detailed mechanism for conducting such a foreclosure that was apparently designed to
12|{represent a simpler and cheaper method than existed under NRS Chapter 40 or NRS

13{ Chapter 107. However, the simplified foreclosure mechanism set forth in NRS
14|[116.31162 through 116.31168 is unconstitutional because it facially permits

15|| subordinate interests to be erased without proper notice or duy opportunity to object.
16|} Therefore, any foreclosure conducted in accordance with solely these provisions is null
17||and void. However, the remaining "super priority" provisions of NRS 116.3116 et seq.
18|| are not unconstitutional merely because they artificially elevate the priority of liens

19|| based upon certain urpaid monthly assessments over the priority of other liens, for the
20|| same reasons that laws elevating the priority of liens based upon unpaid taxes over

21|| other liens are pot unconstitutional. Therefore, a foreclosure initiated by a homeowners
22|| association based upon a "super priority" lien that was or is conducted in accordance
23|/ with established, recognized, Constitutional foreclosure procedures (such as those set
24| forth in NRS Chapter 40 or 107} other than (or in addition to) the procedures set forth
25[|in NRS 116.31162-31168 would be valid and would operate as a matter of law to

26|| extinguish all other liens on the property, including any pre-existing first mortgage on
27| the property rendered artificially subordinate by operation of NRS 116.3116.
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(19) Inthis case, the Plaintifl's Complaint does not allege whether the

—

foreclosure at issue in this case was, or was not, properly conducted in accordance with
established and Constitutional foreclosure procedures (such as NRS Chapters 40 or
107). The Plaintiff simply asserts that the foreclosure was conducted under the
procedures set forth in NRS 116.31162 through 116.31168 which do not comply with
the requirements of Due Process. Therefore, the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss or, in
the Alternative, for Summary Judgment, is GRANTED IN PART to the extent that the
Court concludes that the Plaintiff has failed to plead or establish that the foreclosure at

issue through which it acquired tie Property met the standards set forth in this Order.

= e - T L

However, in lieu of dismissal based upon a legal standard that is now being adopted for

—

|| the first time by this Order, the Plaintiff is hereby permitted leave to amend its

[l
pa—

Complaint. The Defendant's Motion is DENIED in all other respects.

—
(o]

(20)  Because of the considerable public interest in the proper interpretation

—
LS ]

of NRS Chapter 116 and the inconsistencies in how the statute has been interpreted to

—
~

date by different Judges of this Judicial District, this Order is hereby STAYED and this
matter is CERTIFIED FOR APPEAL pursuant to NRCP 54(b).
DATED: January 3, 2014

[ S T —
-1 &N th

T-TEC

—
o0

ot
0

JERGME T. TAO
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

L e e e - S T .
e = WL ; T S IS T N SO Y

28
IEROMETAG 10 US BANK(658

DISTRICT IIDQE
DEPARTMENT XX




B1/037/2314d

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
3
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JTERQNE TAD
DISTRICT IUDGO
DEFARTMENT XX

14:54 70826714439 DEPT 20 PAGE 11/11

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that T served a copy of the foregoing, by mailing, by placing

copies in the attomey folder’s in the Clerk’s Office ot faxing as follows:

Michael F. Bohn, Esq. - Via Facsimile: 642-9766
Michael R. Brooks, Esq., and Christopher S. Connell, Esq. - Brooks Bauer, LLP

- Via Facsimile; 851-1198

Dana I. Nitz, Esq. - Wright, Finlay & Zak, LLP - Via Facsimile: 946-1345
Robin E. Perkins, Esq., - Charles E. Gianelloni, Esq. - Richard C. Gordon, Esq.,

- Amy F. Sorenson, Esq. - Snell & Wilmer, LLP - Via Facsimile: 784-5252

A

Paula Walsh, Executive Assistant
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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V5. } NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ODRDER i
) DENYING MOTION FOR INJUNCTION

US BANK, N.A., a naliopal beiking *} AND GRANTING COUNTER-MOTION
association as Trusice for the Certificate } 'TO DISMISS

Holders of the Bant of America Morigege
Securilles 2008-A Trust, Mortpage Poss-
Through Centificates, Series 2008-A, CAL-
WESTERN RECONVEYANCE
CORPORATION, a Caljfomia corporation,
| SAN SEVINO WEST AT SOUTHERN
HIGHLANDS HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, a Nevada non-profit
corporaiion, SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, 2 Nevade
non-prolit corporation, GEORGE A.
SHERWOQOD, an individual, SHAROM L.
SHERWOQOD, en individugi, DOES | through
X; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1 through X,
inclusive,

T vt e st et M N bt et M bt Wl St M e bt S

Defendants,

TO: ALLPARTILES:
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Case 3:13-cv-00463-MMD-VPC Document 40-3 Filed 10/21/13 Page 3 of 11

LV T - T K

oWy Loy

i0
1
12
13
14
15
6
17
ig
19
‘ 20
21 !

23

24

i
27

Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCJ-VCF Document 24 Filed 07/17/13 Page 14 of 37

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASIE TAKL NOTICE 1hat an ORDER DENYING
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJleTlDN AND GRANTING COUNTER-MOTION

TO DISMISS was entered in the above-referenced malter on the 22™ day of March, 2013, ¢ -

eopy of which is sttached hereio.

DATED this L’L'“‘gny of March, 20]3.
) MILES, BAUER, BERGSTROM & WINTERS, LLP

ory C. Garabedian. F:sq_.-

Nevada Bar No. 10352
" MILES, BAUER. BERGSTROM & WINTERS, LLP
2200 Pasen Verde Pkwy, Suite 230
Ienderson, NV BU(52
(702) 369-5960 7 FAX (702) 369-4855

1
Ja
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CERTIFICA:I‘E OF MAILING
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED Lhni onthe ZZ day ol'March, 2013, .2 tnie and corroct

copy of the biepoing was mui!ed-hy placing in the Uniled States Masl, posiege pre-paid, to the

parties pddiessed below:

Howard C, Kim, Esqg.

Diana S. Cline, Esqg.

HOWARD KIM & ASSOCIATES.
400 M. Stephenie Swreet, Suite 160
Henderson, Nevada 83014
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Robin P, Wright, Esg. L

5532 5. Font Apache Roed, Bldg. C, Suitc 110

Les Vepas, Nevada 82148

Attorney jor Defendens Cal-Wesiern Reconveyunce Corp.

Gary S, Mchion, Esqg.

FULLER JENKINS CLARKSON . - .
2300 W, Sahara Avenue Svite 350

Las Vepas, Mevada B9102

pinelion@filledenkins.com : .
Attarney for Defendant Southern fighlands Comnumnity sysotiition

ol M]LES, BAUER, BERGSTROM &
WINTERS{ILLP :

US BANKO0662
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Eleclronlcally Filed

i 03/22/2013 DE:5Z-31 AM .

ORDR
Jory C. Gobedian, Esg. ’ CIERK OF THE COURT
Mevadz Bar No. 10332

jperabedionidmileslesnl.com

MILES, BAUER, BERGSTROM & WINTERS. LLP
2200 Pasco Verde Parkway, Suite 230
Hendemsen, NY 85052 -

{702) 369-5960/Fnx (702) 3694935

MBBRW File No, 13-L00}3

Altorneys [orz
US BANK, W.A.
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SFR INVESTMENTS POOL 1, LLCa ) CaseNo: A-12-673671-C
Nevada Yniled {iobilily compeny, } Depl, Moz 300V ’ -
R
PleintilT, . )
¥S. )
} ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR
US BANK, N.A_| n nolional banking } PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AND
nsstcintion os Trustee for the Cenlificme } GRANTING COUNTER-MOTIONTO

Holders oi1he Banc of America Monpepe ) DISMISS
Secorilies 2008-A Trusl, viorpape Pass-
Through Cotificoles, Series 2008-4, CAL-
WESTERN RECONVEYANMCE
CORPORATION, & Colifornin corporation,
SAN SEVIND WEST AT SOUTHERN
HIGHLANDS HOMEOQWNERS
ASSOCIATION, 2 Nevadn non-profit
corporijon. SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS
CONMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, n Nevada
non-piofil corporation, GEDRGE AL
SHERWOOD, gn individoal, SHAIRON 1.
SHERWOOD, an indivitial, DOES [ through
X; and ROE CORPORATIONS I through X.
inclusive,

Dzfendants,

Nt bl Wl T Nt Ml Nt At Nt M s Mt e A Gt N
.

oot
F IR b e

r
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: ‘ (hereinafter the "Deed ol Trust") snd executed by fopfer ieeord Subjret Property owners Georpr

Case 2:13-cv-00866-RCIVCF  Document 24 Filed 07/17/13 Page 17 of 37

ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR PRELIVINARY INJUNCTION AMD GRANTING
] COUNTER-MOTION TO DISMISS

In.this action, afier seview and considemtion of Pinintill’ SFR Investments Pool 1, LLC'S

(*Plaintifl™) Motion for Preliminary Injunciion. Delendent US Benk, H.A_'-s ("US Bank™)
Opposition therelo and Countermolion 1o [Jismiss. Plainiiil™s Reply in Suppor of Muotion foq
Preliminary Injunction ond Opposition o Counlermetion lo Dismiss, US Bonk's Reply &
Suppart of Conntermntion o Dismiss, ali pleadings ond papers on file herein, the ol argumenﬂ
presented on Mnrz;h 6, 2813 by coinsel for Pluintif)’ Diany S, Cling, Esq. of Howord Kim &
Associntes ond counsel for US Bank Jory C. Gombedian, lsq. of Miles, Bouer, Berpstrom &
Winters, LLP, end aRertnking the matter untler nuvisement. the Cournt hereby inds ns follows:
FINDINGS OF FAC'I:

1. The instant oction concemns tithe to nes} propesty commaonly known os 11577]

Copanna Rosso Place, Les Vegns, Mevedn ROM (APN 191-05-217-040) (hercinafier tho

“Subject Properiy™.
2 US Bank, through o recorded Assipameas is the recomd beneliciery of o
$885,000.00 first monpgape/deed of mst recorded spainst the Subject Fropeny on Ocioher e R

2007 in the Office ol the Clark County Rezorder as documentfinstromeny 20071023-0500588

A. Sherwood ond Sheron Sherwood,

3. Mon-fudiciol orecloswe pmnccdings under the terms of the Deed of Trust wers
commenced oh or nruumi September k7, 2009 by the ncording of a Notice of Defoull snd by the
T’mcurding of o MNotiez of Trusler’s Szle on Aupst B, 2012 FHowever, the foreefosure sale oodes

the Deed ol Trust hne not yet pone [onwvend. .

Py Ve T

.- m— s

e O M Ty
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o
! P
Lt . . .o
- - i
) g, On or nfuﬁnd April 9;2010, Southem Hiphbnds CDI:]'LIEDI.‘II‘IIU Associntion throngh
1 |jits mpenls and musice {hereinalter culll:cli\.'.ely the "l](.).!\."). recorded e Motice of Delinguent . :
3 {} Assessment Lien elaiming & Ticn in the amount ol $1.225,12 [ur colleclion andfor stiomey ﬁ:‘r.'s-: . !
4 || assensments. interest, late feos, service chorpes md volieetion eosts, ) -
z 5 On or arpund Muvamber 16, 2030, the HOA recorded ilsvbluﬁcr: of Delaoit and
5 (| Etection 1o 5ol indicating that il intended 10 ﬁJl'l!I'-'llJ!ill]'I.': un lhe Notice of Delinguent Assessment) ;’
B || Lien. Said Nofice of Defud indicales thal the lnl;xl urapunt due ond owing hod incredsed 1o -
? $2,550.06 and that such smounls would continue to inerense mntil the homeowmers™ Becouny H
f Ji became current. -
]l; 6. - TheHOA then rur:l:.n'dcd a Nolice ul"I'ruslcu‘s_ Bule on September 29, 201 notfog
]S I that the 10tal amount dus and owing had epatn increased (o 54.542.06. ‘
- 14 A Dn S:pltmh!frld, 2012, = Trusiee"s Derd Upon Sale was reconded sinting tat lhﬁ
13 {l HOA foscelosure sale was held on September 5. 2012 where Plafnii [ paid $5,000.040 10 puschesey
:i the Subjcel Propeny for the amount that vazs due and owing to the HOA. i
" ] B. PlointifT commenced the insiant quict e action on or around Di;t:l:mhl:r 14
19 || 2012, sceking tifle free and cleer of any interest ol the delendunts mymed herein, incloding US
Bank’s Deed of Trust. Specilically. PlaintilY allepes than the 1HOA foreclosume sale cxtinguished

- B

2 US Bank's Deed of Trust due 1o the (oréclosure ol The 1[OA s super priority lien,

9. Cn December 17, 2002, Pluimtift Niicd on Y Pante Application {or Temporary

Restraining Order (TRO) and Motion Jor Preliminary Injunction lo prevent US Benk fromy
25 Hforeclosing on the Subjeet Property. The Cowst exceuted/fssucd the TRO on December 18, 2012

25 §ipnd get a hepring date. . .

- 3= .. L. .
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Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCI-VCF Document 24 Filed 07/17/13 Page 18 of 37 _

10. - On Jonpary 2, 20i3. 1the Coun promed o preliminary injuncLiun {or 30 days 1o

allow (he named defendants Gme 10 oppeor ond respond.

11.  OnJanuary 30, 2013, the Court held o Stotus Cheek on the proliminary Injunclion
ot which the Couri set a brefing schedule on the Molion for Prefiminary Injunclion and any

Countermations end rlaiing briefing und forther st the bearing on ke malters for March 6]

2013,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Pirsunal jo NRCP 65, EDCR 230, NRY 33.000 and Nevodn ensz law, whe
declding to gt or deny & preliminary injunciion. the Court must consider: 1) the plafmifT
likelthood of seccess on the merits, 2) the repsonnble probubility thet the non-moving pariy'

conduey, i ailowed to conlinue. will canse irrepurarable horm for which compensaiory damnge i5

un insdequete semedy, and 3) the poienticl hardships 1o the relulive parties. and olhers nnd the

public interest.

2 Tl:xe Coust finds that Pl#intiT dovs not enjoy s substantinl likelihoed of sueeoss on
the merils. ' Pursunnt to MRS [163116(2)(B). an 110A lien 35 prior 1o sll other Ilens and
encumbrances on the real property smit stcepl, among others *la] first securily imcn.;sl. on the
unit reenrded before the dote an which the aessssment sought 1o be eafbreed beeame delingueny
on in & popperative, the first secwvity iotenest encumberine enly the unit's owner's inlerest and
perfecied before the dete on which the assessment soupht o be enfbreed became defingient.”]
Hege, it is undispmed that US Bonk hasu- first seewrity inldiest throuph the Deed of Trust, which
wns reconded approximalely twa ond A hull” years helore the HOA™s Wotice of Delinguen

Assessment Lien and therefore the Deed of Trusi would penerally have priority over the HOA]

hen.

Ty

IEEY]

L
ere mtw
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!1110.- Mevadn Real Esiate Divislon (“Division™) wherein the Division opined thel a givil action wes

Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCI-VCF Documeni 24 Fiied 071171-'13 Page 20 of 37

3. However, NILS 116.3116(Z}He) creates, fbran nssnciu;inn, a super priorly Jiea *1o
the xtent of any cEmrgE incurred by 1he nssociation mr a upil pursuual 1 MRS, 116.310312 ond!
10 the exten! of he pssessments for commen expenses based en the periodic budge sdopicd by,
the assoefation pusuent 10 NRS 11563515, which would hove beceme due fo e rbsence of
accelemtion durdng the 9 mun.lhs immediniely preeeding nstfintion af am action to enforee the .
lien.” (emphasis mfu;ed). Meassachusenys ond Wushiagion require n‘civil action or judicipl
foreclosure before n'supcr: pringity lica is wiggered pnd foreelosed.  Sie 7';;1rxlees of Muacinfosk
Condominium Association v. FDIC, 908 F. Supp. 38. 63 (IX. Mass. 1995); fr Re Stern, 44 B.IU
15, 19 {Bonkr.D).Mess. 1984); see alse Sunmierhill Vill. Homeowners Asx'n v Roughlep, 289
P.ad 845, 64% {Wash, CL App, 2012). Although the Coun acknowledpes that suthority fr
other jurisdiciions is no} binding, 1he Count finds persuasive the Jurdsprudence in Meassachusett
and Washinglon requiring judicial loreclnsuses tn Inpper und forcclose super pn’nn’ly. kicns.

4, The Coun alss acknpwledpes the secent december 2012 Advisery Opinion fmm]

not hecessary lo inpger an assoribtion”s super pronty licn, end thm it cowld be riggered by
commencing = von-judicie) foreclosure, However, the Conrt s nol bound by en opinion thay
conlains o disclaimer ot the end of the opiniun siuting it Jocs nol hove the force of faw. Thy
Court has the ebility 1o review stolnory lnlcmmluli;ans de novu,

5. Both Siate and Federsl ropstitijonul due process goasontees kre offended iF the
first scourily montgapee's imtercst moy be voitlul by nun-judicial foredosure for an assessment]
lien, relatively nominal in value, withou! nutice to the ollenvist scnior interesi mongages, and il
BR ppportunily is nol provided lo the momgage: o ague iis position. or 10 pay ihe assessment

amounls in order o avoid the risk of lostng, In 1his case. on $883,000.00 1irst secusity intexest in

ELE TR I FERII
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ilthe Sobjeet Propery. While the Coor acknowledpes thar NRS 116.311635(1)(1)(2) does noy

Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCI-VCF Document 24 Filed 07/17/13 Page 21 of 37

sbsolutely require nolice 'm the holder of n mcordel sm:’urily interesy, Milure 1o provide notice §
a deprivalion ol due process. Accordingly. MRS 1161 }6{2)e) must be consimed 10 rl:iil.lil‘l!j
eivil action 1o ripger ond foreclose an HOA s super priority Hen
6. Beeouse it is updisputed thor PlnfiT wequined 5is owneship interest in the
Subjeet Property 1hrongh .a n.nu-judicinl foreelosure 310 sole. and not a judiciol foreclosure
sale, Plinlil does not enjoy o subsiantal likclﬂ{uud on the menls.
7. For :;urpuses of'-dcmrmining wheiher 1o prant injonctive relick, the Coort ﬁ.ufﬂ'u':rJ
finds that althovugh rcal propedy #5 considered unigue ood the loss of which is ofien noij
compensnble by o monelary award, Plainiifl cun be compensated through peeuniary demages il
this cose.
8. The Court Rrrther finds (hat uﬂ;:r bo}uncing the hordships beiween the parties, US
Bank stands to Jose an interest valoed arpund SBE5.0D0.00 svherens PloinG{I s porchase price wag
mesely £6,000.00. The balance of hardships therefbre tips in favor ol 1S Bank to wanmnl the
deaial of o preliminery infunciion, )
5. Finplly, because the Cour h.urub}' conciudes s o maiter of low that an asypeinion
must eonduct o Judicial Toreclospre to igger eod foreelose any super prorily lien clolmed, end
because L is undispoted that PlaintiT scquired #s ownership nicrest in l.hn Subject Propedy
through o non-judieinl foreclose sale, the Count finds thut Plointil has l'ni[x:-a to state | clalm
vpon which sellef cnn be granted os to US Bank. -
ORDER
NOW WHEREFORE, bosed vpon fhe I‘nrcguing_liindlngs of Foct ond Conclusions of

Law, the Courl hereby DENIES PiainilT's Motion Far Prelimimary Injunction. DISSOLVES mny

LI L]
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Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCI-VCF Document 24 Fled 07/17/13 Fage 22 of 37 .

TRO and/or preliminnry injunclion previously in elfeet in this malier, and furiher GRANTS US

Bank's Countermation to Dismiss Plaintifl's Complaint with prejudice. However, the partics to

this aclion are inviled to seck a stoy pending sppend 3 they so wish. -
IT IS SO ORDERED. .
paTeD;__Mageh 40,30)) I ./_‘Ia.ﬂaég_ﬁf_&*—_

PISTRICT COURT JUDGE
. Pan
i Respecifuily submiteil:

MILES, BAUER, BERGSTROM &

WINTERS, LLP

Jory C. Garsbedinn, Esg.

MNeveda Dar No. 10352

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Sufte 250
Hendersor, Nevads E3052
Allorneps for- US Bank, NLA.

ot

yamie

e par
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Eleclronlcally Filed
02/02/2D013 12-28:58 PM

NEOJ . )
Brett Ryan, Esq,, Neyada Bar No, 12484 . R {:ﬁ“ ‘.ﬂ}'@a“"’“’“"

Joseph Bleeker, Bsg., Mevada Bar No. 9514

RCOLEGAL P.5. CLERK OF THE COURT
2485 Villape View Dr., Suite 190

Henderson, NIV B0074 -

Tel: (702) 322-905 D

jhleske olegal.com

RCO File No. 7518.55695

Arttorneys for Dafendant Beok of Amenca, N.A,

EiGHTH JUDICIAL DISIRICT COORT
CLATIC COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

JASON FRENCH, an individual, ) CaseNo: A-12-667931-C
) .

Plainfif, Deptz ITT

vs.

SWEETWATER HOMEOWNERS®
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Nevada Corporation;
NEVADA ASSOCIATION SERVICES, INC,,
A Nevada Corporstion; SER INVESIMENTS
POOL 1, LLC, A Domestic Limited-Liability
Company; BANK OF AMERICA, N.A; DOE
Individnals 1 Throogh X; And ROE
Corporations T Through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

SFR INVESTMENTPOOL 1, LLC A
Domestic Limited-Lizbility Company,

Copnter-Clajimmnt/Cross-Claimant,
va. " :

JASON FRENCH, An Individual,

Comnter-Defendant,
And

SWEETWATER HOMEOWNERS®
ASSOCIATION, INC., A Nevads Corpormiian;
NEVADA.ASSDCLATION SERVICES, INC_,
A Nevada Corporation; BANK OF
AMERICA, N.A.; DOE Indlvidnnls I Thmugh
X; AndROE Cmpnmhons IThrongh X,
mn]uswe,

Cross-Defendants,

N
S St® St St S Ssel vt S S St Ve Yaage? S Mt Trugpt? Nt Moy Mot Nagslt Vv vt S Nl St Yget? Sl St St ot Nt Sl Souirl oued

'
i
¥
1
i
r

-~ : _.1-

Notlce oLEniry ol Ord=r Granung}.{nu'nn 15 Dismi=s Complsint and Cruss-Camplofot
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Case 2:13-cv-00966-RCI-VCF Document 24 Filed 07/17/33 Page 25 of 37

NOTICE OT ENTRY OF ORDER
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, thot on Order Greoting Defendent and Cross-Defendant Baole
of Americe, NLA.s otion to Dismiss Complaint and Cross-Complaint was enteved on April 25,

2013. A cbgy of the Order j5 attached hereto a5 Exhibit “A."
DATED this_|_day oFMay, 2013.

RCOLEGAL, P.S.

By: /o/ Joseoh E. Bleeler ﬁ%
Joseph E. Blecker, Esq., Wevada BarNo. 9514
2485 Villoge View Dr, Suite 190
Henderson, NV 85074

Tel- (702) 322-9050
Jjbleeker{@rcolepal.com

- [ - - - & % = ea- e - . . - e e - W = oa - o

. -2-
Wolice of Entry of Ordes Qranfing Mation to Dismiss €omplaiol and Cross-Complalnt

3of7
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CERTIFICATE OFF SERVICE
Pursuant io MR.CP. Scb), I hereby cerify that, on the_Z-_ day of May, 2017, a true and
correct copy of fhe foregoing Notice of Euntry of Order Granting l‘Jerendm:t and Cross-Defendant
Bank of América, N_A s Motion to Dismiss Complaint and Cross-Complaint was served to the

Tollowing via U.5. Mail posizge prepaid and addressed 1o the following:

Richard Viildn

Attomey’s for Sweetwster Homeowmer's Association, Inc.
and Nevada Association Services, Jnc. )
1286 Crimson Sape Avenue,

Henderson, NV 89012

Djana S. Cline

Aftomey’s for SFR InvestmentPool 1, LLC
400 M. Stephanie Sireet, Suile 160
Henderson, TV 83014

Jason French
3900 Whartan Street
Les Vepns, NV B913D

An dfployee Tor Ronth Crabtree Olsen, P.S.

Case 3:13-cv-00463-MMD-VPC  Documeni 40-4  Filed 10/21/13 Page 4 of 7
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Case 3:13-cv-00463-MMD-VPC Document 40-4

ORDR

Brelt . Ryan, Esq., Nevodo Bar Mo. 12484
ROUTH CRABTREE OLSEN, P.S.
2485 Village View Dr., Suite 150
Henderson, NV 89074
Tel: (702) 322-905D
bryan{@reolepal.com
;RI.CO File No. 75] 855695
ttorneys for Defendons
Bank of A{neﬁc{N.A.

Filed 10/21/13 Page Sof 7

Elecironically Filed
04/26{2013 09:53:28 AM

e ;g.jsﬁm;...._

CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGATH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARIL COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

JASON FRENCH, nn individual,

Plaintiff,
Vs

SWEETWATER HOMEOWNERS?
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Nevada Corporntion;
NEVADA ASSOCIATION SERVICES, INC., A
Nevada Corporation; SFR INVESTMENTS
POOL 1, LLC, A Nomestic Limited-Liobility
Cumpany, BANK OF AMERICA N_A; DOE
Individuals I Throvgh 3 And ROE Corporations [
Through X, inclusive,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Defendanis.

SFR INVESTMENT FOOL 1, LLC, A Domestic
Limjted-Ljnbility Company,

Cuunlér—CiaimﬂnUCmss-Clnﬁnant,
Vs,

JASON FRENCH, An Individual,

Counter-Defendant,
And

SWEETWATER BOMEOWNERS”
ASSOCIATION, INC., A Mevada Corporation;
NEVADA ASSOCIATION SERVICES, INC,, A
Nevada Corporation; BANK OF AMERICA,
N._A_; DOE Individuals § Through X And ROE
Corporations § Through X, inclosive,

S N et St Vet Nt St? Namet Vet St? Vet Vet Vet Vet Vet Nt Nt Nt Syt N Nt Nt Nt

Cross-Defendants.

Cose No.: A-12-667931-C

ud-16-2073 RCVD
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Case 3:13-cv-00463-MMD-VPC  Document 40-4 Filed 10/21/13 Page 6 of 7

ORDER GRANTING NMOTION TO DISMISS
COMPLAINT AND CROSS-COMPLAINT

Defendant and Cross-Defendant, Bank of America, N.A.’s Mation to Dismiss Complaint
and Cross-Compiaint (*Motion™) came on for hearing before the Court at 9:00 a.m- on March 13,
20(3. Brett P. Ryan, Esq. appeared on behall of Bank of America, N.A, Diana S. Cline, Esg.
and Howard C. Kim, Esq. appeared on behalf of SFR Investments Pool I, LLC. No one appeared
on hehalf of plainkiff, Jason French, or on behalf of Defendants and Cross-Defendants Nevada
Association Bervices, Inc. and Sweetwater Homeowners® Associatian, Inc.

The Court, having considered the mmoving papers, iis own files, the argnments of counsel,
and good cause appearing, mokes the following findings:

I Plaintiff’s Complaint contains no allegations or claims against Bank of Amerieca,
N.A., Accordingly, Bank of America, N.A.’s Mobon is GRANTED as to Plaintiff’s Complaint;

2 Ugnder Nevoda Revised Statutes 116 .3116, {for en HOA 's lien to obtain super
]J:ior:itf status on HOA must institote oo *zeton to enforce the Hen™;

3. Under Nevada Revised Statutes 116 3116, an *action to enforee the lien” means a
judicial foreclosure, not 2 non-judicial Toreclosure;

4, Sweetwater Homeowners® Association, Inc. coné!ucted or caused 1o be conducted
a non-judicial foreclosure sale of the properly Jocated at 3200 Wharion Street, Las Vegas, NV
89130 (“Property™);

5. Because Sweebwater Homeowners® Association, Inc. conducled or cansed o be
conducted a pon-judicial foreciosure sale of the Property, its lien did not obtain super priority
stahs;

6. SFR Investments Fool I, LLC prnechesed the Property at thenon-jndicial

foreclosure;
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7. When SFR Investments Pool I, LLC purchased the Property at a non-judicial
foreclosure, il took title to the Property subject to Bank of America, N.A."s interest in the
Property, as described in the Deed of Trusi, Inslrument No. 20090616-0000566, which
constitutes a first security interest on the Property recorded before the date on which the
assessrnent sought to be enforced becam e delinguent pursuant ta NRS 116.3116(2){b);

8. SFR Investments Pool [, LLC"s ownership interest in the Property remains subject
to Bank of America, N.A."5 interesi in the Property.

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
Defendant Bank of America, N.A.’s MotHon to Dismiss is GRANTED. Plaintiff’s Complaint
and SFR Investments Pool I, LLC*s Cross-Complaint are DISMISSED as lo Defendant Bank of
America, NLA.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED ihat certification for
appeal 1s pranted in aceordance with Rule 54(b) of the Mevada Rules oF Civil Procedure.

DATED this_ ) % fay of Apsil, 2013.

/’-‘\\
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Tespectfidly submitted by: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
RCO LEGAL, PS. HOWARD KIM & ASSOCIATES

BRETT P.RYAN

Nevada Bar No. 12484 Neveda Bar No. 10580
2485 Villnge View Drve, Suite 190 400 . Stephanie Street, Suite 160
Heoderson, NV 82074 Hendersan, NV 89014
Attorney for Defendant Attorney for Defendont
Bank of America, N.A. SER Investments Pool I, LLC
3
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEVADA
® k%
)
7912 LIMBWOOD COURT TRUST, )
)
Plaintiff, ) 2:13-CV-00506-PMP-GWF
)
v. )
)
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.; MTC )
FINANCIAL INC.; and FEDERAL HOME) ORDER
LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION, )
)
)
Defendants. )
)

This case is one of many similar disputes over whether a foreclosure sale
conducted by a homeowners’ association (“HOA™) to collect unpaid HOA assessments
extinguishes all junior liens, including a first deed of trust. Presently before the Court are
the following motions:

1. Defendant MTC Financial Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss (Doc. #37), filed on May
23, 2013. Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. filed a Joinder (Doc. #39) on May 28, 2013. Plaintiff 7912 Limbwood Court Trust did
not file a response to this Motion.

2. Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A.’s Motion to Dismiss (Doc. #40), filed on May 29, 2013. Defendant MTC Financial
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Inc. filed a Joinder (Doc. #41) on May 29, 2013. Plaintiff filed an Opposition (Doc. #43)
on June 10, 2013. Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. filed a Reply (Doc. #46) on June 24, 2013. Defendant MTC Financial Inc. filed
a Joinder (Doc. #47) on June 25, 2013.

3. Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A.’s Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens (Doc. #48), filed on June 28, 2013. Plaintiff filed
an Opposition (Doc. #49) on July 15, 2013. Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. filed a Reply (Doc. #50) on July 22, 2013.
I. BACKGROUND

Because the matter is before the Court on motions to dismiss, the following
recitation of background facts is taken largely from the Amended Complaint, which the

Court takes as true. Williams v. Gerber Prods. Co., 552 F.3d 934, 937 (9th Cir. 2008).

Additionally, the Court takes judicial notice of the fact that certain documents were

recorded in the Office of the County Recorder for Clark County, Nevada. See United States

v. Ritchie, 342 F.3d 903, 908-09 (9th Cir. 2003).

The property at issue, located at 7912 Limbwood Court in Las Vegas, Nevada,
previously was owned by Sandra and Sonya Newton (the “Newtons™). (Am. Compl. (Doc.
#33) at 1; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #38), Ex. 1.) The property was subject to a first
deed of trust recorded in 2004 which identified Silver State Mortgage as the lender and
Lawyers Title of Nevada as the trustee. (Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #38), Ex. 1.) In
2011, Silver State Mortgage assigned the deed of trust to Defendant Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. (*Wells Fargo”). (Am. Compl. at 2-3; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #38), Ex. 2.)
Defendant MTC Financial Inc. (*“MTC”) thereafter was substituted as the trustee under the
deed of trust. (Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #38), Ex. 3.)

The property is subject to the 1995 Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions
(“CC&Rs”) recorded by the Elkhorn Community Association (“Elkhom™). (Am. Compl. at

2
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3; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #12), Ex. P.) In 2010, Elkhorn initiated an HOA
foreclosure sale of the property pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes § 116.3116, ¢t seq. to
recover unpaid HOA assessments. (Am. Compl. at 2; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc.
#12), Exs. G-1.) According to the Amended Complaint, Elkhorn, through its agent Angius
& Terry, LLC, conducted the foreclosure sale in compliance with all sfatutory notice
requirements. {(Am. Compl. at 2-3.) The sale was conducted on March 6, 2012, at which
Plaintiff purchased the property. (Id. at 2; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #12), Exs. H-
J.}) The HOA foreclosure deed was recorded with the Clark County Recorder on March 16,
2012. (Am. Compl. at 2; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #12), Ex. J.)

On October 5, 2012, Wells Fargo and MTC recorded a notice of default and
election to sell based on the Newtons’ deed of trust. (Request for Judicial Notice (Doc.
#38), Ex. 4.) The sale was set for March 8, 2013. (Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #38),
Ex.5))

Plaintiff brought suit in Nevada state court on March 5, 2013, against Wells
Fargo, MTC, Republic Services, and the Newtons to quiet title in the property. (Pet. for
Removal (Doc. #1), Ex. A.) Plaintiff moved for a temporary restraining order and
preliminary injunction seeking to enjoin Wells Fargo’s foreclosure sale. (Pet. for Removal,
Ex. E.) The state court set a hearing for March 12, 2013. (Pet. for Removal, Ex. F.)
However, Wells Fargo and MTC sold the property on March 8, 2013, to Defendant Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac™). (Id.; Am. Compl. at 3; Request for
Judicial Notice (Doc. #38), Exs. 6-7.) The state court set a hearing for April 2, 2013, for
Defendants to show cause why the sale should not be set aside. (Pet. for Removal, Ex. F.)
Prior to the April 2 hearing, MTC removed the action to this Court. (Pet. for Removal.)

This Court set a hearing on Plaintiff’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction and the
Nevada state court’s order to show cause why the sale should not be set aside. (Order (Doc.

#18).) At the hearing, the Court denied Plaintiff’s motion for injunctive relief without

3
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prejudice for Plaintiff to file an Amended Complaint. (Mins. of Proceedings (Doc. #30).)
Plaintiff filed an Amended Complaint against Wells Fargo, MTC, and Freddie Mac,
asserting claims for wrongful foreclosure and to quiet title in the property. (Am. Compl.)

Defendant MTC now moves to dismiss, arguing MTC claims no interest in the
property, and therefore it is not a proper defendant in a quiet title action. Additionally,
MTC contends Plaintiff’s wrongful foreclosure claim against MTC should be dismissed
because MTC owes no common law duty to Plaintiff, MTC was an agent acting for a
disclosed principal, and a wrongful foreclosure claim lies only as between trustors and
mortgagors.

Defendants Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac join in MTC’s Motion and also
separately move to dismiss. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac argue Wells Fargo’s lien is
superior to Elkhorn’s HOA lien, and therefore it was not extinguished by the HOA
foreclosure sale. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac contend that under the Nevada statutory
scheme, foreclosure on the HOA’s lien does not extinguish the first deed of trust. Rather,
the HOA’s lien is a payment priority lien only, and the first deed of trust continues to
encumber the property after foreclosure of the HOA lien. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac
contend that Plaintiff thus purchased merely a possessory interest in the property subject to
the first deed of trust. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac contend it would violate their due
process rights to allow a later-recorded HOA assessment lien to extingunish the deed of trust
lien recorded several years earlier. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac also contend that
Elkhorn’s CC&Rs preserve the first deed of trust’s priority over HOA liens. Defendants
therefore also move to expunge the Notice of Lis Pendens that Plaintiff recorded on the
property.

Plaintiff responds that Nevada’s statutory scheme provides the HOA with a lien
for nine months’ worth of HOA assessments which is superior to the first deed of trust,

referred to as the “super priority lien.” According to Plaintiff, if the HOA forecloses on the

4
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super priority lien, all junior liens, including the first deed of trust, are extingunished.
Plaintiff further contends an HOA cannot waive its super priority lien through the CC&Rs.
Plaintiff also argues Defendants received the statutory notice required, and all lenders were
on notice of the possibility of a super priority lien extinguishing a first deed of trust upon
enactment of the super priority statutory scheme in 1991. Plaintiff contends Defendants
could have preserved the security interest by complying with the statutory requirements to
receive notice and by paying off the HOA super priority lien, but they sat on their rights and
cannot be heard to complain now.
II. DISCUSSION

In considering a motion to dismiss, “all well-pleaded allegations of material fact
are taken as true and construed in a light most favorable to the non-moving party.” Wyler
Summit P’ship v. Turner Broad. Sys., Inc., 135 F.3d 658, 661 (9th Cir. 1998). However,

the Court does not necessarily assume the truth of legal conclusions merely because they are

cast in the form of factual allegations in the plaintiff’s complaint. See Clegg v. Cult

Awareness Network, 18 F.3d 752, 754-55 (9th Cir. 1994). There is a strong presumption

against dismissing an action for failure to state a claim. Ileto v. Glock Inc., 349 F.3d 1191,

1200 (9th Cir. 2003). A plaintiff must make sufficient factual allegations to establish a
plausible entitlement to relief. Bell Atl. Corp. v Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 556 (2007).

Such allegations must amount to “more than labels and conclusions, [or] a formulaic
recitation of the elements of a cause of action.” Id. at 555.

A. MTC’s Motion to Dismiss

Under Nevada law, “[a]n action may be brought by any person against another
who claims an estate or interest in real property, adverse to the person bringing the action,
for the purpose of determining such adverse claim.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 40.010. Because the
Amended Complaint does not allege MTC claims an interest in the property, and MTC

disclaims any interest in the property, the Court will dismiss Plaintiff’s quiet title claim as

5
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against Defendant MTC.
As to the wrongful foreclosure claim against MTC, a trustee under a deed of trust
owes no duties beyond those imposed by the deed of trust and applicable foreclosure

statutes. Harlow v. MTC Fin. Inc., 865 F. Supp. 2d 1095, 1100 (D. Nev. 2012). Plaintiff

has not alleged MTC breached the deed of trust or any requirement imposed by the
foreclosure statutes. Rather, Plaintiff asserts a common law wrongful foreclosure claim,

See Collins v. Union Fed. Sav. & Loan, 662 P.2d 610, 623 (Nev. 1983). The Court

therefore will dismiss Plaintiff’s wrongful foreclosure claim against MTC.

Defendants Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac filed a conclusory Joinder which did
not explain how MTC’s arguments applied to them. The Court therefore will deny
Defendants Well Fargo and Freddie Mac’s Joinder in MTC’s Motion.

B. Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac’s Motion to Dismiss

The parties dispute the effect of the HOA foreclosure sale on the first deed of
trust. The parties also dispute whether Wells Fargo’s due process rights would be violated
by allowing foreclosure of the HOA lien to extinguish Wells Fargo’s security interest based
on the first deed of trust. Finally, the parties dispute whether the Elkhorn CC&Rs provide
that the HOA lien is subordinate to the first deed of trust.

1. Priority

Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac contend the HOA super priority lien gives the
HOA pnority in payment only, and foreclosure on the HOA super priority lien does not
extinguish Wells Fargo’s security interest based on the first deed of trust. Plaintiff, on the
other hand, contends foreclosure on the super priority lien extinguishes all junior liens,
including the first deed of trust.

The Nevada Supreme Court has not addressed the statutory provisions at issue to
determine whether a foreclosure sale on an HOA super priority lien extinguishes all junior

liens, including a first deed of trust. “Where the state’s highest court has not decided an

6
US BANKOG6§




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Case 2:13-cv-00506-PMP-GWFE  Document 59 Filed 10/28/13 Page 7 of 18

1ssue, the task of the federal courts is to predict how the state high court would resolve it.”

Giles v. Gen. Motors Acceptance Corp., 494 F.3d 865, 872 (9th Cir. 2007) (quotation

omitted). “In answering that question, this court looks for ‘guidance’ to decisions by
intermediate appellate courts of the state and by courts in other jurisdictions.” 1d.
(quotation omitted).

This Court looks to Nevada rules of statutory construction to determine the

meaning of a Nevada statute. In re First T.D. & Inv., Inc., 253 F.3d 520, 527 (9th Cir.

2001). Under Nevada law, a court should construe a statute to give effect to the

legislature’s intent. Richardson Constr., Inc. v. Clark Cnty. Sch. Dist., 156 P.3d 21, 23

(Nev. 2007). If the statute’s plain language is unambiguous, that language controls. Id. If
the statute’s language is ambiguous, the Court “must examine the statute in the context of
the entire statutory scheme, reason, and public policy to effect a construction that reflects
the Legislature’s iﬁtent.” 1d.

Chapter 116 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, enacted in 1991, codifies the
Uniform Common-Interest Ownership Act and sets forth the statutory framework for
common interest communities such as HOAs. Nev. Rev. Stat. § 116.001; A.B. 221,
Sumimmary of Legislation, 66th Leg. (Nev. 1991). Section 116.3116(1) provides for a lien in
an HOA’s favor “for any construction penalty that is imposed against the unit’s owner
pursuant to NRS 116.310303, any assessment levied against that unit or any fines imposed
against the unit’s owner from the time the construction penalty, assessment or fine becomes
due.” Additionally, unless the HOAs declaration provides otherwise, “any penalties, fecs,
charges, late charges, fines and interest charged pursuant to [§ 116.3102(1)(j)~(n}] are
enforceable as assessments under this section.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 116.3116(1); see also id.
§ 116.3102(1)(j)~(n) (providing for charges for such items as late payment penalties, rental
fees for common elements, and fines).

1
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The key provision in dispute between the parties is § 116.3116(2), which sets
forth the priority of the HOA lien with respect to other liens on the property. Pursuant to
§ 116.3116(2), the HOA lien is prior to all other liens on the property except:

(a) Liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordation of the
declaration['] and, in a cooperative, liens and encumbrances which the
association creates, assumes or takes subject to;

(b) A first security interest on the unit recorded before the date on
which the assessment sought to be enforced became delinquent . . . ;
and

(c) Liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or
charges against the unit or cooperative.

Although § 116.3116(2)(b) makes a first deed of trust superior to an HOA lien, the last
paragraph of § 116.3116(2) gives what the parties refer to as “super priority” status to a
portion of the HOA’s lien which is superior to the first deed of trust:

The lien is also prior to all security interests described in paragraph (b)
to the extent of any charges incurred by the association on a unit
pursuant to NRS 116.310312[%] and to the extent of the assessments for
common expenses based on the periodic budget adopted by the
association pursuant to NRS 116.3115 which would have become due
in the absence of acceleration during the 9 months immediately
preceding institution of an action to enforce the lien, unless federal
regulations adopted by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
or the Federal National Mortgage Association require a shorter period
of priority for the lien. ... This subsection does not affect the priority
of mechanics’ or materialmens’ liens, or the priority of liens for other
assessments made by the association.

Id. § 116.3116(2). Recording the HOA’s declaration “constitutes record notice and
perfection of the lien. No further recordation of any claim of lien for assessment under this
section is required.” Id. § 116.3116(4).

1

! The declaration is “any instrument[], however denominated, that createfs] a common-interest
community, including any amendments to thfat] instrumentf].” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 116.037.

* Allowing for the HOA’s executive board to enter a unit to conduct maintenance or remove
or abate a nuisance, and permitting the imposition of fees and costs for any such activity.

8
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The HOA may pursue a civil suit to recover unpaid assessments directly from the
unit owner, or it may foreclose on a lien created under § 116.3116. 1d. §§ 116.3116(6),
(10), 116.31162. To conduct a foreclosure sale on its lien, the HOA must comply with
certain notice requirements. First, the HOA must notify the owner of the delinquent
assessments. Id. § 116.31162(1)(a). If the owner does not pay within 30 days, the HOA
must record a notice of default and election to sell. Id. § 116.31162(1)(b). In addition to
recording the notice of default, the HOA must mail it to “[a]ny holder of a recorded security
interest encumbering the unit’s owner’s interest who has notified the association, 30 days
before the recordation of the notice of default, of the existence of the security interest.” Id.
§ 116.31163(2). If the unit owner has not paid the lien amount within 90 days of the notice
of default being recorded, the HOA then must give notice of the sale to the owner and to the
known holder of a security interest if the security interest holder “has notified the
association, before the mailing of the notice of sale, of the existence of the security
interest.” Id. §116.311635(b)(2); see also id. § 116.61162(1)(c).

At the sale, the HOA must sell to the highest bidder, and the HOA may credit bid
on the property “up to the amount of the unpaid assessments and any permitted costs, fees
and expenses incident to the enforcement of its lien.” Id. § 116.31164(2). After the sale,
the seller must execute and deliver to the buyer “a deed without warranty which conveys to
the grantee all title of the unit’s owner to the unit.” Id. §§ 116.31164(3)(a), 116.31166(3).
The seller must apply the proceeds of the sale in the following order:

(1) The reasonable expenses of sale;

(2) The reasonable expenses of securing possession before sale,

holding, maintaining, and preparing the unit for sale, including

payment of taxes and other governmental charges, premiums on hazard

and liability insurance, and, to the extent provided for by the

declaration, reasonable attorney’s fees and other legal expenses

incurred by the association;

(3) Satisfaction of the association’s lien;

(4) Satisfaction in the order of priority of any subordinate claim of

record; and .
(5) Remittance of any excess to the unit’s owner.

8
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1d. § 116.31164(3)(c). “The sale of a unit pursuant to NRS 116.31162, 116.31163 and
116.31164 vests in the purchaser the title of the unit’s owner without equity or right of
redemption.” 1d. § 116.31166(3). A deed which recites there was a default, the proper
notices were given, the appropriate amount of time has lapsed between notice of default and
sale, and notice of the sale was given, “is conclusive against the unit’s former owner, his or
her heirs and assigns, and all other persons.” 1d. § 116.31166(2). Upon payment, the
purchaser is “discharge[d] from obligation to see to the proper application of the purchase
money.” Id.

Section 116.3116(2) effectively separates the HOA’s lien into two separate liens.
The last paragraph of subsection 2, which generally consists of the last nine months of
unpaid assessments and any unpaid nuisance abatement costs, constitutes the super priority
portion of the HOA’s lien. 1t provides that the super priority portion of the HOA’s lien is
prior to the first deed of trust. The rest of the HOA’s lien, consisting of any charges not
contained within the super priority lien, including any assessments unpaid for more than
nine months, is junior to the first deed of trust under § 116.3116(2)(b). The parties agree
the statute operates in this fashion, but disagree about the legal effect of the HOA’s
foreclosure on the super priority lien.

Nevada’s statutory scheme is clear. Section 116.3116(2) unambiguously
provides that the HOA super priority lien is prior to the first deed of trust. The statutory
scheme also unambiguously provides for the HOA to resort to non-judicial foreclosure
procedures to enforce its lien. The statute sets forth the order of priority by which the
foreclosure sale proceeds must be distributed, and the association’s lien must be satisfied
before any other subordinate claim of record. The purchaser at an HOA foreclosure sale
obtains the unit owner’s title without equity or right of redemption, and a deed which
contains the proper recitals “is conclusive against the unit’s former owner, his or her heirs

and assigns, and all other persons.” Id. § 116.31166(2). Compare Nev. Rev. Stat.

10
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§ 107.080 (providing that a mortgage foreclosure sale “vests in the purchaser the title of the
grantor and any successors 1n interest without equity or right of redemption”); Bryant v.

Carson River Lumbering Co., 3 Nev. 313, 317-18 (1867) (providing that such a sale vests

absolute title in the purchaser). Consequently, a foreclosure sale on the HOA super priority
lien extinguishes all junior interests, including the first deed of trust.

Even if these statutory provisions do not explicitly provide that foreclosure of the
HOA super priority lien extinguishes the first deed of trust, § 116.1108 provides that
general principles of law and equity “supplement the provisions of this chapter, except to

the extent inconsistent with this chapter.” Under settled foreclosure principles, foreclosure

of a superior lien extinguishes junior security interests. Aladdin Heating Corp. v. Trustees

of Central States, 563 P.2d 82, 86 (Nev. 1977); Erickson Constr. Co. v. Nev. Nat’] Bank,

513 P.2d 1236, 1238 (Nev. 1973). If junior lienholders want to avoid this result, they
readily can preserve their security interests by buying out the senior lienholder’s interest.
See Carrillo v. Valley Bank of Nev., 734 P.2d 724, 725 (Nev. 1987); Keever v. Nicholas
Beers Co., 611 P.2d 1079, 1083 (Nev. 1980).

Nothing in the statute suggests that anything other than normal foreclosure
principles apply to an HOA foreclosure sale, nor is it inconsistent with Chapter 116 to apply
the usual principle that foreclosure of a senior interest extinguishes junior interests. Rather,
this result is consistent with the statutory purpose of the super priority lien to “ensure
prompt and efficient enforcement of the association’s lien for unpaid assessments.”
Uniform Commeon Interest Ownership Act § 3-116, emt. 1 (1982); see also Nev. Rev. Stat.
§ 116.1109(2) (*'This chapter must be applied and construed so as to effectuate its general
purpose to make uniform the law with respect to the subject of this chapter among state
enacting it.””). Moreover, the Nevada Legislature presumably was aware of the normal
operation of foreclosure law when it enacted Chapter 116 in 1991. If the Legislature

intended a different rule to apply to an HOA foreclosure sale, it could have said so.
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While Nevada state trial courts and decisions from the United States District
Court for the District of Nevada are divided on the question,’ other guidance from Nevada
confirms the Court’s conclusion about the statutory meaning. The Nevada Real Estate
Division of the Departiment of Business and Industry and the Commission for Common
Interest Communities and Condominium Hotels (“Real Estate Division™) is the entity

charged with interpreting Chapter 116. State, Dep’t of Bus. & Indus., Fin. Insts. Div. v.

Nev. Ass'n Servs., Inc., 294 P.3d 1223, 1227-28 (Nev. 2012); see also Nev. Rev. Stat.

§§ 116.043, 116.615, 116.623. The Nevada Supreme Court therefore would defer to the
Real Estate Division’s interpretation so long as that interpretation is within the statute’s

language. Dutchess Bus. Servs., Inc. v. Nev. State Bd. of Pharmacy, 191 P.3d 1159, 1165

(Nev. 2008); Folio v. Briggs, 656 P.2d 842, 844 (Nev. 1983) (stating the Nevada Supreme

Court “attach[es] substantial weight” to the interpretation of a state agency “clothed with
the power to construe the statutes under which it operates”). The Real Estate Division has
interpreted the statute to mean that foreclosure on the HOA super priority lien results in
extinguishment of all junior liens, including the first deed of trust.

In a December 2012 advisory opinion, the Real Estate Division addressed three
questions: (1) whether, pursuant to § 116.3116, the HOA’s super priority lien included
collection costs; (2) whether the super priority lien can exceed nine times the monthly
assessment plus charges; and (3) whether the HOA must institute a civil action for the super
priority lien to exist. (Pl.’s Opp’n to Defs.” Mot. to Dismiss (Doc. #43), Ex. 1.) The Real
Estate Division answered the first question by concluding the super priority lien does not
include collection costs because the statute specifically states what constitutes the super

priority lien. (Id. at 1, 3-7.) As to the second question, the Real Estate Division concluded

* (See, e.g, Pet. for Removal, Ex. H, Attach. M; Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #12), Exs.
L-O, Q; Defs.” Mot. to Dismiss (Doc. #40), Exs. C-F; P1.’s Opp’n to Defs.” Mot. to Dismiss {Doc.
#43), Ex. 9.)
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the super priority lien consists only of unpaid assessments and certain charges specifically
identified in § 116.310312. (Id. at 2, 10-17.) As to the third question, the Real Estate
Division asserted the HOA must take action to enforce its super priority lien, but it need not
institute a civil lawsuit. (1d. at 2, 17-18.) Rather, the HOA could institute a non-judicial
foreclosure under § 116.31162 or pursue other remedies. (Id.)

In reaching these conclusions, the Real Estate Division examined the priority of
the HOA lien under § 116.3116(2). (1d. at 8-9.) The Real Estate Division sought to give
guidance to HOAs on this point because “[u]nderstanding the priority of the lien 1s an
important consideration for any board of directors looking to enforce the lien through
foreclosure or to preserve the lien in the event of foreclosure by a first security interest.”
(1d. at 8.)

According to the Real Estate Division, the “ramifications of the super priority
lien are significant in light of the fact that superior liens, when foreclosed, remove all junior
liens. An association can foreclose its super priority lien and the first security interest
holder will either pay the super priority lien amount or lose its security.” (Id. at 9.) The
Real Estate Division suggested it was “likely that the holder of the first security interest will
pay the super priority lien amount to avoid foreclosure by the association.” (Id.); see also
Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act § 3-116, cmt. 1 (1982) (“Asa practical matter,
secured lenders will most likely pay the 6 months’ assessments demanded by the association
rather than having the association foreclose on the unit.”). In its conclusion, the Real Estate
Division stated that the “association can use the super priority lien to force the first security
interest holder to pay that amount.” (P1.’s Opp’n to Defs.” Mot. to Dismiss, Ex. 1 at 19.)
The HOA retains a junior lien for other charges and penalties, and thus if the first security
interest holder pays off the super priority lien, the first deed of trust lienholder still may
foreclose and the HOA’s junior lien for items not included in the super priority lien may be

extinguished by that foreclosure. (I1d.) Thus, contrary to Defendants’ argument that
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§ 116.3116(2)(b) would be rendered meaningless by this construction of the statute,

§ 116.3116(2)(b) establishes that the first deed of trust takes priority over that portion of an
HOA lien which does not comprise the super priority lien, including any unpaid
assessments beyond the nine months of unpaid assessments comprising the super priority
lien.

The State of Nevada Legislative Counsel Bureau reached the same conclusion in
a December 2012 advisory letter. (PL.” Opp’n to Defs.” Mot. to Dismiss, Ex. 4.) The
Legislative Counsel Bureau concluded the statute unambiguously provides that “the
ownership interest of a purchaser who obtains title through a deed properly containing the
[statutory recitals in § 116.31164] is not subject to any claim made by the holder of a
security interest who forecloses on an obligation after the purchase is made pursuant to
NRS 116.31164.” (Id. at 3.) The Legislative Counsel Bureau concluded that “no part of an
ownership interest vested in the purchaser may be extinguished by a foreclosure on a
security interest to which the previous owner was obligated that occurs after the purchaser
obtains title to the property under NRS 116.31161.” (Id. at 4.)

The Court rejects Defendants” argument that it would be inequitable to allow
foreclosure of an HOA lien of relatively little value to extinguish a first deed of trust of
considerable value. The Court must apply the plain and unambiguous statutory language.
Moreover, statutory principles of priority, not the monetary value of the respective liens,
control. Under the unambiguous statutory language, the HOA super priority lien is prior to
the first deed of trust, and consequently foreclosure on the HOA super priority lien
extinguishes all junior security interests, including the first deed of trust.

Moreover, the result in this case is neither novel nor unfair. Wells Fargo easily
could have avoided this purportedly inequitable consequence by paying off the HOA super
priority lien amount to obtain the priority position thereby avoiding extinguishment of its

junior interest. Additionally, Wells Fargo could have required an escrow for HOA
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assessments so that in the event of default, Wells Fargo could have satisfied the super
priority lien amount without having to expend any of its own funds. See Uniform Comimon
Interest Ownership Act § 3-116, cmt. 1 (1982).

Finally, the HOA foreclosure sale extinguished only Wells Fargo’s security

interest in the property, not the underlying debt. Olson v. lacometti, 533 P.2d 1360, 1363

(Nev. 1975) (“Foreclosure of the first trust deed extinguished only the security for the
Olson-lacometti note, not the indebtedness represented by that note.”) Wells Fargo still can
pursue the Newtons for the unpaid balance. The Court therefore will deny Defendants’
Motion to Dismiss on the basis that the HOA foreclosure sale did not extinguish Wells
Fargo’s security interest based on the first deed of trust.

2. Due Process

Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac argue that allowing a foreclosure sale based on a
later-recorded notice of delinquent HOA assessments to extinguish the previously recorded
first deed of trust violates their due process rights because Nevada is a race-notice state.
Plaintiff responds that Defendants had adequate notice of the super priority lien based on
the super priorty statute’s enactment in 1991, the 1995 Elkhorn CC&Rs, and the notice
procedures in the statute.

“Nevada is a race notice state.” Buhecker v. R.B. Petersen & Sons Constr. Co.,

929 P.2d 937, 939 (Nev. 1996) (citing Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 111.320, 111.325). Recorded
security interests therefore “impart notice to all persons of the contents thereof; and
subsequent purchasers and mortgagees shall be deemed to purchase and take with notice.”
Nev. Rev. Stat. § 111.320.

Under usual race notice rules, Wells Fargo’s lien would be superior to the HOA
delinquency notice because the first deed of trust was recorded in 2004, and the HOA did

not record a notice of default on the assessments until 2010. However, Chapter 116

provides that an HOA perfects its lien by recording the declaration, which provides notice

15
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to any future first deed of trust holder of the potential that, under the statute, a super priority
lien may take priority over the first deed of trust, even if the notice of default on the
assessments 15 recorded after the first deed of trust. Id. § 116.3116(4). Chapter 116 was
enacted in 1991, and thus Wells Fargo was on notice that by operation of the statute, the
1995 Elkhorm CC&Rs might entitle the HOA to a super priority lien at some future date
which would take priority over a first deed of trust recorded in 2004. Consequently, the
conclusion that foreclosure on an HOA super priority lien extinguishes all junior liens,
including a first deed of trust recorded prior to a notice of delinquent assessments, does not
violate Wells Fargo’s due process rights. Freddie Mac purchased the property after the
HOA recorded the notice of default and conducted the HOA foreclosure sale. Freddie Mac
therefore took the property with notice of the HOA foreclosure sale.

To the extent Wells Fargo contends Elkhorn failed to provide the required notice
as a factual matter, the Amended Complaint alleges Elkhorn provided all statutorily
required notices. (Am. Compl. at 2.) The Court must accept that allegation as true at this
stage of the proceedings. In their Reply, Defendants assert that the statute violates due
process because the statutory notice provisions do not necessarily require notice to the first
deed of trust holder. The Court will not consider this issue raised for the first time in a

reply brief. Carstarphen v. Milsner, 594 F. Supp. 2d 1201, 1204 n.1 (D. Nev. 2009). The

Court therefore will deny Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss on the basis that Defendants” due
process rights are violated by operation of the statute.
3. CC&Rs

Defendants argue the Elkhorn CC&Rs provide that first deeds of trust are
superior to Elkhorn’s HOA liens. Plaintiff responds that the statute prohibits waiver of
Chapter 116’s provisions.
"
/"
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Sections 6.16 and 6.17 of the Elkhorn CC&Rs provide as follows:

Section 6.16. Mortgages Protection.

Notwithstanding all other provisions hereof, no lien created under this
Article VI, nor the enforcement of any provision of this Master
Declaration shall defeat or render invalid the rights of the Beneficiary
under any Recorded First Deed of Trust encumbering a Lot or
Condomunium, made in good faith and for value; provided that after
such Beneficiary or some other Person obtains title to such Lot or
Condominium by a judicial foreclosure or exercise of power of sale,
such Lot or Condominium shall remain subject to this Master
Declaration and the payment of all installments of assessments
accruing subsequent to the date such Beneficiary or Person obtains
title. The lien of the assessments, including interest and costs, shall be
subordinate to the lien of any previously recorded First Mortgage upon
the Lot or Condominium except as may be otherwise required in
accordance with NRS Section 116.3116, as amended. The release or
discharge of any lien for unpaid assessments by reason of the
foreclosure or exercise of power of sale by the First Mortgage shall not
relieve the prior Owner of his personal obligation for the payment of
such unpaid assessments.

Section 6.17. Priority of Assessment Lien.

The lien of the assessments, including interest and costs (including
attorneys’ fees) as provided for herein, shall be subordinate to the lien
of any previously Recorded First Mortgage upon any Lot or
Condominium. The sale or transfer of any Single Family Residential
Lot or Condominium shall not affect an assessment lien. However, the
sale or transfer of any Single Family Residential Lot or Condominium
pursuant to judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure of a previously
Recorded First Mortgage shall extinguish the lien of such assessment
as to payments which became due prior to such sale or transfer except
as set forth in NRS Section 116.3116.

(Request for Judicial Notice (Doc. #12), Ex. P.) By the CC&Rs’ plain language, in both
sections 6.16 and 6.17 Elkhorn preserved its statutory super priority lien rights by reference
to § 116.3116, which is the statutory section setting forth the relative priority of the HOA’s
super priority and junior liens in relation to a first deed of trust. Chapter 116 provides that
its requirements “may not be varied by agreement, and rights conferred by it may not be
waived,” except as “expressly provided in this chapter.” Nev. Rev. Stat. § 116.1104.
Nothing in § 116.3116 expressly provides for a waiver of the HOA’s right to a priority
position for the HOA’s super priority lien. Accordingly, the Court will deny Defendants’

Motion to Dismiss on this basis.
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C. Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens

Defendants’ Motion to Expunge is based on the same arguments as presented in
the Motion to Dismiss. Because the Court will deny Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac’s
Motion to Dismiss, the Court also will deny the Motion to Expunge.

III. CONCLUSION

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendant MTC Financial Inc.’s Mation to
Dismiss (Doc. #37) is hereby GRANTED. Judgment is hereby entered in favor of
Defendant MTC Financial Inc. and against Plaintiff 7912 Limbwood Court Trust.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.’s Joinder (Doc. #39) is hereby DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.’s Motion to Dismiss (Doc. #40) is hereby
DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.’s Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens (Doc. #48) is
hereby DENIED.

DATED: October 28, 2013 @4 @("

PHILIP M. PRO
United States District Judge
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